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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

An Act to provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community colleges 
through the department of commerce 

Minutes: Testimony Attached 

Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing.  

Senator Wardner: Written Testimony Attached ( 1 ) .  ( 1 : 00-1 0:02) 

Senator Andrist: Asked if he had a specific reason for the equal d istribution of that money 
regardless of the size or mission of the institution or the wealth of the tribe. If we put some 
criteria in would that d isappoint you? 

Senator Wardner: Said no that there should be some flexibi l ity, but he would like that 
question to be asked of the Presidents. 

Discussion and questions followed on the d ivision of the funds and the use of the grants. 
(1 1 : 20-1 4:06) 

Chairman Klein: Said that it was pointed out that the unemployment on the reservations 
was at  fifty-five percent and i t  is hard to understand why when we have all these jobs a nd 
folks are coming from all over America to work here .  He talked about need ing to provide 
add itional train ing for those types of jobs that are out west. 

Senator Wardner: Said that we are all human in that, if you haven't done someth ing before 
you tend not to try and he would like to think that because of these institutions,  that are so 
close to the Native American ,  that th is would g ive them an opportunity to build that 
confidence .  

Senator Schaib le, State Tribal Relations Committee: Commented on Standing Rock Tribal 
College being in h is d istrict, he has visited several of the community colleges and feels the 
value for the dollar that they are getting for what is being spent on this will be a good return. 
(1 6:00-1 7 :27) 
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Representative Johnson : Said he is close to the Fort Totten area and has seen the job that 
President Lindquist has done out there .  The programs that they have are amazing .  ( 1 7 :40-
1 8 :42) 

Representative Kasper: Said he has been on the tribal and state relations committee for 
three interims and has traveled to the various tribal areas and to the colleges. He knows 
the Presidents and thinks what they are doing is marvelous. (1 9:00-1 9:59) 

Representative Boe: Said that as part of his d istrict he has the Turtle Mountain  Community 
college and is in  support of the b ill. The success we would look for in  this bill, is the fact that 
there is existing infrastructure to utilize and to prepare these students for the next step .  

David M.  G ipp ,  President of the Un ited Tribes Techn ical College:  Written Testimony 
Attached, (2) .  (2 1 : 08-44: 00) 

Cynth ia Lindquist, PhD, President Cankdeska Cikana Community College: Written 
Testimony Attached, (3) . Informational sheet on the North Dakota Indians, Tribal Colleges 
and Universities and the North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges,{4). Roger Yankton 
Senior, Attachment (5). (54 :37 -56:43) 

Chairman Klein: Commented on the kids being willing to leave and go where the better jobs 
are ,  maybe this will help them. 

Dr. Jim Davis, President of the Turtle Mountain Community College: Written Testimony 
Attached, (6) .  (58:1 5-1 : 03:25) 

Beth Zander, Department of Commerce: Said she stands for questions. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if th is is workable and if she sees this as an opportunity. 

Beth: Said she supports the Governor's budget, which brings her here in a neutral position. 
They did visit with them about the legislation and in looking at this it is not a d ifficulty for 
her. 

Discussion and comments followed on the funds and the best way to d istribute them, ( 1  :04-
1 : 09). 

Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing.  

Further Attachments; Laurel Vermillion ,  President of Sitting Bull College :  Testimony (7). 
Russell D. Mason Jr. , President of Fort Berthold Community College: Testimony (8) . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

An Act to provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled commun ity colleges 
through the department of commerce 

Minutes: Amendment and Vote 

Chairman Klein: Said he has an amendment that changes the number from ten mil l ion to 
five m illion. He understands what the tribes are trying to do and th is is a big step that they 
haven't done before. This is an opportunity to provide more for a young person on the 
reservation to take advantage of the opportun ity to strike out and have a career. Th is is a 
pilot program and five million will provide; one mi l l ion for each college equally. 

Discussion fol lowed on the grants being distributed equally. (2:35) 

Senator Sorvaag moved to adopt the amendment, 1 3.8201 .01 001 . 

Senator Unruh seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes - 7 No - 0 

Senator Sorvaag moved a do pass as amended. 

Senator S inner seconded the motion.  

Rol l  Call Vote: Yes - 7 No - 0 

Floor Assignment: Senator Sorvaag 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 221 8. 
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Date: 02/05/201 3  
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 221 8 

Senate I ndustry, Business, and Labor Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 1 3.8201 .01 001 

Action Taken :  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended [gJ Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Senator Sorvaag 

Senators 
Chariman Klein 
Vice Chairman Laffen 
Senator Andrist 
Senator Sorvaag 
Senator Unruh 

Seconded By Senator Unruh 

Yes No Senator 
X Senator Murphy 
X Senator Sinner 
X 
X 
X 

Yes No 
X 
X 

Total (Yes) _?.;__ _________ 
No _0:::....__ ____________ _ 

Absent _0=----------------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Roll Cal l  Vote #: 2 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 221 8 

Senate Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Leg islative Council Amendment Number 1 3.8201 .01 001 

Action Taken: [gj Do Pass D Do Not Pass [gj Amended D Adopt Amendment 

[gj Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Senator Sorvaag 

Senators 
Chariman Klein 
Vice Chairman Laffen 
Senator Andrist 
Senator Sorvaag 
Senator Unruh 

Seconded By Senator Sinner 

Yes No Senator 
X Senator Murphy 
X Senator Sinner 
X 
X 
X 

Yes No 
X 
X 

Total (Yes) _7:...._ ________ 
No _0=---------------

Absent _0�--------------------------------------------------------

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 6, 2013 8:32am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_21_022 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

Insert LC: 13.8201.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2218: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends 

AMEN DMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PAS S  
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2218 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 3, line 24, replace "$10,000,000" with "$5,000,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_21_022 
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SB 22 1 8  
February 1 3, 20 1 3  

Job# 1 887 1 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolu ·on: 

A BILL for an Act to provide workforce development grants to tribal ly controlled community 
colleges through the North Dakota department of commerce; and to provide an appropriation .  

Minutes: Testimony # 1-7 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 22 1 8 . All committee members were 
present except Senator Grindberg . 

Senator Wardner, District 37, Senate Majority Leader 
Testified in favor of SB 22 1 8  
No written testimony. 
SB 22 1 8  is a commerce b i ll . It had a $ 1 OM appropriation that IBL cut to $5M. It has an 
appropriation for ski ll train ing at our tribal colleges. This is like a pilot program to train  
people at  tribal colleges for the workforce. 

Senator Schaible, District 31 
Testified in favor of SB 22 1 8  
No written testimony. 
He serves on the State Tribal and State Relations committee and has had an opportunity to 
visit some of these techn ical colleges. He said it was a lot of money going to tribal col leges 
but it is a good return on investment. The opportun ity to help the students and the benefits 
to the workforce is the reason he supports this and urges the committee to support this bill. 

Dr. Jim Davis, President, Turtle Mountain Community College 
Testified in favor of SB 22 1 8  
Testimony attached# 1 

Vice Chairman Bowman :  If this bi l l  passes and you get the program implemented , do you 
work with the industries to find out what qualifications the employees would have to have 
so they could get jobs. Is the purpose to prepare people who want to go into the 
workforce? 

Dr. Davis : I've sent people to the oi l  fields to meet with oi l  compan ies and agencies to 
research their needs. As for the curriculum, I've been told that the major oi l  compan ies will 
h ire those who complete the curriculum. 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
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Vice Chairman Bowman: If we implement these grants, hopeful ly, in 10 years from now, 
you will g ive us a report that we cut the unemployment in  half. There has to be a goal to 
make this work and be successful. 

Dr. Davis: In ten years we hope to cut 70% unemployment to 50%. 

Senator Robinson asked what the unemployment rate was at Turtle Mountain Reservation 
and how does that compare with the other reservations? 

Dr. Davis replied that Turtle Mt. was 69% and the average is 55% but Fort Berthold is less 
than 50%. 

Cynth ia Lindquist, PhD, President of Cankdeska Cikana Community College 
Testified in favor of SB 2218 
Testimony attached# 2 

(25:00) Discussion followed on the training and opportunities of the present and in  the 
future . They talked about the report to Commerce and accountability. They d iscussed the 
importance of the Department of Commerce involvement. Opportunities were d iscussed in 
tourism and cultural tourism and also the importance of Education .  

Chairman Holmberg said the Department of Commerce will receive th is b i l l  as part of their 
workload. 

David M. Gipp, Board Chairman, ND Association of Tribal Colleges 
Testified in favor of SB 2218 
Testimony attached# 3- Testimony of UTTC- David M.  Gipp 
Testimony attached# 4- North Dakota Association of Tribal Col leges 

(47:40) Laura Glatt, North Dakota Un iversity Systems 
Testified in  favor of SB 2218 

(48:30) Larry Skogen , President, Bismarck State College 
Testified in favor of SB 2218 
No written testimony. 
He encourages the passing of SB 2218. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2218. 

Subcommittee on the Department of Commerce will meet to d iscuss this further. 

Additional testimony: 
Testimony attached# 5- Cynthia Lindqu ist - North Dakota Ind ians 
Testimony attached# 6- Testimony of Laurel Vermillion, President, Sitting Bull College 
Testimony attached #7 - Russel l  D. Mason, Jr., President, Fort Berthold Community 
College 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2218 
02-15-2013 
Job # 19023 

D Conference Committee 

ommittee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL Workforce Development grants to tribally controlled community colleges (DO 
PASS) 

Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order. All committee members were present. 

Brady Larson -Legislative Council 
Tammy R. Dolan -OMB 

Senator Carlisle moved a do pass on SB 2218. 2"d by Senator Robinson . 

Chairman Holmberg Would you call the roll on a DO PASS on 2218. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 0. 

Chairman Holmberg : This goes back to IB & L. Senator Sorvaag will carry the bill. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2218. 



Date: ;;.._- 1S _.I 3 
Rol l  Cal l  Vote # I 

2013 S E NATE STAN D I NG COMM ITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. --b�L..l.£.-w..l4oooe!'---
Senate Appropriations 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l Amendment Number 

Action Taken Do � 
Motion Made By � Seconded By 

Senators Yes �.--N o  Senator 

Chariman Ray Holmberg ,.,... v Senator Tim Mathern 
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman /_,.. Senator David O'Connel l  
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg .,./ Senator Larry Robinson 
Senator Ralph Kilzer J,/"/ Senator John Warner 
Senator Karen Krebsbach / 
Senator Robert Erbele y 
Senator Terry Wa11zek / 
Senator Ron Carlisle ;.--
Senator Gary Lee v 

Committee 

Yes 1--No 
y 
;--

� 
y 

Total (Yes) ___ ...._/_..3""'----- No---''--""------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment f J3 J_ I 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2013 12:19pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_29_006 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2218, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2218 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_29_006 
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Committee C lerk S ignature 

SB 2218 
March 12, 2013 

Job 19743 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community colleges through 
the NO department of commerce; provide appropriation 

Minutes: 

Committee called to order. 

Hearing opened. 

Testimony attachme�s #1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8. 
Additional attachments 9, 10, 11, 12 

00:39 Senator Rich Wardner, District 37: Introduced bill. This bill provides 5 million 
dollars in grants to the tribal colleges in the state of NO for the purpose of skills training for 
workforce. 

Support: 

3:27 Representative Tracy Boe, District 9: Spoke in support of bill as a tool to help with 
the problem of unemployment and the need for a workforce. 

4:19 Representative J im Kasper, District 46: Spoke in support of bill as a tool to help 
with the problem of unemployment and the need for a trained workforce. 

5:59 Dr. David Gipp, President of United Tribes Technical College and chair of the 
North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges: Provided written testimony, attachment 
#1. Elaborated on written testimony. Distributed attachment #2, additional written 
testimony. 

13:04 Chairman Keiser: How will that money be divided, or will it be distributed to 
colleges in the order they proposed projects? 

14:10 Dr. Gipp: The five institutions would informally agree not to request more than one 
fifth of the total funding. 
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15:17 Representative M. Nelson: Would the colleges be able to get these programs in 
place so that they would be operational the first year of the biennium? Or would that delay 
things? 

15:42 Dr. Gipp: We understand it would be available in the fall. That would allow time for 
the planning necessary to get the programs ready to go when the funds are available. 

16:23 Chairman Keiser: Should this bill have the emergency clause? 

Dr. Gipp: That would be wonderful if that could happen, yes. 

16:36 Representative Becker: Do you know the total amount of monies received from the 
colleges per student from all sources? 

Dr. Gipp: We do have that figure and can provide it. 

17:17 Representative Becker: Any information you can provide that would help me 
assess how the tribal colleges fair relative to the NO public? 

Dr. Gipp: Yes. 

17:37 Representative Louser: How does the tuition rate at the tribal colleges compare to 
public institutions? 

Dr. Gipp: Much less than the public institutions. Tuition rates will vary. Gave figures per 
credit hour. Our costs are significantly lower than our public community colleges. 

18:45 Representative Kasper: Please share information regarding federal funding 
compared to the lack of state funding traditionally. 

19:01 Dr. Gipp: The Federal funding right now under a tribal controlled community college 
assistant act, created in 1978, is authorized at eight thousand but getting about $5500.00 to 
$5800.00 per institution if you have a student account. 

20:04 Representative Kasper: The funding for the tribal colleges are federally funded not 
state funded other than the small amount we now provide for the non-beneficiary students 
that you do not receive federal funding for? 

20:14 Dr. Gipp: Correct. 

21:09 Representative Frantsvog: Would these funds be used for new programs or to 
enhance existing programs? 

Dr. Gipp: It could be either. Gave examples of three areas where funds could be used. 

23:32 Representative Amerman: Is there a number at which the appropriation would be 
too small to be effective? 
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24:07 Dr. Gipp: If the number were to be reduced any further, then we run the risk of not 
being able to do the job adequately. We think the minimum is $5 million dollars. 

25:45 Cynthia Lindquist, President of Cankdeska Cikana Community College: 
Provided written testimony, attachment 3 and attachment 4. The bill addresses how we 
would d istribute it. This is innovative in landmark legislation relative to relationship of the 
state of NO and its Indian citizens and tribal communities. I think the potential to its impact 
on employment and poverty in our commun ities is s ign ificant. Drew attention to page 2 of 
her testimony regard ing fund ing. SB 2218 is an investment by the state of NO. Spoke of 
accred itation. Spoke of accountability through the aud it process. Native Americans are 
state citizens who make contributions to the state. Spoke of complementary report she will 
e-mail to committee members which addresses whether Native Americans pay state 
income tax. Provided add itional information about her college and other tribal colleges. 
Spoke of n iche training and collective activity among the tribal colleges. Spoke of 
collaboration with the Department of Commerce. Spoke of partnerships with the state 
u n iversity system and articulation agreements. After hearing d istributed handouts 9, 10, 
and 11. 

36:39 Representative Kreun:  Do you offer a political science class in your curriculum to 
show that the government needs to work along with you as well as just be there and not be 
a part of the solution? 

Dr. Lindquist: Yes we do.  

38:44 Representative Kreun: You spoke of the time i t  has taken to get someone from 
your college into an engineering position . Why did it take so long? 

Dr. Lindquist: There is starting to be a subtle change about embracing education . Gave 
historical background regard ing education as an assimilation tool. We help our young 
people understand this h istory and the evolution of how we got to where we are .  Gave 
statistics on number of students. 

42:39 Representative Sukut: We have existing programs in the state that train  ind ividuals 
for the workforce. Would it be beneficial to use some of these dollars to form scholarships 
for ind ividuals to take part in existing programs? 

Dr. Lindquist: We don't want to create what is already there. Hopefully we bu ild upon that, 
expand on it and complement it. However, there are gaps. Spoke of need for a different 
educational model. We will partner where appropriate. But where do we need to form a 
n iche market? We bring it together collectively, both through the tribal college system and 
our partnership with the state system to create cohorts of trained workers for various pieces 
in the industry. The partnership with the Department of Commerce

. 
will have better 

networking, stronger collaboration and relationsh ips in partnership and creating new things 
where needed; expanding upon the existing. 

46:10 Representative Ruby: Regard ing the non-competitive job tra in ing grant. This may 
not qualify. What could be used or not allowed based on that language? 
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47:08 Dr. Lindquist: No I don't. The Department of Commerce could help us determine 
that. We need to determine what is realistic and cost effective. We know our students' 
needs. We know how they succeed . There has to be a cultural component. 

48:17 Representative Frantsvog : On the top of page 2 of your testimony, you gave 
i nformation about h igh school dropout rate. If someone is enrolled in your college and did 
not complete high school, do you work to get them GEDs? Is that a priority for everyone 
who comes? 

Dr. Lindquist: Yes,  we work to help people obtain GEDs. Spoke of adult learn ing center. 
Gave actual numbers. 

50:00 Chairman Keiser: Is this program designed so that each of the institutions will 
simply apply for the grant, receive the money, and then d istribute it in whatever form 
works? Or are you going to go to Commerce with a proposed plan and they approve it? 
How will you gain access to your dollars? 

51:13 Dr. Lindquist: We would come in with a plan tailored to our respective college ,  
commun ity, and constituents. Gave examples . Hopefully Commerce will also g ive us ideas. 
We are looking forward to a broader network and the flexibility to meet the needs of our  
people. 

Chairman Keiser: Whatever your  plan is, they have to give you the money. 

53:02 H. A. Shirvani, North Dakota University System: On behalf of the State Board of 
Higher Education , and myself I fully endorse and support SB 2218. Tribal colleges play a 
critical role in  economic and social development of the state of NO. This is not an expense, 
but an investment. They are substantially underfunded . This is a sound investment in our 
future .  

54:33 Jim Davis, President of Turtle Mountain Community College: Our numbers are 
decreasing .  Gave statistics on unemployment and dropout rate. This b ill will do wonders 
for our  commun ities, but it will also benefit the state. Th is bill helps our local communities in 
terms of bringing our people out of poverty and provide jobs. Gave examples of ways the 
funding could be used at Turtle Mountain  Community College.  Spoke of people staying on 
the reservation or leaving the reservation . Spoke of college accred itation and aud its. 
Spoke of accred itation and soft money grants. Spoke of certifications and degrees wh ich 
could be added . Spoke of teacher education programs at the college. We have proven 
that we can provide the tra in ing.  Gave specific information about tuition costs. See 
attachment 8. 

1 :06:39 Laurel Vermillion, President of Sitting Bull College: Provided written 
testimony, attachment 5, add itional information, attachment 6. Addressed question of why 
it has taken so long for Native American colleges to move forward. Provided historical 
background and spoke of how that background has impacted today's colleges and today's 
students .  Spoke of role of colleges in teach ing Native culture and history. Spoke of 
collaboration between her college and K-12 education. Spoke of collaboration with 
Train ing Employment Resource Office and need to help students transition into the 
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workforce. Referred to attachment 6 for information about tu ition rates. Spoke of the need 
for student assistance programs. Spoke of businesses started at the college. 

1:15:36 Russell Mason, Jr., President of Fort Berthold Community College: Provided 
written testimony, attachment 7. There are demands put on our college for tra in ing.  Spoke 
to question regard ing scholarships for Native students to attend other institutions for 
established programs. Spoke about tu ition, scholarships, and student loans. Spoke of 
impact of political climate in h is area . We are there to serve our native people and our 
community. If this b ill is passed, the money will be utilized wisely. 

1:19:22 Representative Kreun:  You brought up the tribal government. What participation 
will they have in this in itiative to do all of these things? Is each one ind ividual or are they 
going to be together with the five d ifferent tribes to create some type of in itiative themselves 
or how will that work? 

President Mason: We are un ited in purpose , which is to educate students. This will be 
collaborative, not competitive. Spoke of d iscussions among tribal college presidents. 

1 : 20:49 Representative Kreun: So the tribal governments are going to participate 
financially in  helping this in itiative to accomplish these goals? 

President Mason: Not necessarily. Our tribal colleges do not get involved in tribal politics. 
As colleges, we work together and combine resources. 

1:21:50 Representative Kreun:  You need support from your tribal government as well as 
from our  government. 

President Mason: We do have support from our tribal government. Gave examples. 

1:22:30 Representative Kreun:  Are there other political science classes to incorporate 
your  tribal government i nto ed ucation? 

President Mason: They do not get involved in  the internal operations of the institutions. 
They g ive us approval for programs. Gave example of development of programs. Gave 
example of ways the tribal government looks to the tribal colleges. They do work with us in  
terms of economic development and job creation .  

1:25:46 Representative Kreun: But they are not financially involved in th is project? 

President Mason: They would be with our institution but not necessarily with the other 
colleges. Gave specifics. 

1:26:38 Representative Becker: Looking at the facts, there are 20,000 students under the 
head ing of tribal colleges and un iversities? 

President Mason :  That is nationwide.  

1:27:30 Representative Becker: So it's about 3300 native students in  NO tribal colleges? 
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President Mason:  Yes. 

1: 27:39 Representative Kasper: Do the tribes support the colleges? To my 
u nderstanding, they do to the best of their ability financially. The key to maintain the d ign ity 
and separation from the tribal colleges from the tribal governments is that the tribal 
governments do not interfere with the running of the college. You and your board run your  
colleges. 

1: 28:43 President Mason: In order for us to keep our accred itation ,  even though the tribe 
supports us financially, they are not involved internally. 

1: 29:34 Representative Beadle : What challenges does that present itself and what do you 
see in terms of the amount of people that's starting vs. those that have obtained a 
certificate of completion for Fort Berthold Commun ity College.  

1:30:22 President Mason: Even though our enrollment went down, our graduation rates 
went up .  Spoke of admission policy. We do not serve only the reservation but also the 
commun ity. 

1:32:10 Dr. Lindquist: Spoke of financial support from the tribe. We have all talked to our 
tribal partners about this b ill. Gave examples of partnerships with in the reservation system. 
Addressed Representative Becker's question about number of students. 

Chairman Keiser: Asked Commerce Department to come forward . From the perspective 
of your department, how will you approve or not approve a request for fund ing? 

1:35:40 Beth Zander, with the Department of Commerce: As previously stated, this is 
fai rly broad . That allows for the d ifferent needs and the desire to tailor th ings to fit a 
college's needs.  Spoke of her idea of how the d iscussions and gu idance will work. 

1:37: 36 Chairman Keiser: You cannot deny a request. 

Beth Zander: As it is written, no. But I am working with a group of people who understand 
that on making th is work well, we are setting precedence, we can come back here in  two 
years and show real progress. 

1 : 38:05 Representative Ruby: How would you work with noncompetitive job tra in ing and 
determine what is competitive? 

1 : 38: 20 Beth Zander: Provided clarification as to meaning of that phrase. Referred to line 
21. The key word is grant. Asked that we th i nk about li nes 22-23 on the first page regard ing 
the equal d ivision of the funds. Would like the flexibility. Lines 27-28 on page 3 d ivides the 
funds evenly across the two years of the bienn ium.  Would like to see flexib ility in that area 
as well. 

1:40:47 Representative M. Nelson :  Would you find it helpful if we d id an emergency 
clause so we can have the programs in  place this year? 
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1:41:06 Beth Zander: These first months after the passage will be the time for preparation .  
But i f  an emergency clause is better, we will take advantage of it. 

Chairman Keiser: Would your department please draft amendments along the lines of 
what you mentioned? 

Beth Zander: Yes.  

Add itional handout attachments 9, 10, 11, and 12. 

Carrier: Representative Kasper. 

Hearing closed . 
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Committee Clerk Signatur 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resol tion: l 

To provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community colleges through 
the NO department of commerce; provide appropriation 

Minutes: No attachments 

Chairman Keiser: Provided recap of SB 2218. We are going to take this bill next week 
and move it out. I will prepare an amendment to reduce the money. If it passes on the 
floor, it can be worked in  a conference committee. I believe in  this project. 

2:02 Representative Kasper: I am wondering what the rest of the committee is th i nking. 

2:15 Representative Ruby: To amend it down to $3 million ,  a d iscussion on the floor 
whether to approve the amendment would show whether the b ill itself would pass. If the 
amendment stays on the bill, then the bill would not have passed at the higher amount. 

2:37 Chairman Keiser: If we lower the amount as an amendment, we can challenge it on 
the floor. E ither way, i t  goes to  appropriations. 

2:48 Representative Becker: Comment on landmark legislation. I do not know that 
throwing money at these d ifficult s ituations is the right approach. Spoke about the financial 
impact a small tuition increase would have over the bienn ium. 

3:58 Chairman Keiser: This is opening a new door for financing. We do have evaluation 
criteria and the chance to come back, but it is tough for the legislature to back out. 

4:09 Representative Sukut: Identified problems he has with this b ill. Summarized h istory 
of money g iven to the tribal colleges. Drew attention to language on page 2 regarding how 
the grant money may be used . Referenced testimony g iven during hearing. 

5:39 Representative Boschee: With this being landmark, we do not know what works; 
this is a risk we take. We cannot continue to question why there continues to be large 
unemployment on the reservations. I gained understand ing of the d ifference between tribal 
government and tribal colleges. Each campus is starting to develop a plan ,  whether it is 
capital i nfrastructure or curriculum or other idea. After this investment, we might find best 
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practices for what will work well and make a difference at other campuses as well. There 
has been d iscussion about reducing the amount and having one or two campuses do a 
pilot project. I would hate to see that happen,  looking at what the five colleges have done 
together and then putting them in  a competitive situation. I hope we will move forward with 
equal amounts for each campus. 

7:33 Representative Kasper: Comment on landmark legislation and two ways in  which 
this b ill is landmark. Referenced testimony from commerce department regard ing the 
administration of the grant. Referenced testimony by president of Turtle Mountai n  
Commun ity College. Commented on changing the cultural view of education a n d  of moving 
off the reservation  to work. Commented that this is an opportunity for the state to partner 
with the tribal colleges to help them solve their problems. Comment about fund ing and 
tu ition for nonbeneficiaries. When the tribal colleges and the tribes will look back years 
from now, they will view this as the point at which the state helped their  culture change. 

11 :43 Chairman Keiser: Made reference to the state of the tribes update g iven to the full 
legislature during a joint session. Spoke about Title 8. 

12:36 Representative Ruby: Spoke of why he does not consider this landmark leg islation 
due  to existing programs. I would say that the funding side is new precedence. Voiced 
surprise at the low tuition and the availability of grants. Supported Representative Becker's 
comment regard ing potential impact of small tuition increase. 

14:03 Chairman Keiser: Spoke about requirement to end session with a balanced budget 
and a reserve. Spoke about the need to make decisions regard ing the overall financial 
picture while moving this bill forward in the best shape it can be. 

15:10 Representative Kreun: The colleges are the most forward-thinking portion of the 
tribes. Comment about tribal government and fund ing. Comment about red istributing the 
fund ing we send to the tribal governments to the tribal colleges. 

16:18 Chairman Keiser: Responded to Representative Kreun's idea. Reminded that 
these are sovereign nations. 

16:45 Representative Kreun: What are we doing in Human Services? 

16:49 Chairman Keiser: We are under federal guidelines for several of the issues. I do 
not see an avenue where the state will d ictate to the tribes what they have to  do  with the oil 
money or casino money. 

17:10 Representative Kreun: I'm suggesting that the money the state g ives be 
red irected. 

17:27 Representative Vigesaa: I support the concept. Shared concerns about potential 
struggle regard ing the dollar amounts. 

18:07 Chairman Keiser: Summarized process proposes for when the committee bri ngs 
this b ill forward for committee action. 
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To provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community colleges through 
the NO department of commerce; provide appropriation 

Minutes: Proposed amendments, attachment 1 

Record ing starts with update regard ing SB 2245 on which the committee acted earl ier in  
the week. 

2:41 Chairman Keiser: Provided brief review of SB 2218. 

Motion for a Do Pass made by Representative Kasper and seconded by Representative 
Boschee. 

3:21 Representative Ruby: Did we have an amendment on th is? 

Representative N. Johnson: We had talked about page 3, l ines 27 and 28 (audio fai nt) 

3:45 Chairman Keiser: Distributed handout, attachment 1, contain ing three proposed 
amendments which will be considered ind ividually. Explained proposed amendment 1 for 
page 1, l ine 23, regard ing date. Explained why he thinks proposed amendment 1 is without 
merit. Explained proposed amendment 2 regard ing removal of l ines 27-18 on page 3. 
Explained why he thinks this amendment has merit. 

6:21 Representative Kasper: Do we have the opportun ity to amend after the Do Pass, or  
is i t  done then? 

Chairman Keiser: It would be done. Neither amendment 1 or 2 is a deal breaker. 

Representative Kasper: Amendment 3 is the deal breaker. If we are going to consider 
only amendments 1 and 2, I do not have a problem withdrawing my motion .  

Chairman Keiser: We are going to consider amendment 1 or 2 or both at th is point. 

Motion withdrawn by Representative Kasper and Representative Boschee. 
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Representative Kasper moves the adoption of amendment 2 regard ing the removal of 
l ines 27 and 28 on page 3. Seconded by Representative N. Johnson . 

Chairman Keiser: I think it is a good amendment. Otherwise they could lose money. 

Representative N. Johnson: If they have a big project that they want to start, gett ing part 
of the money here and part of it there could be problematic. 

Chairman Keiser: Or vice versa if they have a delayed implementation. 

7:32 Voice vote carries. Amendment 2 is on the bill. 

Representative Kasper moves do pass as amended and re-referred to appropriatio ns; 
Representative Boschee seconds. 

8:08 Representative Becker: Explained why he will be voting no. Providing money even 
with good intentions may actually cause the problems we intend to fix. I calculated that if 
the colleges would increase their per credit tuition by about $20, they would raise this $5 
m illion for themselves. In my opinion, the $5 million in this b ill would be viewed as a 
s ubsidy to non-beneficiary students. The increase in per credit tuition rate would keep the 
tribal colleges at less than half of UN D's tuition per credit. I th ink this takes us farther down 
the road to throw money at a problem that cannot be fixed with money. 

10:06 Representative Kasper: Committee members, if you would travel to the tribal 
colleges as I have over the last ten years, and be on the campuses, and meet the 
instructors, and get to know the presidents as I have, you would realize that the problems 
on the reservations are centered on a n umber of factors, one of which is not the tribal 
colleges. The tribal colleges are the solution to the problems that are on the reservations. 
Representative Becker is right. The Un ited States government forced the Indians to go on 
the reservation  and forced a lifestyle on them and made them third-rate citizens .  They 
were g iven money and buffalo meat and beef and were told to stay on the reservations and 
to be good little boys and girls and stay out of our hair. The land was taken away from 
them. Their lifestyle was destroyed. Our nation did that to the tribes. They have been 
fighting to get out from underneath that ever s ince. We now have five tribal colleges that 
are absolutely as good as any college in  North Dakota, maybe with the exception of the two 
u niversities at Fargo and Grand Forks . The d ifference between those tribal colleges and 
the other  colleges is that they are where the problem is; they are located on the 
reservations, with the exception of United Tribes here in  Bismarck. They are helping to 
change the lifestyles of those people who live there. They are not only changing young 
people; they are chang ing people who have lived on the reservation  for years and are 
trying to figu re out, "How can I become employed? What can I do to change my life?" 
There is a lack of leadership on the reservations, that's for sure. You heard Mr. McCloud 
from the tribes at Turtle Mountain speak on the floor of the house about wanting a hand up, 
not a hand out. He talked about the importance of education. He said, "We are ready to do  
our  jobs as tribal leaders" because in  the past, a lot of them have not. They are looking at 
changing their governance.  Right now, almost every two years they governance rolls over, 
and it's the good old boy club in many cases. The new tribal chairman brings his friends on 
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and the old tribal chairman and council members who were just getting started are thrown 
o ut .  So they are trying to change. What is th is b ill? This b ill is not about money. Th is is 
about the state of North Dakota saying: You are brothers of ours and we are recogn izing 
that, number one, you are North Dakota citizens. Number two, we recogn ize the value of 
education. Number three, we are going to partner with you. That's what this is about, to 
help change lifestyles .  So although I appreciate Representative Becker's comments, you 
know the old saying "walk a mile in  my moccasins." He has not been there. Walk a m ile in 
their moccasins. I have been there. Let's pass this bill. 

13:03 Representative Ruby: This is a new precedence. We do fund the u n iversities. I 
believe the u niversities g ive consideration for ethn ic groups, includ ing these enrolled 
members .  We do have un iversities which provide techn ical train ing.  If we open this door, 
we will add five more un iversities to our system whether or not it is in the constitution. That 
is why I am not going to support this. 

13:56 Representative Sukut: I have a lot of sympathy for the American Ind ian .  We d id 
what you said . I think we also gave them opportunities to help themselves, which they are 
not taking advantage of. Gave examples. I do not th ink this will help them help 
themselves. I think this b ill is too broad . Gave examples .  A lot of these problems exist i n  
other institutions. 

15:24 Representative Boschee: I th ink it is important that we recognized that these five 
institutions do  exist. We do provide scholarship assistance to students who attend private 
schools in the state, the same scholarship levels they get if they go to the public 
institutions. While our public institutions do provide similar programs, I think it was well 
stated that students who are part of these tribes generally want to stay there for their 
education. These are opportunities where the people are. I think this is a great 
opportun ity. We need to separate our ideas of what tribal government has done and what 
tribal colleges have an opportun ity to do. While there is income generated , that is with the 
tribal government and not with the tribal colleges. I agree that there could be some more 
accountability put into th is, but at th is time we do not want to tie their hands too m uch. 

16:45 Representative M. Nelson: I th ink it is hard for those who don't live there to 
recogn ize how separate the colleges are from the tribe. In my area, the tribal council would 
not dare to interfere with the college. Commented on the commitment level of the colleges. 
The commitment they have to education has made a believer out of me. We can look at 
the tu ition , but they are the people with their boots on the ground in a d ifficult location .  
They are literally the only people who can change the situation. We have had well­
intended solutions come along over the years, trying to impose things upon the Native 
Americans,  and it has not worked. This is ground breaking. It is not a handout; it really is 
d ifferent. We are trying to give tools to a group of very commitment people who are trying 
to change their  whole culture and their whole society. We have a vested interest in  that for 
several reasons. These are citizens of North Dakota. When we look at our  Human 
Services budget. If this were almost a failure, it would still make us money as a state. If it 
is successful, it will make us a lot money. Voting for th is is voting in  our own best interest. 
We need to have the problem turned , and they are the only people who have a shot at 
doing it. 
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19:24 Representative Louser: I would hope that the presidents of these universities, if 
this were to pass, would recognized proper use of the money and would be able to have a 
measurable outcome so that they can show what happened . We d id not talk about the 
th i rd proposed amendment. Would this go to appropriations? We have had d iscussions 
about the d ifficult locations, but United Tribes is in Bismarck where there is not the same 
problem with unemployment. I am wondering how this would work mechanically if 
appropriations reduced the $5 million. Some of these colleges need the money more than 
others .  How do we handle that as a policy committee? 

20:54 Chairman Keiser: Not at th is point because we have a motion on the floor, but if 
this fails, a motion for any amendment can be made. Those things could be addressed 
here .  If it goes to appropriations, they can add amendments. 

21:31 Representative Ruby: There is a tribal college in Bismarck. There is no 
reservation in Bismarck, so apparently people are leaving the reservation to attend college. 
There are other opportunities. It's an inconsistency. I understand if you're in Belcou rt or 
Dunseith that you are m uch closer to home if you're going to college there. 

22:20 Chairman Keiser: This is a tough issue. I can argue this on either side. Drew 
connection to investment in renaissance zones. When that program started, it was very 
general and communities could develop their own projects, much as the colleges have 
asked to do. I do th ink that the presidents of the colleges certainly got the message that 
they need to do great th ings with this money. This will never be resolved until the tribes 
themselves take ownership of their people through investment. This program may or may 
not be successful, but it is an attempt at a partnersh ip. 

24:19 Representative Kasper: I want to draw the committee's attention to the b ill, 
addressing some of the concerns. On page 1, starting on line 18, we talk about what the 
b ill does. It requires workforce development grants to provide job training grants in such a 
manner as the Department of Commerce prescribes. So this is a job g rant and a job 
creating program. The Department of Commerce has a yes or no on any grant, so 
obviously it has to focus on the intent of the b ill, which is job creation. Number 2, on the top 
of the page under Purpose of Grants, on line 4, "that qualify the student to obtain jobs for 
which applicants are being sought within the state, as identified by the department of 
commerce, job service North Dakota, or any recognized tribes." Again, we are focusing on 
jobs. Then the accountability section on page 3. You notice that starting on line 13 on 
page 3, there is a full measure of accountability, including number 7 on line 21: "The 
number of jobs and businesses created or which were assisted in being created or 
maintained with funds provided under th is Act." These college presidents understand the 
importance that they have to perform or this is done forever. So they are saying, G ive us a 
chance ; we'll prove to you if you give us a chance what we can do. 

Roll call vote on motion for a Do Pass as Amended , with Re-referral to 
Appropriations. Motion carries. 

Yes = 10 No = 5 Absent = 0 

Carrier: Representative Kasper 
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House Appropriations Committee 
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Job 20467 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community 
colleges through the North Dakota department of commerce; and to provide an 
appropriation.  

Minutes: You may m 

Rep. George Keiser, District 47: The bill was d istributed; bill introduced beginn ing minute 
01:35. 

9:30 
Chairman Delzer: You said the colleges needed an arm's length from tribal government. Is 
anything restricting them from asking for or receiving grants from the tribal government? 

Rep. Keiser: We did d iscuss that, it is my understanding that they can receive grants from 
any entity, i ncluding the tribes. 

Chairman Delzer: Did you d iscuss cutting it to 2.5 and having a local matching 
requirement? 

Rep. Keiser: We did d iscuss cutting it. My understand ing is the tribes look at it that they 
are getting federal funds for tribal colleges; it's way below the rate that the state funds per 
student, but they are getting that funding so the tribes will not concentrate on the tribal 
colleges, since they have that alternative source of funding. 

Chairman Delzer: #2 on your reporting requirements, do you see that as listing both 
d irectly assisted and indirectly assisted , or just 'we touched 1400 students'? 

Rep. Keiser: Our interpretation was that requirement was the number of students assisted 
d irectly and ind irectly by the grants, and to list out those numbers .  We emphasized the key 
to any future in th is arena lies i n  section 6, the degree to which they can document the 
monies received have positively impacted their students. 

Rep. Skarphol: I'm intrigued about the amendment, wh ich removes the restriction that no 
more than 50% of the appropriation could be expended during the first year. 
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Rep. Keiser: That came from the department of commerce. Some colleges may request 
the full bienn ial amount in one year to launch a new program, for example. If the dollars are 
awarded, the institution can come to the department of commerce and request a 
d isbursement of those dollars in  amounts different than one half the first year, one half the 
second year. 

Rep. Skarphol : How do you envision the money being d isbursed? Would it go out 
immediately at the start of the biennium? 

Rep. Keiser: Department of commerce said they will first require a plan of action to be 
submitted on what dollars are needed, when they need them, what they're for. Upon 
approving the proposal, they will d istribute the dollars as requested within the proposal. 

1 4: 05 
Rep. Monson: We have the CTE budget in our section (E&E}, and I wonder how this would 
tie together and if the tribal colleges are able to access that money? There is money for 
workforce tra in ing in  CTE, so commerce isn't the necessarily the first choice. 

Chairman Delzer: We can sure d rop this into E&E and they can look at th is. I have no 
knowledge on that either. We'll check that out. 

Rep. Bellew: On page 2 section 5 use of grants, it says 'and student stipends, ' what does 
that mean? 

Rep. Keiser: It's a financial assistance to attend college. 

Chairman Delzer: Are they currently doing any of that? 

Rep. Keiser: Apparently they are doing some. I know I was on a stipend in  g raduate 
school. 

Rep. Dosch: I struggle with this because our state has such low unemployment, under 3%. 
People are coming from all over the US to work here, and yet we need to give $5M to the 
tribes for workforce development? It makes absolutely no sense. Why would we do this? 

Rep. Keiser: I'm not convinced I can explain this as well as they did explain  it to us. 
Historically, the US had Ind ian schools. Indian children were not allowed to go to the public 
school; they were taken out of their homes, sent to the Ind ian school, and educated there .  
That's a long time ago, but we created within the Indian culture a distrust of education .  The 
colleges spoke at length about this issue. They are getting to the first generation of young 
people who are ready and open to come i nto the educational system, work in the 
educational system to better themselves, but their parents and grandparents do not have a 
trust or support for education. The argument was made, whether you buy it or not, that we 
are on the edge of an opportun ity here with young native Americans to make a sign ificant 
adjustment on unemployment for the future. 
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Rep. Nelson: We're here for the money primarily. You mentioned your committee struggled 
with oil revenue, for example, why the tribes aren't putting their money in the deal. Quite 
honestly, the state is also a recipient of oil revenue on tribal land, through the compact. Did 
you d iscuss that as a source of funds for th is, rather than general fund revenue? 

Rep. Keiser: No. The b ill came in with general fund; we can look for all sorts of funds to put 
th is into; if you choose to do that, I'd support it. 

Chairman Delzer: In the end, it all rolls down to general fund anyway. 

Rep. Keiser: I supported putting it in the general fund, making it obvious. 

20: 1 0  
Rep. Nelson: That distinction is that the revenue from tribal land is a source of income for 
the state of NO, however it flows, and I th ink that has been the source of some tribal 
college funding in the past. 

Chairman Delzer: Leg islative Council will check that out for us. 

Rep. Holman: Having worked at a couple of the tribal colleges, and also at a public 
institution, the clientele is d ifferent. Tribal colleges are moving people into an income 
producing and tax-paying culture, which may not happen if we don't do that on-site at the 
tribal college. There are people who would not be going to another institution if it were not 
available on the reservation .  

Laney Herauf, OMB: If I understand the question correctly, the tribal colleges do not get 
any of the workforce training dollars from CTE, those are just for the four two-year colleges. 

Rep. Dosch: Next biennium, Three Affiliated Tribes is expected to receive $1 90M of oil 
revenue. Was there any d iscussion as to why Three Affiliated can't put in $5M to the 
commerce department to help fund for the benefit of all the native Americans in the state? 

Rep. Keiser: We did not d iscuss that specific issue. We had a d iscussion about if you have 
oil or other sources of fund ing, why aren't the tribes taking ownership and stepping up and 
putting their dollars into fund ing th is. The answer g iven to us is it's not the way it's 
organ ized, it's not the way it's working, and the tribes have very little say about the tribal 
colleges due to the arm's length requirement; as a result, they're not supporting it unless 
they can have input into what happens there .  

Chairman Delzer: Did you have any d iscussions with them about how many workforce 
enhancement programs the local tribes do have, not through the colleges? 

Rep. Keiser: No, we did not. 

Chairman Delzer: Further questions by the committee? Thank you. We'll take a short 
recess. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community 
colleges through the North Dakota department of commerce; and to provide an 
appropriation .  

Minutes: 

Chairman Skarphol opened the hearing on 58 2218. 

Representative Boe explained amendment .02004 . 

Tom Disselhorst, Attorney with United Tribes Technical College: The idea of the 
removal of the noncompetitive part is to make sure that it's understood that the Dept. of 
Commerce will develop criteria for these grants and that the tribal colleges will be asked to 
submit their grants pursuant to the criteria developed . Explained the amendment. 

Chairman Skarphol: How does the new language on the amendment change things? 

Tom : Explained the changes to the amendment. 

Chairman Skarphol: What do you envision happen ing? 

Tom : One of the things that are key to this b ill is the cooperation between the tribal 
colleges , Job Service NO, and the Commerce Dept. in identifying tra in ing programs that 
either need to be supplemented with funds or that are new and would meet the needs of 
NO's economy. The tribal colleges are seeking to make sure they are relevant to N O's 
economy. 

Representative Streyle: We already have the CTE; I don't see why we shouldn 't mirror 
what they are doing. I think it should be a match ing grant. 

Tom : The CTE program is mostly grants to students. This is to assist the colleges to 
develop programs that will best fit the students and environment. 
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Representative Dosch: What I don't understand is the description of new. These 
programs are in place. Why can't we adopt these programs? Why are we recreating 
programs? 

Tom : I'm not sure what programs you're referring to. The tribal colleges are developing 
their own set of programs that reflect what the needs of their students are on the 
reservations . 

Representative Dosch: You are training these people for jobs in ND.  I th ink we know 
what the jobs in ND are. I th ink we have programs in  place right now to train people for 
these jobs. So when you say you don't know what jobs are out there, that's what's 
frustrating . 

Tom : I was saying that the tribal colleges are preparing students for the jobs that will fit the 
students that they have. The students there are going to the tribal colleges because that's 
the best available situation for them. The tribal colleges serve a real need for students in 
the regions they serve. 

Representative Dosch: The jobs are off the reservations, so they're going to have to go 
off the reservation to get the jobs, so why not tra in them off the reservations? 

Tom : The tribes want to retain their populations as much as possible. Taking them off of 
the reservation and putting them in an environment where they may or may not be familiar 
with those situations is not helpful to those students. 

Representative Dosch: We've had a 200 year history of keeping Native Americans on 
their tribal land and it has been a d isaster in  every aspect. The biggest d isservice that we 
can do is to keep them on the reservation .  How has this 200 years turned out? If we want 
to truly help them, we need to have them get off the reservation and integrate into our 
society and not keep this 200 year d isaster going . We're doing the greatest d isservice by 
keeping them on the reservation and keeping them dependent. 

Tom : I th ink we have a fundamental disagreement about how the programs that affect 
tribes work and whether they have been improving the lives of tribal members . 

Vice Chai r Monson: I th ink I understand what you are trying to do.  I sense the 
frustrations. We don't have to start from scratch. You have a resource from Commerce. 

14:55 Tom :  I thoroughly agree. 

Vice Chair Monson: I'm not proposing it as an amendment, just g iving you advice. 

Representative Boe: would like to move the amendment . 02004. Seconded by 
Representative Monson . 

Chairman Skarphol: Tell us what you are going to do d ifferently. What is your vision you 
see th is entity doing d ifferently than what's being done now. 
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17:09 Tom : I'm not one of the college president's so I can't g ive you all the ideas they have 
in place. Gave an example about a cohort model program.  

Chairman Skarphol: The role that we are supposed to play here is to talk about the 
money. We need to have information about the policy in order to think in proper terms 
about the money. In the case of Train NO and the workforce work that's done throughout 
the state, they buy equipment. What kind of jobs would you be train ing people for were this 
to go forward? 

Tom : Defer to President Davis. 

Chairman Skarphol: Give us a 5 minutes summary of what you envision here .  

20:07 Jim Davis, President of Turtle Mountain Community College: We don't see 
those people on our reservations and very few of our people go to those train ing centers for 
tra in ing.  

Chairman Skarphol: I'm envis ioning that you want to do something d ifferent than what's 
there .  

21:50 Davis: The d ifference is  to design ,  develop, and implement programs that will fit the 
needs of the job opportun ities in North Dakota. Around 60% of the students don't go to 
other colleges the first 2 years. They prefer to stay with our institution . Gave an overview 
of the history of the college. We can do the job better and make it less expensive on the 
reservation for these people who need the train ing.  

Chairman Skarphol: This would be to help develop curriculum? 

Davis: That is correct. We do customized based train ing. Our primary purpose is to train 
people to get the jobs. 

25:08 Vice Chai r Monson: This is job train ing to help get your people a job quickly. This is 
tra in ing to develop new jobs on or off the reservation .  

27:20 Davis: We saw the need for North Dakota to train people for the oil field jobs. This 
is where we focused our emphasis on. We want to see our people employed . 

A Roll Call vote to adopt the amendment: Yes = 8, No = 0, Absent = 0. Motion carried 
for amendment . 02004. 

Chairman Skarphol: The reason we are doing this is to find out if we should l ink this to 
commerce. The purpose to provide grants to tribally controlled commun ity colleges under 
this Act for the biennium. What does it represent? Do they apply for the grant? Based on 
criteria established by commerce are they eligible? 

30:29 Vice Chair Monson: This money isn't going to be g iven out without a plan that is 
approved by commerce based on line 20 and 21 of page 1 .  Read from the amendment. 
To me this is tightened up to say that if a tribal college comes in and says we want to buy 
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equ ipment to do someth ing with our 2 or 4 year degree, if it doesn't have someth ing dealing 
d irectly with jobs, I'd say commerce has the right to say that's not what job training in  North 
Dakota is. This is for fast tracking to jobs. 

32:16 Representative Martinson: We need to make absolutely sure that this is for job 
training money and not money for the colleges . 

Representative Grande: In the amended version it is written as an application process to 
the Department of Commerce but also requ ires (referred through number 7) a reporting 
mechan ism. 

Representative Grande: I move to reduce from $5 million to $3 million and Representative 
Dosch seconded . 

Representative Boe: I would resist that motion .  

34:40 Representative Grande: Your amendments struck the language that says the funds 
appropriated under this Act must be d ivided equally among the tribal. I 'm looking at where 
it says the number of students assisted by the grant. 

Chairman Skarphol: Could the 3 colleges apply for th is? 

Representative Boe: I don't believe so. 

35:53 Vice Chair Monson: I think I'm willi ng to agree with the statement that you 
underfund it you're dooming it to failure. If we reduce it then maybe the language could be 
changed to first-come, first-serve. 

36:48 Representative Martinson: You're making an assumption that all the schools are 
going to apply for it and receive the money. Do all the schools have plans ready to go? 

Chairman Skarphol: Tell us what we have for workforce training that we g ive to them for 
operating.  

37:50 Wayne Kutzer: Yes it  is in  our budget for the bienn ium .  

Vice Chai r Monson: Is there money coming in from industry? 

Kutzer: That is designed for the infrastructure, staffing needed to pull the training together, 
the cost of tra in ing ,  h iring of instructors. All of that is paid for by business. 

Chairman Skarphol: If the tribal colleges are truly committed to this or will ing to make 
something work over the next 2 years to demonstrate to us the cost of the employee 
shouldn't be primary with them rather the cost of equ ipment to do the train ing.  

Kutzer: I would lean towards the underfunding side. It depends on the type of equipment 
you need to buy. 
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40:46 Vice Chair Monson: Do you remember or recall what the startup cost is? 

Kutzer: Gave his estimates at this time. 

Representative Streyle: We are talking about $600 ,000, the programs are in place. If 
there is any duplication at all it's a waste. The jobs are what the train ing centers are doing . 

Chairman Skarphol: What are the opportunities for them to make a deal with one of the 
institutions to have it on a temporary basis periodically? 

42:59 Beth Zander, Department of Commerce: I th ink as it has been said by someone in 
th is course of d iscussion the hindrance would be when moving the equ ipment is d ifficult 
and heavy. 

43:44 Representative Dennis Johnson: Has received emails from people who need 
equ ipment. Many students won't go to school unless they have the opportun ity. I'd g ive 
th is the opportun ity to move forward . If it doesn't work in 2 years then decide what to do.  

A Roll Call vote: to reduce $5 million to $3 million . Yes = 5, No = 3 ,  Absent = 0. 

Chairman Skarphol: The bill is in  front of us as amended with the appropriation reduced 
to $3 million dollars. 

Representative Monson: I move a Do Pass as amended . Seconded by Representative 
Boe . 

A Do Pass Roll Call vote: Yes = 6, No = 2 ,  Absent = 0 .  Carrier: Representative Boe . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide workforce development grants to tribally controlled community 
colleges through the North Dakota department of commerce; and to provide an 
appropriation .  

Minutes: Amendment .02005 

Chairman Delzer brought up for consideration SB 2218. 

Chairman Delzer: This is the tribal college workforce enhancement bill. Did you put any 
amendments on the bill? 

Rep. Skarphol :  Yes we d id amend the bill. I believe that the amendments are important 
that they stay on the b ill. Representative Boe is carrying the b ill. You should have the 
amendment. These amendments were proposed by Representative Boe and the 
committee put them on there and we think they are entirely appropriate. 0 :45 

Looked for amendments. 2:05 

Rep. Boe: The first set of amendments that I brought down was for the fact that we had a 
little bit of concern in the committee that it was a little loose on how they could utilize the 
money. And that was an amendment to tighten up the use. 

Rep. Skarphol : The .02005 amendment is a monetary change. 3 :30 

Rep. Boe: Went over amendment .02005. 7 : 1 5  That was what the sponsors and 
commun ity college presidents came up with to tighten it  up,  so that i t  wasn't nearly as loose 
in how they could use the money and would give us a little bit of the reporting that we were 
looking for. 7:40 

Discussion over which amendment was being referenced. 9:20 

Representative Boe moved to adopt amendment .02005 and seconded by 
Representative Skarphol. 
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Chairman Delzer: Asked Representative Boe if this was a fai r  description to get 
information to determine if this is successful. 

Rep. Boe: We want data back to determine how successful the program is and to see if 
any improvements can be made. 

Chairman Delzer: And this does give Commerce a little more authority over how soon 
they give the grant and who they give it to based on the program presented that they want 
to put forward . 

Rep. Boe: They would have to apply and meet the criteria of the Department of Comerce 
in  order to receive the funds. 1 0:55 

Rep. Nelson: When you took the grants that were orig inally intended to go be split evenly 
among the tribal community colleges, that's now a competitive situation is it not? Is there a 
cap to what one campus can get or how is that going to work in a practical nature? 

Rep. Boe: I believe the reason that was removed was to allow the Department of 
Commerce to be able to set up the criteria to d ivide the money; otherwise, they would have 
to give them the money. 

Rep. Nelson: Maybe I am reading that wrong? 

Chairman Delzer: I would it that it sets it up as a competitive grant, which we talked about 
just a bit ago. I don't know that it says anything about how much can go to each tribal 
college in this amendment. 

Rep. Nelson: If it's s ilent, a tribal college with a program that warranted $3M could 
conceivably be granted that. Could it not? 

Chairman Delzer: Possibly they could, but I doubt it would happen. 

Rep. Nelson: I would too . 

Rep. Skarphol: If you are patient for a minute, we may have add itional d iscussion on what 
needs to be done on this. 

Rep. Hawken: The original amount was $5M ; what was the rationale for taking it down to 
$3M? 

Rep. Skarphol: Discussion centered around the fact that we weren't sure we wanted to 
start five new workforce programs. 
We have four workforce quadrant train ings right now; we d idn't want to begin the process of 
funding add itional training sites. However, what is being requested here is d ifferent. I am 
beginn ing to recognize more easily the d ifference. I would like the committee to talk about 
it before we are done here. 
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Rep. Hawken: Would it be in  the committee's best interest to wait to vote on these u ntil we 
have heard the other amendments? 

Rep. Skarphol: What Representative Boe presented in this amendment is very good; we 
can further amend the change of money after we have accepted Representative Boe's 
amendments if that's the wishes of this committee. 

Motion carried on a voice vote. 

Rep. Skarphol: If you recall Rep. Keiser's presentation to the committee, he was very 
outspoken about the trust between us and the Native American people. 1 7 :00 
After d iscussion this with Mr.  Davis ,  he has convince me that th is is important to them. 
They so lack the confidence that we take for granted, that they need some dollars to help 
assimilate their people into the workforce, or begin industries on their campuses or 
reservations. I believe we're trying to do the right th ing here .  I also believe one of the 
reservations has the ability to help itself, because of the extreme wealth it has; but that 
doesn't mean they will help the rest of the tribal colleges or reservations. 1 8:40 

Representative Skarphol made a motion that the elig ible entities for these g rants 
would be a tribal college not located on a reservation or a reservation with the 
unemployment rate higher than 30% and seconded by Representative Monson. 

Chairman Delzer: How would that set up workforce enhancement that did not have the 
education factor of the tribal college? 

Chairman Skarphol: That's where it comes back to the trust factor. They have not trusted 
us and I think it's about time that we trusted them. I think we can demonstrate that by 
allowing one of the tribes that does not have a tribal college under the auspices of the 
Indian Affairs Commission to properly monitor and implement it. 

Allen Knudson, Legislative Council: An eligible entity to receive the funds would be a 
tribal college not located on a reservation, or an entity on a reservation with unemployment 
higher than 30%. 

Rep. Skarphol: The intent is that Un ited Tribes here in Bismarck needs to be a qualifying 
entity, because they do most of, if not all, of the work for Standing Rock. 22 :22 

Rep. Monson: This would fit under the defin itions section? 

Knudson: It would be on page one line 1 1 -1 4, where we are defin ing a tribal controlled 
commun ity college, so it means an accred ited institution of h igher education not located on 
a reservation or a tribal college on a reservation with unployment greater than 30%. 

Rep. Skarphol: But that takes out Standing Rock. I think Indian Affairs needs to be 
involved in  the selection process and making sure that those entities that are appropriate 
are the ones that are helped . 
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Knudson: We would have to change that defin ition then ,  and remove tribally controlled 
community college. 

Chairman Delzer: Or would you keep that and add another one? 

Knudson: We could do that, too. 

Rep. Glassheim :  Didn't we take out the defin itions in the amendment, lines 4-1 4? 
So those are no longer there. 

Chairman Delzer: That's true. What does that do? 

Knudson: We would have to do a separate defin ition section. 

Chairman Delzer: That is basically what this amendment is. 

Knudson: Yes,  we are working with the language. 

Rep. Skarphol: Make the defin itions correspond with what is in Rep. Boe's amendment as 
well. 

Chairman Delzer: We'll work through the bill, but we'll make sure we get a number of eyes 
on it before sending it to the floor. 

Rep. Nelson: I th ink I agree with what you say, but the b ill is silent as to the involvement of 
the Indian Affairs Commission. What's your desire in that area? 

Rep. Skarphol :  Yes, I th ink there needs to be language d irecting Department of 
Commerce to work in  cooperation in  determin ing the eligible entities. 

Rep. Nelson: Have you visited with the Indian Affairs Commission to see if they're 
amenable to th is? 

Rep. Skarphol: I can assure you I have visited with the Indian Affairs Commission. 

Motion carried on a voice vote. 

Representative Skarphol moved that Department of Commerce must work with the 
Indian Affairs Commission to determine the eligible entities as defined in this section 
and seconded by Representative Nelson. 27:55 

Rep. Hawken: One of the th ings I liked about th is b ill i n itially was that we were trying a 
new way of doing things and the leadership of the tribal colleges, in my opinion , growing 
stronger by the year. I am concerned that with this amendment, they will lose some of the 
power they were g iven in itially. You use the word trust; right now, I'm having a hard time 
with that. Normally I do. I think this is such an opportunity; it presents the right thing at the 
right time to make a d ifference. 29:20 
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Chairman Delzer: further d iscussion 

Rep. Nelson: I'm a little confused about Representative Hawken's statement. Are you 
referring to this amendment? 

Chairman Delzer: I would see this amendment as giving them more opportun ity to help 
define the d i rection of the grants. 

Rep. Hawken: That's not my concern . I just don't want the colleges cut out of the plann ing 
process. 

Rep. Nelson: Our subsection d id have the Ind ian Affairs Commission budget. I think it is 
important that they are included in  th is. Under the jurisd ictional situation we are u nder, 
Commissioner Davis is working with 5 nations and the state of North Dakota. That 
collaboration is needed . 31 :49 

Motion carried on a voice vote. 

Representative Boe moved to further amend up to $4M and seconded by 
Representative Hawken. 

Rep. Boe: Explained the reason for his motion. 

Rep. Dosch: I oppose that amendment. By focusing it down, we have given those eligible 
ones more resources than by spread ing it out over everyone. Read information of federal 
grants that went to d ifferent schools. 35:20 I think the state is being very fai r  when we talk 
about $3M. I d idn't in itially support it, but I'm willing to do it now. I will support the $3M , but 
I won't go any further than that. 36:40 

Motion failed. Aye-1 0 Nay-1 2 Absent-0 

Rep. Bellew: How many students at these colleges? 

Rep. Skarphol: I can't g ive you a number. The issue really is to prompt that live on the 
reservation to go off and go to the colleges. This is to help build confidence in them . 38 :54 

Rep. Kempenich moved do pass as amended and seconded by Rep. Skarphol. 

39: 1 5  
Rep. Monson: At our four regional job training centers located on the campuses of the two 
year schools, we really don't g ive them a degree. They are working for a certification. 
Some think that this is to give money to go d irectly to the tribal colleges to turn them into 
degrees. I want to make it very clear that isn't necessarily what this is about. This is jobs. 
This has already been done in the state in our two-year colleges, which provides the space. 
This is CTE; this is Commerce. This is to turn into jobs. 4 : 1 7  
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Rep. Brandenburg : I've worked on a lot of water and corps. land .  I really made a 
connection with the tribes this session .  We're at a crossroads where we can b ring the next 
generation forth i nto working with us, and all of us working together. 42:00 

Chairman Delzer: There wi l l  be support for this. I 'd feel better if this was a pi lot p roject. 
43: 1 5  

Rep. Skarphol: I would hope Mr. Davis is successful enough that he doesn't need to come 
back next session. 

Motion carried with Representative Boe to carry the bil l .  Aye-1 8 Nay-4 Absent-0 
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PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 22 1 8  

I n  l ieu of the amendments as printed on pages 1 020 and 1 021  of the House Journal ,  
Engrossed Senate Bi l l  No .  221 8  is amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 4 through 14  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 1 , remove "noncompetitive" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 22, remove "The funds appropriated under this Act must be divided" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ine 23 with "In order to qual ify for a grant under th is section, an appl icant must 
be a triba l ly controlled community college not located on an I nd ian reservation or a 
tribally control led community college located on an I nd ian reservation with an 
unemployment rate of greater than th irty percent. The department of commerce shal l  
consult with the executive director of the Ind ian affai rs commission to determine el igible 
tribally contro l led community colleges. "  

Page 2,  l ine 2 ,  replace ".f." with "1" 

Page 2, l ine 1 5 , after the underscored comma insert ".§" 

Page 2, l ine 1 8 , replace "must" with "shal l"  

Page 2,  remove l ines 22 through 30 

Page 3, replace l ines 1 through 6 with : 

"A grant awarded under this Act may be used to carry out the purposes 
specified in section 2 of this Act, including maintenance and operation of the program; 
development costs associated with any new or redesigned courses of instruction at the 
college; costs of instruction, includ ing special programs for indiv iduals with disabi l it ies; 
and academic instruction and associated materia ls ." 

Page 3 ,  l ine 1 1 ,  remove "must provide a report to the department of commerce that" 

Page 3, replace l ines 1 2  through 22 with "shal l provide to the department of commerce, in  the 
form prescribed by the department, the fol lowing information:  

.1. A detai led report of expenditures under the grant; 

£. The number of students assisted by the grant; 

� The graduation rate of students assisted by the grant and the graduation 
rate for al l students at the col lege; 

4 .  A description of any new or improved tra in ing or other program leading to a 
certificate or a degree which was developed by the col lege with funds 
provided by the grant and the types of jobs for which the new or improved 
train ing program is designed; 

� The placement rate of graduates of the col lege assisted by the grant in 
relation to the placement rate of al l graduates of the college; 

Page No. 1 1 3 .8201 .02008 



§_,_ The rate of students assisted by the grant who pursue further educational 
opportun ities immediately after graduation from the col lege; and 

L The number of jobs or businesses created as a result of funds provided by 
the grant." 

Page 3 ,  l ine 24 , replace "$5,000,000" with "$3,000,000" 

Page 3 ,  l ine 27, remove "No more than fifty percent of the appropriation may be expended 
during the fi rst" 

Page 3 ,  remove l ine 28 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 221 8 - Department of Commerce - House Action 

Executive Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Grants to tribal colleges $5,000,000 {$2,000,000) 
Total all funds $0 $5,000,000 ($2,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 
General fund $0 $5,000,000 ($2,000,000) 
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

House 
Version 

$3,000,000 
$3,000,000 

0 
$3,000,000 

0.00 

Department No. 601 - Department of Commerce - Detail of House Changes 

Grants to tribal colleges 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 
Workforce 

Development 
Grants' 

($2,000,000) 
($2,000,000) 

0 
($2,000,000) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($2 000 000) 
($2,000,000) 

0 
($2,000,000) 

0.00 

1This amendment reduces funding to tribal col leges for workforce development grants by $2 million, from 
$5 mi l l ion to $3 mi l l ion .  
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
58 2218, as engrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (18 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG).  
Engrossed SB 2218, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

In lieu of the amendments as printed on pages 1020 and 1021 of the House Journal , 
Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2218 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, remove lines 4 through 14 

Page 1, l ine 21, remove "noncompetitive" 

Page 1, line 22, remove "The funds appropriated under this Act must be divided" 

Page 1, replace line 23 with " In order to qualify for a grant under this section. an applicant 
must be a tribally controlled community college not located on an Indian reservation 
or a tribally controlled community college located on an Indian reservation with an 
unemployment rate of greater than thirty percent. The department of commerce shall 
consult with the executive director of the Indian affairs commission to determine 
eligible tribally controlled community colleges." 

Page 2, line 2, replace "2." with "1" 

Page 2, line 15, after the underscored comma insert "§" 

Page 2, line 18, replace "must" with "shall" 

Page 2, remove lines 22 through 30 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 6 with: 

"A grant awarded under this Act may be used to carry out the purposes 
specified in section 2 of this Act, including maintenance and operation of the 
program; development costs associated with any new or redesigned courses of 
instruction at the college; costs of instruction. including special programs for 
individuals with disabilities; and academic instruction and associated materials." 

Page 3, line 11, remove "must provide a report to the department of commerce that" 

Page 3, replace lines 12 through 22 with "shall provide to the department of commerce. in 
the form prescribed by the department, the following information: 

1.,. A detailed report of expenditures under the grant; 

2,. The number of students assisted by the grant; 

� The graduation rate of students assisted by the grant and the graduation 
rate for all students at the college; 

4. A description of any new or improved training or other program leading to 
a certificate or a degree which was developed by the college with funds 
provided by the grant and the types of jobs for which the new or 
improved training program is designed; 

Q,. The placement rate of graduates of the college assisted by the grant in 
relation to the placement rate of all graduates of the college; 

6. The rate of students assisted by the grant who pursue further educational 
opportunities immediately after graduation from the college; and 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_65_001 
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L The number of jobs or businesses created as a result of funds provided 
by the grant."  

Page 3 ,  line 24, replace "$5,000,000" with "$3,000,000" 

Page 3, line 27, remove "No more than fifty percent of the appropriation may be expended 
during the first" 

Page 3, remove line 28 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2218 - Department of Commerce - House Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Grants to tribal colleges 

Total all funds $0 
Less estimated income 0 
General fund $0 
FTE 0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$5,000,000 

$5,000,000 
0 

$5,000,000 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($2, 000 000) 

($2,000,000) 
0 

($2,000,000) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$3,000,000 

$3,000,000 
0 

$3,000,000 
0.00 

Department No. 601 - Department of Commerce - Detail of House Changes 

Grants to tribal colleges 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 
Workforce 

Development 
Grants' 

($2,000,000) 

($2,000,000) 
0 

($2,000,000) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($2,000,000) 
($2,000,000) 

0 

($2,000,000) 
0.00 

1This amendment reduces funding to tribal colleges for workforce development grants by $2 
million, from $5 million to $3 million. 
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Senate I ndustry, Business and La bor Com mittee 

SB 2218 

M r. C h a i rm a n  a n d m e m bers of the Co mm ittee :  O u r  Tri b a l  co l l eges a re 

one of t h e  best-kept secrets i n  o u r  state . These i n stitut i o ns a re a m o ng 

the m ost sta b l e  o n  each of the reservat ions i n  N o rt h  Da kota . They 

provid e a so l id  pathway out of pove rty fo r m a n y  Tri ba l  a n d  N o rth 

Da kota cit ize n s, with u n em ployment on the rese rvat i o n s  ave ragi ng 55% 

of the e m p l oya b l e  wo rkfo rce ( B IA La bor Study, 2005 ) .  They a re 

accred ited h ig h e r  e d u cation i n stitutio ns, a n d  ge n e ra l ly p rovi d e  two 

yea r, a n d i n  some d isci p l i nes, fo u r  yea r degrees, with over 2,000 

stude nts i n  atte n d a n ce i n  a ny given se meste r. 

To m e et the cha l l e nges of se rving the North Da kota citi zens  who att e n d  

o u r  co l l eges, a n d  to h e l p  red u ce the core u n e m p l oyment  rate, w e  a re i n  

need of fu nds  t h a t  wi l l  a l low u s  to meet the ch a l l enges i n  o u r  grow i n g  

state i n  the 2 1st centu ry. 
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Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
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State of North Dakota 

Testimony of United Tribes Technical College 

David M. Gipp, President 

in Support of SB 2 2 18 

Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges 

January 30, 2013 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: This testimony is given on behalf of United 
Tribes Technical College, located in Bismarck, North Dakota. 

United Tribes started out as United Tribes of North Dakota Development Corporation in 1 968. 
The vision of the founders was to create more economic opportunity for tribal citizens, both on 
and off the reservations ofNorth Dakota. They wanted an institution that provided a residential, 
family-centered learning community where American Indian people could access education 
opportunities and obtain employment. 

Our institution has evolved over the years to reflect the founders' visions, providing not only 
postsecondary education and workforce training, but also individual and social skills 
development in a culturally-relevant setting. Now, United Tribes, a fully accredited institution, 
provides 3 kinds of Workforce Training certificates, 24 Associate Degree programs, and 3 
Bachelor Degree programs, and more than 1 25 individuals receive diplomas or certificates 
annually. Eighty-six percent (86%) of our students are Native American. Many of our students 
are the first in their family to obtain any kind of higher education. Our students are young, with 
an average age of 24, and 50% have dependents. 

But we know we can do better. American Indians are seeking access to higher education 
opportunities because of personal aspirations, family socio-economic needs, workforce and 
employment trends. Changing technologies, physical structure adaptations, and institutional 
developments are challenges that shape the educational landscape for UTTC, challenges that 
need additional resources. 

Yet, the federal resources upon which we largely depend are not keeping pace with the needs of 
the 2 1 st century. While our student population has increased, funding in actual dollars has stayed 
constant, reducing the per student amount substantially. This has meant that we have had to 
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defer investments that can allow us to offer first class technical education for North Dakota 
citizens who want the jobs that are now available in North Dakota' s growing economy; students 
who want to stay in North Dakota have had to leave because of the cost of housing. Our 
educational resources are stretched beyond their limits. 

The grants offered by SB 221 8  can help United Tribes and our sister Tribal colleges meet the 
challenges of the 2 1 st century work force for North Dakota and its Tribal citizens in several 
ways: 

• First, the funds can be used to design and implement new programs needed in North 
Dakota's new economic landscape. We want to use the funds for business incubator 
programs that encourage entrepreneurship. New business help the reservation economies 
diversify. 

• Second, the funds can be used to improve and assure the quality of existing programs. In 
addition to all of the technical skills needed in the oil patch, many ofNorth Dakota's  
communities need more law enforcement officers, nurses, trained construction workers, 
teachers and small businesses, all of which are programs that present exist at United 
Tribes. 

• Third, the funds will allow UTTC to continue to recruit, develop, and retain faculty 
qualified to teach students the necessary trade skills to successfully complete academic 
requirements and demonstrate skill competency. 

• Fourth, our students need additional scholarship funds. This is especially true with the 
very difficult housing market in Bismarck. where the cost of rental properties has doubled 
or more in the past couple of years. 

• Finally, the funds can enhance our infrastructure and capacity to provide the programs 
designed for students to enter the workforce. United Tribes occupies an old Army base, 
mostly in buildings constructed more than 1 00 years ago, so deferred maintenance is a 
constant barrier to student success. 

In addition, SB 221 8  fits nicely with existing College resources and programs. United Tribes, 
similar to the other Tribal colleges in North Dakota, received a one-time three year grant from 
the U.S. Department of Labor for providing specific certificates in some key employment areas 
needed in this region. The funds are provided under a tariff on imported goods that is to be used 
to train workers displaced by jobs that have been moved from the United States to other 
countries; it is the intention of the grant we have received that our programs become permanent. 
One such program is welding. Funds from SB 22 1 8  can help continue the kinds of training 
opportunities offered by the Department of Labor grant for American Indian students in our 
region. 

United Tribes will continue to press for adequate federal funding. We are not seeking additional 
funds to replace the federal funding we receive, but merely to supplement it. We do know that 
our graduates generally stay in North Dakota and are able to lead productive lives as tax-paying 
citizens, contributing greatly to the welfare of our state. Collectively, our North Dakota Tribal 
Colleges have conducted an economic impact study that shows we make a significant 
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contribution to this state; and United Tribes has a similar kind of study showing a 20-1 
investment ratio; that is, one dollar invested in United Tribes brings twenty dollars in earnings to 
the student who graduates from our College. We believe the payback from the investment of 
state funds in our Tribal colleges is similar - as students are educated they are less likely to be on 
welfare, to end up in the state penitentiary, or to be unemployed. 

With the help of the state ofNorth Dakota, our students can be more assured of a pathway out of 
poverty, returning many times the investment authorized by SB 221 8. I recommend a DO PASS 
recommendation from the Senate IBL Committee on SB 221 8. 

Thank you for your time. 
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M r. Chairman a nd members of the Committee:  This testimony is given on behalf of the 
North Dakota Association of Tribal Col leges in support of SB 2218. We fi rst want to 
thank the sponsors of this legislation who have put their names on the bi l l  and 
appeared here today. Al l  of these sponsors have visited our Tribal col leges and 
u nderstand their value to our state. 

Our Association i ncludes Cankdeska Cikana Community College in Ft. Totten (Spi rit Lake 
Tribe); Nueta Hidatsa Sahnish Col lege in New Town, (formerly Fort Berthold Commun ity 
Col lege - Three Affi l iated Tribes); Sitting Bul l Col lege in Ft. Yates (Standing Rock Sioux 
Tribe); Turtle Mounta in  Community Col lege in  Belcourt (Turtle Mounta in Band of 
Chippewa), and United Tribes Technical  Col lege, Bismarck, operated by the five Tribes 
with a presence in North Dakota . Our Association is unique in the United States among 
the Tribal col leges, and came about in  part because of a genera l ly favorable working 
relationship with the state of North Dakota and the North Dakota u niversity system .  

What does S B  2218 do? 

SB 2218 is about workforce development and creating jobs for North Dakota citizens, 
particu larly on our Indian reservations where unemployment remains stubborn ly and 
unacceptably high, averaging more than 55%. 1 In addition, our state needs trained 
workers. The North Dakota Tribal Colleges, who wi l l  receive grants under SB 2218, are 
uniquely capable of partnering with the North Dakota department of commerce and 
other state agencies to provide some of the advanced train ing and education for state 
citizens that our state needs.  At the same time, graduates from these tra in ing 
programs wil l  reduce the costs to the state that high unemployment brings - by 
lowering poverty rates and becoming productive, tax-paying North Dakota citizens. 

1 According to 2005 BIA Labor statistics, measuring the percentage of adults who are capable of working but are not 

employed. 

North Da kota Association of Tribal Col leges, 3315 Un iversity Dr., Bismarck, ND 58504 Tel .  70 1-255-3285 
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Why provide state funds to the Tri bal Colleges? 

Other than U nited Tribes Technica l  Col lege, where I am President, which serves the 
enti re state and region, our Tribal Col leges are uniquely situated to serve the local 
population on or near the reservations in a cultura l ly relevant setting. With local h igh 
unemployment rates, it is within this population that workforce development and job 
creation are most needed . Other state and federa l  jobs train ing programs simply have 
not worked. 

Grants provided under SB 2218 wi l l  g ive the Tribal Colleges the abi l ity to create 
programs tai lored to the job needs of North Dakota . It wi l l  a l low students who 
graduate with certificate or degrees, or who are becoming business entrepreneurs, the 
chance to take or create jobs wherever they exist or are needed in our state. These 
grants wi l l  provide significant pathways out of poverty for many of our state citizens. 

Our Triba l col leges are completely qual ified to handle the grants SB 2218 wi l l  provide. 
We are chartered by our Tribal governments as non-profit institutions. We are ful ly 
accredited, using the same process as state higher education i nstitutions. We genera l ly 
provide two year, and in some programs, four year degrees in  a wide variety of 
d iscipl ines, and at an affordable price. We have over 3,000 students in attendance in 
any given semester. Our students genera l ly stay in North Dakota once they graduate. 
In addition, the populations served by the Tribal col leges are growing, with the majority 
of the population under the age of 25. This makes SB 2218 a solid investment in the 
future of our state citizens who l ive on or near our Indian reservations. 

SB 2218 also seeks to bui ld on the good relationship that our Tribal col leges have with 
our state higher education system and the state of North Dakota in genera l .  Our 
students genera l ly would not obtain any higher education except for the Tribal col leges; 
when they want to go further with their education, they often go to the North Dakota 
university system.  

Why can't the federal government o r  the Tri bes provide the needed fu nds? 

Whi le most of the funding for the Tribal col leges comes from the federa l  government, it 
is  now obvious that the federal government cannot supply a l l  of the needs of our 
institutions. Actua l  per student federa l  funding has gone down in the past ten years. 
Further, our Tribal governments are besieged by more immediate problems that require 
using most of their income, such as housing, law enforcement and health care, and 
cannot help our Tribal Colleges on a sustained basis. We also lack large endowment 
funds. This means that without additional funding, our core abi l ity to impact the high 
unemployment we face in our local areas is being reduced . To tackle these problems, 
and to provide our Tribal citizens, who are also North Dakota citizens, a meaningful 
chance for a good job, our Tribal col leges need additional resources. 

2 



Testimony of David M. Gipp 

President, Board of Directors, North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges 

SB 2218 

Jan uary 30, 2013 

How do we know the fu nds wil l  be used wisely? 

SB 2218 ca l ls upon the Tribal col leges to uti l ize information from Job Service and the 
Com merce Department to fashion programs that wi l l  be specifical ly tai lored to meet the 
job tra in ing and job creation needs in our state. It also al lows our col leges to train  
students i n  business development and entrepreneurship, apart from other efforts being 
made by the federa l  and state government, helping to diversify our Triba l economies. 

One of the important uses of the funds is to augment our p lacement programs. These 
efforts help ensure not only that our graduates obta in good paying jobs, but that they 
continue to work after being placed . We are constantly working to i mprove upon 
existing designs, such as the cohort model, to help our students adj ust to .the world of 
work and to escape the cycle of poverty. 

Further, SB 2218 requires the Tribal Col leges to report back to you, as the 
representatives of the citizens of our state, regard ing the impact of the funds 
appropriated and how these funds have been used . We expect that the scrutiny given 
to the Tri ba l Col leges in North Dakota under SB 2218 wi l l  in fact show our capabi l ities 
and that we can produce meaningful results. Again, we are certain that the $10  mi l l ion 
to be appropriated under SB 2218 is a great i nvestment in  the future of our state and 
our state citizens. 

We urge the Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee to give a DO PASS 
recommendation to SB 2218.  We welcome any questions you may have. 
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Mr. Chairman and members of  the Senate IBL Committee, thank you for this opportunity to 
explain and justify a new initiative to help State citizens who live, attend college, and work on 
the Spirit Lake Dakota reservation. Citizens who are more likely to also be members of the Spirit 
Lake Dakota Tribe located in Fort Totten, North Dakota. This new initiative will provide needed 
resources for Cankdeska Cikana (Little Hoop) Community College (CCCC) to expand our role 
in providing higher educational options that includes job training and business development for 
the residents of our reservation community. 

CCCC was chartered by the Spirit Lake Dakota Nation in 1 974 and has graduated over 500 
students with vocational certificates and associate degrees. For the past 1 0  years our community 
college has thrived - we have tripled the campus size and doubled emollment - and we are a 
stable resource for our Tribal community. We are a public institution and accredited like Lake 
Region State College or UND by the Higher Learning Commission and thus maintain similar 
standards for an academic learning institution. 

We recruit only from within the reservation boundaries which includes portions ofBenson, 
Nelson, Ramsey, and Eddy Counties. CCCC averages 240 students a semester including 7- 1 0  
non-Indians, who are manied into our families or are farm and ranch neighbors who live within 
the reservation boundaries. We are accessible and affordable. Our students are typically 26 
years old, low-income females with dependent children. Eighty percent of CCCC students are 
eligible for federal financial aid. (CCCC Institutional Profile 201 2) 

The health, social, and economic disparities touted by the media and various organizations or 
governmental agencies paint a picture ofhopelessness for most reservation c01mnunities. By and 
large, these stories are mostly true but so rooted in history and the colonization of this great 
Country that they must be understood in context. The Spirit Lake Dakota reservation does have 
an unemployment rate of 57  percent and 80 percent of those employed live below the poverty 
guidelines (BIA Labor Force Repo1t 2005). There are close to 400 families on a wait-list for 
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housing (Spirit Lake Housing Director Spring 201 2). We have a 60 percent high school dropout 
rate (ND Department of Public Instruction 201  0) and only 4 percent of our population has 
bachelor degrees compared to NDs 22 percent and the US All Races rate of24 percent 
(Northwest Area Foundation 2006). Yet within these devastating statistics are a people who 
persevere and remain resilient when afforded the chance to improve their life. 

Corrununity-based tribal colleges are funded by the federal government and primarily by the 
Tribally Controlled Community College Assistance Act of 1 978 that is specific for Native 
students only. When enacted the legislation was authorized at $8,000 per FTE (full t ime 
equivalent) and for fiscal year 201 3  we are appropriated at $5,664/FTE.  In comparison, 
mainstream institutions are funded at approximately $ 1 4,000 to $ 1 6,000 per FTE by their 
respective States. Or for another comparison, Howard University (a H istorically Black College) 
is federally funded at $ 1 9,000 per FTE! This demonstrates significant inequity for the tribal 
colleges and Ind ian higher education and we struggle to attain balance (American Ind ian H igher 

- �Education Consortium 201 3  Priorit ies) . 

Members of the Senate IBL Committee, I am seeking your help by making an investment in 
CCCC and North Dakota's tribal colleges. This collaboration would establish a business 
development center at CCCC for the Spirit Lake cmmnunity. The Center would be broad-based 
to meet the needs o f  our Tribe and employers such as Sioux Manufacturing Corp, Spirit Lake 
Housing, the Casino, and others. It will emphasize employment skills and job training as well as 
terminal degree attainment in professions needed on the reservation. 

Tentative areas include trades such as building and maintaining a home, codes and standards for 
homes or businesses, inspectors, construction and heavy equipment operators, or self­
employment opportunities for horne-care services or medical transcription. It would include 
elements of starting a business - business plan, marketing analysis, financing options and 
marketing/promoting a business coupled with an incubator to launch the business. We will spur 
business growth and economic opportunity for the Spirit Lake reservation community through 
the students, who are our hope for the future. The marketing and public relations component of 
business development will afford us the chance to build bridges between cultures using the 
technology advances of social media. 

ecce would provide support to students who have creative ideas that respond to community 
needs - they would be trained, provided internships or apprenticeships, paid a salary, and then 
launched as a self-employed venture. A couple ofbusiness incubator projects specific to CCCC 
are for food preparation and nutrition via a College Cafe and a College Bookstore as an online 
business for Dakota made fine art products such as painted buffalo skulls or painted, hand carved 
wooden horses. I believe these projects would be self-sustaining over the long tenn and thus 
contribute to the health and vitality of both our people and our community. 

Like the other North Dakota tribal colleges, CCCC has strong and positive relationships with 
both the North Dakota University System and the State institutions. We do articulation 
agreements for the transfer of our students for terminal degrees and we partner to bring programs 
of study or vocational courses to our campus. Though SB 22 1 8  is a workforce development bill 
and not an education bill specifically, we would enhance and support the framework of 
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collaborations that currently exist . . .  . i.e. Wahpeton helping CCCC to establish a plumbing 
program or NDSU assisting with food literacy and nutrition via land grant programs or the North 
Dakota Museum of Art on UND campus collaborating for fine arts and the development of an 
online business to sell Dakota made arts and crafts. 

The proposed legislation is a new venture between the State and CCCC to address the social and 
economic disparities on the Spirit Lake reservation. It is an investment with expected returns via 
student self-confidence and self-responsibility along with continued Dakota  cultural 
revitalization that is based on independence and self-sufficiency. The proposed initiative will 
help us to help our people unlearn the dependency way oflife that has been a part of history. It 
provides us the opportunity to participate in the economic growth in North Dakota in a planned 
and cohesive manner as well as to be represented in the State labor force as contributing 
members of  our community. 

3 

I recommend a DO PASS from the Senate IBL Committee on SB 221 8. Thank you for the 
consideration. 
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)> American Ind ians  a re the l a rgest m inority population in North Dakota - 6.4% of the State's 

populat ion (700,000) = 44,800 

)> 55% of th is popu lat ion l ive on a reservation 

)> N Os Native popu lation i ncreased by 22.1% between 2000-2010 

)> G rowth for Native students i n  N O  K-12 schools went from 8% to 13% ( 1990-2010) 

)> There a re 5 reservations i n  N O  with over 3 .8  m i l l ion acres of land 

)> Tribes i nc lude Lakota, Dakota, Ch ippewa, Mandan, Arika ra, and  H idatsa.  

)> Reservation unemp loyment averages 65% 

)> H igh School graduation rate averages 55% 

)> Poverty rate for Benson,  Rolette and Sioux Counties is 33 .6% (average) 
-

!�:· , . : ·. · · · 
Triba l �o l:le�·e·s. a �d · u n ivers ities· (TCUs) · 

· t' ·:. : .  

)> Estab l ished i n  the late 1960s i n  response to lack of opportun ities and success at 

ma instream institutions - affordable, accessib le, and responsive to commun ity needs 

)> Chartered by federa l ly recognized Triba l  governments 

)> Core mission to teach and preserve language and cu ltu re 

)> 36 TCUs i n  15 States with 79 cam pus sites provid ing access to h igher education to over 80 

percent of I nd ian  country 

)> Approximately 20,000 students, p l us another 45,000 CEUs/commun ity education, 20% a re 

non- Ind ian 

: . . · :  �orth qakof� Asso<;i�tion of Triba l  Co l leges ( NDATC) �. " �- ' ·  

)> 5 TCUs i n  North Da kota 
)> Average tuit ion rate $115/credit hour  

)> Approxi mately 3,500 stud ents, inc lud ing 8% non-beneficia ry 

)> All  designated as land grant institutions ( known as 1994s) 
)> Pub l ic, non-profit institutions 

)> Accred ited by the same organ ization and i n  the same manner  as State institutions 
)> Flexib i l ity to provide short-term tra in ing 

)> 85% of triba l  col lege graduates stay i n  N O - on/near reservat ions 
)> Stab le  institutions i n  un ique  position to partner with governments and  organ izations to 

reduce poverty a n d  unemp loyment 
)> Col l aborate with N O  Un iversity System and State i nstitutions 

./ Common Cou rse N u mbering 
./ Academic ca lenda r  
./ Articulat ion Agreements for student transfers 
./ Dua l  Credit for h igh school students 
./ Tech nology/Cyber Connectivity 
./ STEM enhancement -research, weekend/summer academies 

-
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SPIRIT LAKE TRIBE 
OFFICE OF THE TRIBAL CHAIRMAN 

ROGER YANKTON SR. 
P.O. BOX 359 • FORT TOTTEN, NO 58335 • PHONE 701 -766-4221 • FAX 701-766-4126  

January 29, 201 3  

Cynthia Lindquist, PhD 
President 
Carikdeska Cikana Community College 
PO Box 269 
Fort Totten, ND  58335-0269 

Dear Dr. Lindquist: 

The Spirit Lake Dakota Nation continues to be a strong supporter of formal educational initiatives such as 
head start, K-1 2, post-secondary education, and short-term training initiatives .  The Spirit Lake Tribal 
Council recognizes Cankdeska Cikana Community College's (CCCC) as the primary post-secondary 
education i nstitute of our Nation. We are committed to contin ued support of CCCC i n  this role to educate 
and train our next generation of leaders and workforce through academic, continu ing education un its 
(CEUs), and short-term workforce training initiatives. 

Our tribal communities and fami l ies face many challenges that threaten the future of our people such as 
intergenerational trauma, substance abuse, and poverty, rank high in regard to priorities for our Nation . We 
recognize our Dakota culture and formal education are critical to addressing these needs. Research 
indicates those who are knowledgeable in their culture are more likely to succeed academically. 

Tribal members educational needs vary by individual circumstances. Some are in situations where they 
are able .to concentrate on gain ing an education with m in imal barriers for successful completion. The other 
s ide of the d ichotomy is there are those who are single parents, first generation students (meaning their 
parents never achieved a bachelor's degree), and poverty stricken, who have significant barriers to 
completing their education. 

·• 

Training such as the recently completed CCCC Commercial Driver's License (COL) six week program or 
the scheduled Heavy Equipment Operator (HEO) training scheduled for this spring  are examples of short­
term train ing initiatives that will assist our people in gain ing employment immediately. Long term education 
i nitiatives such as the completion of an Associate of Arts degree must also be maintained for those wishing 
to achieve this level o r  go on for completion of  an undergraduate or graduate program. 

The Spi rit Lake Tribal Council and I wish you wel l  in your testim ony to our North Dalo{ota State Legislature to 
gain resources to invest in our tribal members who are also North Dakota citizens. We support "Do Pass" 
for SB 22·1 8, the VVorkforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges. 

Sincerely, 

.! - w_#-- ·-;z_£![f;f� � r 
�ora1Y':nkton si 

Chairman 



SENATE BILL 2218 

Sixty-Third Legislative Assembly 

N.D. Senate I nd ustry, B usi ness & Labor Committee - Senator Klein, Chair 

9:00 pm, Wednesday, January 30, 2013 - Roosevelt Park Room 

Testimony by: Dr. J im L. Davis, President, Turtle Mountain Community Col lege 

Senator Klein and  members of the I BL  Com mittee, thank you for p rovid ing me the opportun ity 

to subm it th is  written testim ony in su pport of Senate B i l l  2218. M y  name is Dr. J i m  Davis, 

P resident of the Turtle Mounta in Community Col lege (TMCC), and  a gra d uate of Dickinson State 

U n iversity, the Pennsylvan ia State U n iversity, and a post-doctoral student at UCLA. 

TMCC is one of six tr ibal  col leges n ational ly who founded the tri ba l  h igher  education movem ent 

in the early 1970s. The found ing m embers responded to a need which was to provide  h igher 

education opportun ities that was not accessible and affordable to N ative American students 

a n d  others with in  our tri ba l  reservation commun ity. S ince 1972, TMCC has provided h igher 

ed ucation opportun ities to over 15,000 students and has graduated wel l  over 3,000 students. 

M any of our graduates h ave gone on to sta rt their own bus iness, b ecome medical d octors, 

lawyers, teachers, nu rses, co l lege/un iversity professors and admin istrators, school 

adm in istrators, and much m ore. In May 2012, TMCC had a record graduation class of 171 

students. Many of our students who graduate from or attend TMCC transfer to N DUS col leges 

a n d  u n iversiti es - a p ipe l ine to our  ma instream institutions in  North Da kota. 

TMCC has  been fu l ly and contin uously accred ited by the Higher Learning Commission s ince 

1984. TMCC offers 38 d ifferent certificate and degree programs  that inc lude 12 Associate of 

Arts d egree programs; 16 Associ ate of Science degree programs; 3 Bachelor of Science 

(Secondary Science, E lementary Education, Early Ch i ldhood ) degree programs; and,  7 

Cert ificate programs. TMCC offers, on average, 250 d ifferent cou rses/cl asses each yea r. 

One of the  pr imary purposes of TMCC is to assist in meet ing the workforce and tra in ing needs 

with in  our  col l ege commun ity and the state. With an unemployment rate of 69.25 percent 

with i n  our col lege com m u n ity and the workforce needs in  the Bakken, opportun it ies for 

emp loyment a re obvious and  p lentifu l .  

For TM CC, the appropriations that is be ing requested under Senate B i l l  2218 wi l l  go to 

supplement and expand cu rrent and futurre workforce tra in i ng, p lacement services, fo l low up 

act iviti es on a l l  graduates assuring they a re emp loyed and rema in  employed, and other re l ated 

costs. In  add ition to our  cu rrent program offerings, the workforce development gra nt wi l l  

p rovide  for certification credenti a l s  i n :  (1 }  Basic Cert ificate of  Tra in ing i n  Oi lfie ld Operat ions :  (2 )  

I ntermediate Certificate of  Tra in ing in  Oi lfie ld Operations; {3 }  Advanced Certificate of Tra in ing  



Senate I n d ustry, Busi ness a n d  Labor Com m ittee 

63rd Legislative Assembly 
State of North Dakota 

Testimony of Sitting Bul l  Col lege 
Laurel Vermi l l ion, President 

in Support of SB 221 8  

Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges 

January 30, 201 3 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: This testimony is g iven on behalf of S itting Bul l  
Col lege (SBC).  

S itting Bul l  Col lege is located on the Standing Rock Reservation which has a total population of 
8 ,21 7 .  Sioux County in North Dakota has a Native American population of 4 , 1 53 .  (Source: US 
Census Bureau,  20 1 0  Demographic Profile Data) SBC was official ly chartered in 1 973 as 
Standing Rock Community Col lege by the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe. Sitt ing Bul l  Col lege 
serves between 300-350 students each semester and offers degrees in certificate , associate, 
and bachelor degrees. 

The purpose of Senate Bi l l  221 8 is to provide grants to the Tribal Col leges for job tra in ing for 
North Dakota and Tribal citizens. 

Standing Rock, based on a 2005 report, has an 86% unemployment rate. (Source: 2005 
American Ind ian Population and Labor Force Report, US Dept. of the I nterior, Bureau of I ndian 
Affai rs, Office of Tribal Services) Grant funding from the State of North Dakota would assist 
SBC in  providing much needed training to help address the high unemployment rate of our 
Tribe. 

If g rant fund ing is received from the State of North Dakota, S itting Bul l  College plans to uti l ize 
the funding to expand our current train ing programs and provide assistance for our student 
support program .  As student numbers increase with this additional tra in ing,  so wi l l  the need for 
additional staff to provide advisement and counseling for our students. Add it ional workspace 
and classrooms wi l l  be another need . 

Currently, SBC has a number of auxi l iary businesses on our campus. These businesses have 
been developed because of the lack of resources avai lable on the Reservation. To date SBC 
has successfu l ly implemented three businesses, includ ing the Transit Service Center, SBC 
Daycare Center, and a water and soil testing lab. With adequate funding ,  SBC would expand 
the creation of businesses to include a much needed cafeteria or food court. It is our plan to 
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provide the needed funding,  generated by SB 22 1 8 , which would al low our current Business 
students to develop a business plan, secure a building or space, and have enough startup 
capital to implement and manage a cafeteria business for our campus. 

S itting Bull College is impacting the Tribal communities on Standing Rock by 
provid ing cont inu ing education un its (CEU) train ing in each community on the Reservation. SBC 
is impacting the K-1 2  schools on Standing Rock by providing Science ,  Technology, 
Eng ineering ,  and Math (STEM) training and hands on lessons for high school students via 
Sunday Academy sessions on our campus. SBC is currently provid ing K- 1 2  teachers with 
professional development and recertification classes. 

The Standing Rock Sioux Tribe has contributed, via a monetary donation ,  to the development 
and construction of the new campus for S itti ng Bul l Col lege. This was a one-time contribution .  
Because the needs of the Reservation are many and the poverty rate is h igh ,  537 fami l ies 
receiving income less than $1 0 ,000 annual ly ,  (Source: Distribution of I ncome by Family and 
Household from Census 2000) the Tribe cannot provide SBC with additiona l  funding on a 
regular basis. 

S itting Bull Col lege is working closely with the Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Train ing Employment 
Resource Office (TERO) in  partnersh ips to provide train ing for community members and our 
students. Future partnership projects with TERO include bui lding trades, rock crush ing ,  
Commercial Drivers License (COL) train ing , and o i l  dri l l i ng school .  Along with th is ,  SBC is 
research ing tra in ing and employment recru itment and retention models that work for Native 
students. One model we are researching is the cohort model .  The cohort model works wel l  for 
Native students and is being used successfu l ly for Native firefighters. Funding from North 
Dakota State g rants can assist in implementing the cohort model in other areas such as oi l  
d ri l l i ng .  This positive retention model can have a huge impact on the retention of North Dakota 
workers located in the oi l  fields or in our North Dakota communities. 

In closing, I want to share a message with you. The Tribal col leges are doing phenomenal work 
on our respective Reservations in North Dakota. The Tribal colleges are a beckon of hope to 
many people, both Native American and non-Native, who are trying to "cl imb out of poverty" and 
help themselves. I know, because being an alumnus of Sitting Bul l  Col lege ,  I would not have 
even attempted to attend college if S itting Bul l  Col lege was not avai lable to me for my higher 
education journey. S itting Bul l  Col lege has provided me, and many others l ike me, an 
opportun ity to experience success and become a contributing member of Standing Rock and 
North Dakota. 

Funding from SB 221 8  wi l l  provide the NO Tribal co l leges with additional dol lars to reach out to 
more people l i ke myself, to g ive hope and inspiration where there may be none, and to provide 
workers who are trained and capable for the much needed workforce of North Dakota . 

I recommend a DO PASS recommendation from the Senate I BL Committee on SB 221 8. Thank 
you for your t ime. 
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Senate I nd ustry, Business and Labor Comm ittee 
63rd Legislative Assembly 

State of North Dakota 

Testimony of Fort Berthold Comm unity College 
Russell D. Mason Jr., President 

in Support of SB 2218 
Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges 

Jan uary 30, 2013 

Good morning Chairman Klein and members of the Committee: This testimony is presented on behalf of Fort Berthold 
Community Col lege (FBCC). 

I have served as FBCC President since 2004, and have served in various roles in college and university operations through 
my 26 years with FBCC. 

Fort Berthold Community College is accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges·and Schools since 1 987. 
This coming May FBCC will be celebrating its 401h anniversary of providing quality cultural, academic, and vocational 
education and services to the Fort Berthold Reservation and surrounding region. Our main campus is located in New 
Town, North Dakota, and is in the center of the historic Bakken Oil Boom. 

Fort Berthold Community College has an open admissions policy that grants admissions to all individuals regardless of 
ethnicity. During academic year 20 1 1 -20 1 2, 1 5  percent of our enrollment was Non-Indian students. FBCC offers 
Vocational Certificates, Associate Degrees, and Bachelor Degrees. 

welcomes and has established successful partnerships through articulation agreements. FBCC is a full partner in 
Dakota Nursing Program; as such, our instructors provide Nursing courses over the IVN system to Non-Native 

students as well at four state Colleges, including Williston State College, Bismarck State College, Dakota Col lege at 
Bottineau, and Lake Region State College. Most impotiantly for our students, FBCC participates in Common Course 
Numbering with the Nmth Dakota University System (NDUS), which facilitates transfer of courses. Our General 
Education courses are included in the Gold Pages of the NDUS manual, guaranteeing that these courses will be accepted 
in transfer by any State College in North Dakota. 

Presently our col lege finds itself accelerating its effmts to prepare students for existing and emerging fields related to the 
oil industry. A profound need exists on the Fmi Be1ihold Indian Reservation, and in surrounding communities, for a 
venue to prepare, train, and elevate skill levels of both young students and older professionals. FBCC fulfills this need, 
and FBCC would benefit greatly from passage of SB 22 1 8  by gaining the necessary resources to meet this growing need. 

Our institution is expanding and offering programs designed to provide cutting edge educational professional 
development, energy technology training, career readiness, and research. Passage of SB 22 1 8  will provide an immediate 
impact on FBCC, the entire Tribe, the surrounding community, and ultimately the State ofNorth Dakota. 

SB 22 1 8  as a statute has the capabil ity to become a vehicle to ensure historical cooperation and collaboration between 
tribal, state, and federal agencies, and institutions. 

FBCC strongly supports Senate Bill  No. 22 1 8  and urges suppmi of the bill by the Industry, Business, and Labor 
Committee. SB 22 1 8  has broad based support throughout all of North Dakota's Tribal Col leges, and is reviewed as a 
crucial step in the progression of state and tribal collaborations. 

mnnPrlf1 a DO PASS recommendation from the Senate Industry, Business, and Labor Committee on SB 22 1 8 . Thank 
you for your time. 
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SENATE B I LL 2218 � -/j -/.3 
Sixty-Third Legislative Assembly 

N.D. Senate Appropriations Committee - Senator Hol m berg, Chair 

10:00 am, Wednesday, February 13, 2013 - Harvest Room 

Testimony by: Dr. Jim L. Davis, President, Turtle Mountain Comm u n ity College 

Senator Ho lmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Com mittee, thank you for 

provid ing me the opportunity to submit this written testimony in support of Senate B i l l  2218. 

My name is Dr. J im Davis, President of the Turtle Mountain Commun ity Col lege (TMCCL a n d  a 

graduate of Dickinson State University, the Pennsylvania State Univers ity, and  a post-doctoral 

stu d ent at UCLA. I am an enrol led member of the Turtle M ountain Band of Chippewa. 

Prior to the 1970s, there were less than ten triba l  members who had a bachelor's d egree at 

Turtle Mountain .  In the 1970s and thereafter, th ings began to change. TMCC is one of six t ri ba l  

col leges nationa lly who founded the tribal h igher education movement i n  the early 1970s. The 

founding members responded to a n eed which was to provide h igher education opportun it ies 

that wou ld be  accessible and affordable to Native American students and  others with in  our  

triba l  reservation community. Since 1972, TMCC has provided h igher education opportun it ies 

to over 15,000 students and has graduated wel l  over 3,000 students. M any of our  grad uates 

have gone on to start their own bus iness, become medical doctors, l awyers, teachers, n u rses, 

col lege/university professors and admin istrators, K-12 school admin i strators, welders, h o m e  

bui lders/carpenters a n d  m uch more. In M ay 2012, TMCC had a record graduation class o f  171 

stu dents. M any of our students who graduate from or attend TMCC tra n sfer to NDUS's col leges 

and un iversities - a pipeline to other col leges and un iversities in N orth Dakota. 

TM CC has been fu l ly and continuous ly accredited by the Higher Lea rn i ng Com mission s i nce 

1984. TMCC offers 38 d ifferent certificate and degree programs  that inc lude 12 Associate of 

Arts d egree programs; 16 Associate of Science degree programs; 3 Bache lor  of Science 

(Secondary Science, Elementary Education, Early Chi l dhood) degree programs; a nd, 7 
Certificate p rograms. TMCC offers more than 250 different courses/classes each year. 

One of the p rimary purposes of TMCC is to assist in meeting the workforce and tra in ing needs 

with in  our col lege community and the state. With an unemployment rate of 69.25 percent 

with in  our col lege commun ity and the workforce needs in the Bakken, opportunit ies for 

tra i n ing and employment are obvious and p lentifu l .  

For TMCC, the appropriations that is being req uested under Sen ate Bi l l  2218 is expected to 

supp lement and expand current and future workforce train ing p rograms, provide job 

p lace ment services, fo l low up activities on al l graduates assuring they are employed and rem a in 
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emp loyed, and other related costs. Graduation and job placement will be very important in our 

efforts to meet the demands and goofs of our students and the workforce training n eeds within 

North Dakota. Cu rrently, TMCC has a Job Placement Officer who has been working i n  th is area 

to ass ist graduates with p lacement needs. I f  more fund ing  was ava i lab le, TMCC wou l d  h i re one 

or two additiona l  p l acement officers to assist with p lacement needs thereby assur ing more of 

our col lege graduates were taking jobs off the reservat ion.  

In add ition to our  current program offerings, the workforce development grant wi l l  p rovide for 

cert ification credent ia ls i n :  (1 )  Basic Cert ificate of Tra in ing in Oi lfie ld  Operations: (2 )  

I ntermed iate Certificate of Train ing i n  Oi lfie ld Operations; (3 )  Advanced Cert ificate of  Tra in ing 

i n  Oi lfie ld  Operations; and, (4) Associate Degree Certification in Oi lfie ld Operations .  With in a 

two year span we ant icipate enrol l ing at least 100 students. Of those 100 students, we expect 

to graduate and p lace at least 80 students. The positive impact on our commun ity and  state 

wi l l  result in lower ing the loca l unemployment rate and help address the  workforce needs 

th roughout the state especia l ly in  the o i l  producing count ies in western North Dakota. 

The North Dakota Association of Triba l  Co l leges (N DATC), in  which TMCC is a mem ber, is near 

complet ion of an economic impact study. This report wi l l  be avai lab le with in  a few days . The 

economic impact stu dy report is incl usive of a l l  five tr ibal col leges in N o rth D akota . The 

unofficial report i nd icates that tribal co l leges have a $145,000,000 economic impact i n  North 

Dakota. 

It sho u ld a lso be noted and emphasized here that N DATC has been a great p a rtner with the N D  

Un ivers ity System over t h e  past few years. Numerous partnersh ips a n d  col l abo rations have 

been agreed to and i mp lemented. With an  enacted SB-2218, it wi l l  p rovid e  NDATC and its 

respective triba l  co l leges opportunities to create and p u rsue partnersh ips i nvolvi ng the N D  

Department of Commerce and the respective Triba l  governments. I n  co l l aboration with our  

tr ibe and the commerce department, opportun ities to bring ind ustry a n d  jobs to the 

reservation wou ld be a strong possib i l ity. I nstead of the 100 or more jobs created a s  a resu lt of 

SB-2218, residual jobs can be generated through a strong partnersh ip of the three ent it ies. At 

Turtle Mountain I be l ieve th is is a great opportunity for th is  partnership to create m a ny jobs. 

The retu rn on invest ( RO I )  for North Dakota in the short and long term wi l l  be substantial .  I n  

d u e  t ime, the graduates wi l l  b e  earn ing from $20,000 to $50,000 annua l ly with o utcomes of 

becoming self-susta in i ng/rel iant and contri b uting members of society. 

I recommend a do pass by the Senate Appropriations Com mittee on SB-2218. Than k  you. 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

63rd Legislative Assembly 

State ofNorth Dakota 

Testimony of Cynthia Lindquist, PhD, President 

Cankdeska Cikana Community College 

In Support of SB 2218 
Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges 

February 1 3, 20 1 3  

Mr. Chairman and members ofthe Senate Appropriations Committee, thank you for the 

opportunity to provide testimony in support of SB 22 1 8, a workforce development grant program 

for tribal colleges that would be administered by North Dakota's Department of Commerce. 

Higher education and training is an investment in people. This new initiative would invest in a 

segment ofNorth Dakota's population with high unemployment, lack of jobs, and significant 

social and economic disparities when compared with the rest of the State. There are various 

reports that speak to the value of quality education and how providing opportunities makes a 

difference in peoples' lives. Employability, earning potential, insurability, less stress and 

healthier lifestyle choices are all l inked to the benefits of higher education or training. 

Tribal colleges are a stable resource for those who live on or near the reservation. CCCC is 

chartered by the Spirit Lake Dakota Nation ( 1 974) as a non-profit, public institution and is 

accredited by the Higher Learning Commission - the same organization that accredits the 

University ofNorth Dakota or the other State institutions. Cankdeska Cikana Community 

College (CCCC) has had ten consecutive years of unqualified audits (no findings) and we 

provide an annual report to our stakeholders that showcase our students and programs for 

accountability purposes. 

SB 22 1 8  is a new venture for the State ofNorth Dakota to lend a helping hand to a segment of 

the State's population that has lagged behind mainstream society for reasons that are part of 

history. Tribal colleges and universities (TCUs) were established to  provide opportunities to 

Native students but we also serve non-Indians. We are very affordable and accessible. TCUs are 

also flexible and 'shovel ready' to initiate projects . 

------------- Think Dakota • Live Dakota 



• 

• 

• 

With funding provided by SB 221 8, CCCC would provide training or educational programs for 

students that reflect employer needs for the region. We would establish a business development 

center for our community that would be broad in scope to meet the needs of the Tribe and 

employers such as S ioux Mfg. Corp. or Spirit Lake Housing Authority. It will emphasize 

employment skills and job training as well as terminal degree attainment in professions that will 

assist in diversifying the reservation economy. 

The Center would include trades such as building and maintaining a home, codes and standards 

for homes or businesses, inspectors, construction or heavy equipment operators, renewable 

energy or green job, or self-employment business for home care providers or medical 

transcription or food services. The Center would provide training on starting a business ­

planning, marketing analysis, fmancing options, PR and promotion coupled with an incubator 

period in partnership with the College to assist in launching the new venture. We will spur 

business growth and economic opportunity for the Spirit Lake reservation community that has an 

employable workforce of approximately 3,500 (Bureau of lndian Affairs, Labor Force Report 

2005). 

SB 22 1 8  is an irmovative program that will strengthen relationships between the tribal co lleges 

and the State institutions but also create new partnerships with other State agencies and private 

business to determine industry needs. Placement services will be a component of the initiative as 

well as striving for long-term sustainability for any business created via the initiative. The goal 

is to produce a highly skilled labor pool for the local and regional businesses. 

A theme for CCCC is 'Start Here, Go Anywhere' and SB 22 1 8  is an opportunity to make that 

happen for the students and people of our community. 

I urge the Senate Appropriations Committee to give a DO PASS recommendation to SB 22 1 8  

and thank you for the consideration . 

______________ Think Dakota • Live Dakota 
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February 1 3, 2013 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee : This testimony is given on behalf of United 
Tribes Technical College, located in Bismarck, North Dakota. 

United Tribes started out as United Tribes ofNorth Dakota Development Corporation in 1 968 .  
The vision of the founders was to create more economic opportw1ity for tribal citizens, both on 
and off the reservations ofNorth Dakota. They wanted an institution that provided a residential, 
family-centered learning community where American Indian people could access education 
opportw1ities and obtain employment. 

Our institution has evolved over the years to reflect the founders' visions, providing not only 
postsecondary education and workforce training, but also individual and social skil ls 
development in a culturally-relevant setting. Now, United Tribes, a fully accredited institution, 
provides 3 kinds of Workforce Training certificates, 24 Associate Degree programs, and 3 
Bachelor Degree programs, and more than 1 25 individuals receive diplomas or certificates 
annually. Eighty-six percent (86%) of our students are Native American. Many of our students 
are the first in their family to obtain any kind of higher education. Our students are young, with 
an average age of 24, and 50% have dependents. 

But we know we can do better. American Indians are seeking access to higher education 
opportunities because of personal aspirations, family socio-economic needs, workforce and 
employment trends. Changing technologies, physical stmcture adaptations, and institutional 
developments are challenges that shape the educational landscape for UTTC, challenges that 
need additional resources. 

Yet, the federal resources upon which we largely depend are not keeping pace with the needs of 
the 2 1 51 century. While our student population has increased, funding in actual dollars has stayed 
constant, reducing the per student amount substantially. This has meant that we have had to 
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defer investments that can allow us to offer first class technical education for Nmth Dakota 
citizens who want the jobs that are now available in North Dakota' s  growing economy; students 
who want to stay in N orth Dakota have had to leave because of the cost of housing. Our 
educational resources are stretched beyond their limits. 

The grants offered by SB 221 8  can help United Tribes and our sister Tribal colleges meet the 
challenges of the 2 1 st century work force for North Dakota and its Tribal citizens in several 
ways : 

• First, the funds can be used to design and implement new programs needed in North 
Dakota's new economic landscape. We want to use the funds for business incubator 
programs that encourage entrepreneurship. New business help the reservation economies 
diversify. We also want to expand programs that are needed today in North Dakota's  
economy - and not just the oil patch jobs, but those that provide economic support, such 
as in hospitality management and culinary arts . 

• Second, the funds can be used to improve and assure the quality of existing programs. In 
addition to all of the technical skills needed in the oil patch, many ofNorth Dakota's 
communities need more law enforcement officers, nurses, trained construction workers, 
teachers and small businesses, all of which are programs that present exist at United 
Tribes. 

• Third, the funds will allow UTTC to continue to recruit, develop, and retain faculty 
qualified to teach students the necessary trade skills to successfully complete academic 
requirements and demonstrate skill competency. 

• Fourth, our students need additional scholarship funds. This is especially true with the 
very difficult housing market in Bismarck. where the cost of rental properties has doubled 
or more in the past couple of years . 

• Finally, the funds can enhance our infrastructure and capacity to provide the programs 
designed for students to enter the workforce. United Tribes occupies an old Army base, 
mostly in buildings constructed more than 1 00 years ago, so deferred maintenance is a 
constant barrier to student success. 

In addition, SB 22 1 8  fits nicely with existing College resources and programs.  United Tribes, 
similar to the other Tribal colleges in North Dakota, received a one-time three year grant from 
the U.S.  Department of Labor for providing specific certificates in some key employment areas 
needed in this region. The funds are provided under a tariff on imported goods that is to be used 
to train workers displaced by jobs that have been moved from the United States to other 
countries; it is the intention of the grant we have received that our programs become permanent. 
One such program is welding. Funds from SB 22 1 8  can help continue the kinds of training 
oppotiunities offered by the Department of Labor grant for American Indian students in our 
regwn. 
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United Tribes will  continue to press for adequate federal funding. We are not seeking additional 
funds to replace the federal funding we receive, but merely to supplement it. We do know that 
our graduates generally stay in North Dakota and are able to lead productive lives as tax-paying 
citizens, contributing greatly to the welfare of our state. Collectively, our North Dakota Tribal 
Colleges have conducted an economic impact study that shows we make a significant 
contribution to this state; and United Tribes has a similar kind of study showing a 20- 1 
investment ratio; that is, one dollar invested in United Tribes brings twenty dollars in earnings to 
the student who graduates from our College. We believe the payback from the investment of 
state funds in our Tribal colleges is similar - as students are educated they are less l ikely to be on 
welfare, to end up in the state penitentiary, or to be unemployed. 

With the help of the state of North Dakota, our students can be more assured of a pathway out of 
poverty, returning many times the investment authorized by SB 22 1 8 . I recommend a DO PASS 
recommendation from the Senate Appropriations Committee on SB 22 1 8 . 

Thank you for your time. 

3 
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February 13, 2013 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee : This testimony is given on behalf of the 
North Dakota Association of Tribal Col leges in  support of SB 2218.  We first want to 
thank the sponsors of this legislation who have put their names on the bi l l  and some of 
whom appeared here today. Al l of these sponsors have visited our Tribal col leges and 
understand their value to our state. 

Our Association includes Cankdeska Cikana Community College in Ft. Totten (Spirit Lake 
Tribe); Nueta Hidatsa Sahnish Col lege in New Town, (formerly Fort Berthold Commun ity 
Col lege - Three Affi l iated Tribes); Sitting Bul l  Col lege in  Ft. Yates (Stand ing Rock Sioux 
Tribe); Turtle Mountain Community Col lege in  Belcourt (Turtle Mounta in Band of 
Chippewa), and United Tribes Technical Col lege, Bismarck, operated by the five Tribes 
with a presence in North Dakota . Our Association is unique in the United States among 
the Tribal colleges, and came about in  part because of a general ly favorable working 
relationship with the state of North Dakota and the North Dakota university system. 

es SB 2218 do?� 
SB 2218 is about workforce development and creating jobs for North Dakota citizens, 

particularly on our Indian reservations where unemployment remains stubbornly and 

unacceptably high, averaging more than 55%. 1 In addition, our state needs tra ined 

workers. The North Dakota Tribal Col leges, who wi l l  receive grants under SB 22 18, are 

un iquely capable of partnering with the North Dakota department of commerce and 

other state agencies to provide some of the advanced tra in ing and education for our 

citizens that our state of North Dakota needs. At t�e same time, graduates from these 

tra in ing programs wi l l  reduce the costs to the stall�' that high u nemployment brings - by 

loweri ng poverty rates and becoming productive,-t�x-paying North Dakota citizens. 

1 According t o  2005 BIA Labor statistics, measuring the percentage o f  adults who are capable of working b u t  are not 
employed. 

North D akota Association of Tribal Colleges, 3315 U n iversity Dr., Bisma rck, ND 58504 Tel. 701-255-3285 
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Why provide state funds to the Tri bal Colleges? 

Other than Un ited Tribes Technical Col lege, where I am President, which serves the 
enti re state and region, our Tribal Colleges are un iquely situated to serve the loca l 
population on or near the reservations in  a cultural ly relevant setting. With local h igh 
unemployment rates, i t  is within this population that workforce development and job 
creation a re most needed . 

Grants provided under SB 2218 wi l l  g ive the Tribal Col leges the abi l ity to create 
programs tai lored to the job needs of North Dakota . It wi l l  a l low students who 
graduate with certificate or degrees, or who are becoming business entrepreneurs, the 
chance to take or create jobs wherever they exist or are needed in our state. Tra in ing 
gives our students a choice to go where thei r train ing wil l  lead them. Our students are 
increasingly mobile, and they want to work where the jobs are located . These grants 
wi l l  provide sign ificant pathways out of poverty for many of our state citizens. 

Our Triba l col leges are completely qual ified to handle the grants SB 2218 wil l  provide. 
We are chartered by our Tribal governments as non-profit institutions. We are ful ly 
accredited, using the same process as state higher education institutions. We genera l ly 
provide two year, and in  some programs, four  year degrees in  a wide variety of 
discip l ines, and at an affordable price. We have over 3,000 students in attendance i n  
any given semester. Our students general ly stay in North Dakota once they graduate. 
In addition, the populations served by the Tribal colleges are growing, with the majority 
of the population under the age of 25 . This makes SB 2218 a sol id i nvestment i n  the 
future of our state citizens who l ive on or near our Indian reservations. 

SB 2218 a lso seeks to bui ld on the good relationship that our Tribal col leges have with 
our state h igher education system and the state of North Dakota in genera l .  Our 
students general ly wou ld not obtain any higher education except for the Tribal col leges; 
when they want to go further with their education, they most often enter the North 
Dakota university system. 

We know that funds provided under SB 22 18 wi l l  not solve a l l  of the unemployment 
problems in our reservation communities. But we believe that it can be a great start, i n  
part because one of  the uses of  funds wi l l  be providing assistance to business start-u ps 
for students. Increasingly, the reservations and Tribal communities are seeking a 
diverse economy to begin to drive down unemployment and welfare dependence. 
Starting a business is one sign ificant way to reduce unemployment. 
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Why can't the federal government or the Tribes provide the needed funds? 

While most of the funding for the Tribal col leges comes from the federa l government, it 
is now obvious that the federa l government cannot supply al l of the needs of our 
institutions. Actual per student federal fund ing has gone down in the past ten years. 
Further, our Tribal governments are besieged by more immediate problems that requ i re 
using most of their income for infrastructure and other immediate human needs, such 
as housing, law enforcement and health care, and cannot help our Tribal Col leges on a 
sustained basis. We also lack large endowment funds. This means that without 
additional funding, our core abi l ity to impact the high unemployment we face i n  our 
local areas is being reduced. To tackle these problems, and to provide our Tribal 
citizens, who are also North Dakota citizens, a meaningful chance for a good job, our  
Tribal col leges need additional resources. 

How do we know the funds will  be used wisely? 

SB 2218 ca l ls  upon the Tribal col leges to uti l ize information from Job Service and the 
Commerce Department to fashion programs that wi l l  be specifical ly tai lored to meet the 
job tra in ing and job creation needs in our state. It a lso a l lows our col leges to tra in  
students in  business development and entrepreneurship, apart from other efforts being 

U made by the federal and state government, helping to diversify our Tribal economies. 

One of the important uses of the funds is to augment our p lacement programs. These 
efforts help ensure not only that our graduates obta in good paying jobs, but that they 
continue to work after being placed . We are constantly working to i mprove upon 
existing designs, such as the cohort model, to help our students adjust to the world of 
work a nd to escape the cycle of poverty. 

Further, SB 2218 requires the Tribal Col leges to report back to you, as the 
representatives of the citizens of our state, regarding the impact of the funds 
appropriated and how these funds have been used . We expect that the scrutiny given 
to the Tribal Col leges in North Dakota under SB 22 18 wi l l  in fact show our capabi l ities 
and that we can produce meaningful results. Again, we are certain that the 
appropriation under SB 2218 is a great investment in the future of our state and our 
state citizens. 

We urge the Senate Appropriations Committee to give a DO PASS recommendation to 
SB 2218 .  We welcome any questions you may have. 

3 



• � American Ind ians  a re the largest m inority popu lation in North Dakota - 6.4% of the State's 

population {700,000) = 44,800 

� 55% of this population l ive on a reservat ion 

� N Ds Native popu lation i ncreased by 22 .1% between 2000-2010 

� G rowth for N ative students in N D  K-12 schools went from 8% to 13% { 1990-2010) 

� There a re 5 reservations i n  N D  with over 3 .8  m i l l ion acres of land 

� Tribes inc lude Lakota, Dakota, Ch ippewa, Mandan, Arikara, and H idatsa . 

� Reservation unemployment averages 65% 

� H igh School graduation rate averages 55% 

� Poverty rate for Benson, Rolette and Sioux Counties is 33 .6% (average) 

� Estab l ished i n  the late 1960s i n  response to lack of opportun ities and success at 

ma instream institutions - affordable, accessib le, and responsive to commun ity needs 

� Chartered by federa l ly recognized Triba l  governments 

� Core m ission to teach and preserve language and cu lture 

� 36 TCUs in 15 States with 79 cam pus sites provid ing access to h igher education to over 80 

percent of Ind ian  country 

� Approximately 20,000 students, p lus another 45,000 CEUs/commun ity education, 20% a re 

non- I nd ian 

� 5 TCUs i n  North Dakota 
� Average tuit ion rate $115/credit hour  

� Approxi mately 3,500 students, inc lud ing 8% non-benefic iary 

� All  designated as land grant institutions (known as 1994s) 
� Pub l ic, non-profit institutions 

� Accred ited by the same organ ization and i n  the same manner  as State i nstitutions 
� Flexib i l ity to provide short-term tra in ing 

� 85% of tri ba l  col lege graduates stay i n  N D - on/near reservations 
� Stab le i nstitutions in u n ique  posit ion to partner with govern ments and organ izations to 

reduce poverty and u nemployment 

� Col laborate with N D  Un iversity System and State institutions 
./ Com mon Cou rse N u m bering 
./ Academic ca lendar  
./ Articu lation Agreements for student transfers 
./ Dua l  Credit for h igh school students 
./ Tech nology/Cyber Connectivity 
./ STEM enhancement -research, weekend/summer academies 

NDA TC Message Points 1129113 Page /of I 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: This testimony is g iven on behalf of Sitt ing Bul l  
College (SBC). 

S itting Bul l  Col lege is located on the Standing Rock Reservation which has a total population of 
8,2 1 7 . S ioux County in North Dakota has a Native American populat ion of 4, 1 53.  (Source: US 
Census Bureau, 201 0  Demographic Profi le Data) SBC was official ly chartered in  1 973 as 
Standing Rock Community College by the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe . S itting Bul l College 
serves between 300-350 students each semester and offers degrees in certificate, associate, 
and bachelor programs. 

The purpose of Senate Bill 221 8  is to provide grants to the Tribal Col leges for job tra in ing for 
North Dakota and Tribal citizens. 

Standing Rock, based on a 2005 report, has an 86% unemployment rate. (Source: 2005 
American Indian Population and Labor Force Report, US Dept. of the I nterior, Bureau of I ndian 
Affai rs, Office of Tribal Services) Grant funding from the State of North Dakota would assist 
SBC in providing much needed train ing to help address the high unemployment rate of our 
Tribe. 

If grant funding is received from the State of North Dakota, Sitting Bul l  Col lege plans to uti l ize 
the funding to expand our current train ing programs and provide assistance for our student 
support program. As student numbers increase with this additional tra in ing,  so wi l l  the need for 
additional staff to provide advisement and counsel ing for our students. Add it ional workspace 
and classrooms wil l  be another need. 

Currently, SBC has a number of auxi l iary businesses on our campus. These businesses have 
been developed because of the lack of resources avai lable on the Reservation.  To date SBC 
has successfu l ly implemented three businesses, including the Transit Service Center, SBC 
Daycare Center, and a water and soil testing lab. With adequate funding , SBC would expand 
the creat ion of businesses to include a much needed cafeteria or food court. It is our plan to 
provide the needed funding , generated by SB 22 1 8, which would al low our current Business 
students to develop a business plan, secure a bui ld ing or space, and have enough startup 
capital to implement and manage a cafeteria business for our campus. 



Sitt ing Bul l  Col lege is impacting the Tribal communities on Standing Rock by 
provid ing continuing education units (CEU) train ing in each community on the Reservation. SBC 
is impacting the K- 1 2  schools on Standing Rock by providing Science, Technology, 
Engineering,  and Math (STEM) tra in ing and hands-on lessons for high school students via 
Sunday Academy sessions on our campus. SBC is currently providing K-1 2  teachers with 
professional development and recertification classes. 

The Standing Rock Sioux Tribe has contributed, via a monetary donation , to the development 
and construction of the new campus for S itting Bull Col lege. This was a one-t ime contribution .  
Because the needs of the Reservation are many and the poverty rate is h igh ,  537 fami l ies 
receiving income less than $ 1 0 ,000 annual ly ,  (Source : Distribution of Income by Fami ly and 
Household from Census 2000) the Tribe cannot provide SBC with additional funding on a 
regular basis. 

S itting Bul l Col lege is working closely with the Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Tra in ing Employment 
Resource Office (TERO) in partnersh ips to provide tra in ing for community members and our 
students. Future partnership projects with TERO include bui ld ing trades, rock crushing ,  
Commercial Drivers License (COL) tra in ing , and oi l  dri l l ing schoo l .  

Along with this, SBC is research ing tra in ing and employment recru itment and retention models 
that work for Native students. One model we are researching is the cohort/crew model. The 
cohort/crew model works wel l  for Native students and is being used successful ly for Native 
firefighters. Funding from North Dakota State grants can assist in implementing  the cohort/crew 
model i n  other areas such as oi l  dri l l ing .  Th is positive retention model can have a huge impact 
on the retention of North Dakota workers located in the o i l  fields or in our North Dakota 
communities. 

The needs of each of the TCUs in North Dakota are s imi lar in  some areas and very different and 
un ique in others. Because of  this uniqueness, each of the TCUs has their own set of  priorities 
based on their current infrastructure and resources. Th is is the reasoning for the flexib i l ity of the 
funding request. Each of the North Dakota TCUs has a plan to uti l ize the funding from SB 221 8  
that wi l l  address the h igh unemployment on each of our reservations. The focus for this funding 
is to train and educate members from our communities for the North Dakota work force . 

I n  clos ing , I want to share a message with you. The Tribal col leges are doing phenomenal work 
on our respective reservations in North Dakota. The Tribal col leges are a beckon of hope to 
many people, both Native American and non-Native , who are trying to "cl imb out of poverty" and 
help themselves. I know, because being an alumnus of S itti ng Bul l  Col lege, I would not have 
even attempted to attend college if Sitting Bul l  College was not avai lable to me for my h igher 
education journey. S itting Bull College has provided me, and many others l ike me, an 
opportun ity to experience success and become a contributing member of Stand ing Rock and 
North Dakota . 

Funding from SB 22 1 8  wil l  provide the NO Tribal col leges with additional dol lars to reach out to 
more people l i ke myself, to g ive hope and inspiration where there may be none, and to provide 
workers who are trained and capable for the much needed workforce of North Dakota. 

I recommend a DO PASS recommendation from the Senate Appropriations Committee on SB 
221 8 . Thank you for your time. 
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Good morn ing Chairman Holmberg and members of the NO State Senate Appropriations Committee. 

Funding for Fort Berthold Community College (FBCC) Career Techn ical Education will be critical over 

the next decade for the following reasons. Industry relevant train ing must adapt and remain current 

to industry needs to ensu re continu ity and integrity of strong workforce development. 

At the core of that training is the need for facilities and housing to keep pace with ongoing 

development in  the Bakken .  Adequate facilities to house train ing and viable infrastructure to support 

it and staff will be an expensive ,  ongoing and a paramount need . It will take multiple resources to 

accomplish adequate tra in ing facilities and infrastructure for Diesel-COL, Oil Field Tech, Weld ing and 

Construction train ing and keep them adaptable and relevant. 

As elsewhere in North Dakota, existing space to expand without construction is non-existent. 

Housing d ilemmas in western North Dakota are well known . FBCC is experienci ng the same staff 

housing shortages and over-crowding of existing facilities that are commonplace in  Western NO at 

the current t ime. 

It is unrealistic to th ink that one funding source can accomplish these primary workforce development 

needs. A look around the state will confirm that. Every institution provid ing tra in ing accomplishes 

that goal from multiple resources. It is common and prudent to do so. 

Collaboration is at the heart of the FBCC workforce development effort. Currently, FBCC has an 

extremely strong start in meeting workforce development needs. FBCC participates in  a consortium 
FBCC Testimony Page 1 



with Bismarck State
' 
College (BSC) , Williston State College (WSC), Sitting Bull College (SBC) and 

Turtle Mountain Commun ity College (TMCC) to expand and improve train ing .  It goes a long way in 

adj usting and adapting the delivery systems of training for tribal members and workers in Western 

NO . This grant project is known as TREND:  Train ing for Regional Energy in NO.  

However, the add itional tra in ing challenges tax both space and infrastructure of the college .  Bu ild ing 

and facility changes will need to take place to ensure contin u ity and adaptation as future demands of 

the oil and related industries change as it is known they will over time. 

Oil field and related industry needs are pred icted to remain strong for years to come. FBCC is 

strateg ically located to provide that tra in ing right in the heart of the Bakken .  Facility growth will be at 

the core of this development to expand and improve tra in ing .  

Neither the need to adapt to workforce development nor the need for adequate funding sources is 

static. Collaboration of all entities will be paramount for the success of citizens of our state . It should 

be viewed as such . 

2 
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Mr. Chairman and members ofthe Committee: This testimony is g iven on behalfofthe· 
North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges i n  support of SB 2218. We first want ta.;•J. , ; , .' : ' · 

thank the sponsors of this legislation who have put their names on the bi l l  and some of • 
whom appeared here today. All .of these sponsors have visited our Tribal col leges ·and· 
understand their value to our state. 

Our Association includes Cankdeska Cikana Community College in  Ft. Totten (Spirit Lake 
Tribe); Nueta Hidatsa Sahnish Col lege in  New Town, (formerly Fort Berthold Community 
College - Three Affil iated Tribes); Sitting Bul l  College in  Ft. Yates (Standing Rock Sioux 
Tribe); Turtle Mountain Community College in Belcourt (Turtle Mountain Band of 
Chippewa), and United Tribes Technical College, Bismarck, operated by the five Tribes 
with a presence in North Dakota. Our Association is unique in the United States among 
the Tribal col leges, and came about in part because of a general ly favorable working 
relationship with the state of North Dakota and the North Dakota u niversity system .  

What does SB 2218 do? 

SB 2218 is about workforce development and creating jobs for North Dakota citizens, 
particularly on our Indian reservations where unemployment remains stubbornly and 
unacceptably high, averaging more than 55%.1 In addition, our state needs trained 
workers. The North Dakota Tribal Colleges, who wil l  receive grants under SB 2218, are 
uniquely capable of partnering with the North Dakota department of commerce and 
other state agencies to provide some of the advanced training and education for our 
citizens that our state of North Dakota needs. At the same time, gra duates from these 
training programs will reduce the costs to the state that high unemployment brings - by 
lowering poverty rates and becoming productive, tax-paying North Dakota citizens. 

1 According to 2005 BIA Labor statistics, measuring the percentage of adults who are capable of working but are not 
employed. 
North Dakota Association of Triba l Colleges, 33 15 U niversity Dr., Bismarck, ND 58504 Tel .  701-255-3285 
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Why provide state funds to the Tribal Colleges? 

.. Other than United Tribes Technical Col lege,_ where I 13m Pr�sident, which serves:the -. .  , : · 

· · entire state a'rfd region, our Tribal Colleges a're untqu�ly situ13ted to serve the local . . . : : .. 

population on or near the reservation� in  cL�UI:twraliY,: relevant setting. With. local high ·. · · · · · · · >- ; '. /, 
unemployment rates, it is within this population that workforce development and job. . .  · 

creation a re most needed. - . .  · . : .. . - ..:·_, - : ,, 
r : . : . ·.!:: • ,  • •  

Grants provided under SB2218 will give the:.Tribat·Col leges the abi l ity to create · · · . ,  · ::·,;:-,· . .- · ' ·· 

programs tailored to the job. needs of.North�Dakota. - It wi l l  al low students,who · ·: · - · ·: : ; : _  , . . r.:·::< 

graduate with certificate or degrees/or who-are becoming business entrepreneurs, the :· .:::� · :-·r ·  -·v · 

chance to take or create-jobs wherever they exist or are needed in  our state. Trainin g' :. - • ;::· · .:- , : 
gives our students a choice to go where their traini ng will lead them .  Our students are . . . : : . .. . _ 

increasingly mobile, and-they want to work where the jobs are located. These grants · , . : -. - · ,,_ · 

wil l  provide sig nificant pathWays out of poverty for many of our state citizens. - ., :;: ... : : ·· - �-· · ·· 
- •  ' o • •  . ,  

·, � ;  ·. \, . ..;}' ,· . �. . .. . .  

Our Tribal colleges·i3re -tompletely qualified to handle the grants SB 2218 wil l provide. , _  
. · . ·, 

We are chartered by ·our Tribal governments as non-profit institutions. We are ful ly 
accredited, using the same process as state higher education institutions. We general ly 
provide two year, and in  some programs, four year degrees in a wide variety of 
discipl ines, and at an affordable price. We have over 3,000 students in attendance in  
any given semester. Our students generally stay in  North Dakota once they graduate. 
In addition, the populations served by the Tribal colleges are growing, with the majority 
of the population under the age of 25 . This makes SB 2218 a sol id investment in the 
future of our state citizens who l ive on or near our Indian reservations. 

SB 2218 also seeks to build on the good relationship that our Tribal colleges have with 
our state h igher education system and the state of North Dakota in general .  Our 
students general ly would not obtain any higher education except for the Tribal col leges; 
when they want to go further with their education, they most often enter the North 
Dakota u niversity system.  

We know that funds provided under SB 2218 wil l  not solve al l  of  the unemployment · · ·' 

problems i n  our reservation communities. But we believe that it can be a great start, in  
part because one of the uses of funds wil l  be providing assistance to business start-ups 
for students. Increasingly, the reservations and Tribal communities are seeking a 
d iverse economy to begi n  to drive down unemployment and welfare dependence. 
Starting a business is one significant way to reduce unemployment. 
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How do we know the funds will be used wisely? 

Our Tribal Col leg·es are a ll accredited by the Higher Learning Commi_sslon. ofth.e.JX!o.r.th :.� ·· .: : • · . : . · 

Central Association of Colleges and -Schools, and we a ll have. the highest accreditatlom . . . : - ·  .· . · 

possible. We are audited yearly, and our audits show that we use 01:1r. .funds wisely·;,_ :: . , . <' · . . /•. :< . 

We exist i ndependently from the Tribal governments that helped create ·us . . " · .. . .. , , ; , ·, :  . .  

Further, SB 2218 cal ls u pon the Tribal colleges to utilize informationfr:om,Jot>:Seev.h:e ' " '  ' , .  , ,  . •  � 

and the Commerce Departmentto:fashion programs that will be specificaUyJ�ilor:ed:to -:-;._ -.• ;::''·· :: . ··:;• . � 
meetthejob training ana: ·job creation, needs in our state. It also a llows Ot:IJS GoUeg�s-to:� . ,·\-f• i· · • ·  ... " 
train students iii business development and entrepreneurship, helpimg · to ;diversify;eur -.: . . . .  ·. ·� >· . . 

·'' : · 

Tribal ecohoniies."' . , .  , .. . 
. 

· i  ':?'c�··:·�l - .. . · ;:·· .: · . · 

One of the important Lises ·of the funds is to augment our placement prog-rams·. · These ·· · "' · 

·. efforts help ensure riot only that our graduates obtain good paying jobs; •but.:that:they · 
continue to work after being placed. We are constantly working to improve upon- · ·  • · · · �  ·. ; · 

existing designs, such as the cohort model, to help our students adjust to :the wor.lcl of · '· · · 
work a nd to escape the cycle of poverty. 

· 

· · · · 

Further, SB 2218 requires the Tribal Col leges to report back to you, as the 
representatives of the citizens of our state, regarding the impact of the funds 
appropriated and how these funds have been used. We expect that the scrutiny g iven 
to the Tribal Colleges in North Dakota under SB 2218 wil l  in fact show our capabil ities 
and that we can produce meaningful results. Again, we are certain that the 
appropriation under SB 2218 is a great investment in the future of our state and our 
state citizens. 

Why can't the federal government or the Tribes provide the needed funds? 

While most of the funding for the Tribal col leges comes from the fed eral government, it 
is now obvious that the federal  government cannot supply al l  of the needs of our 
institutions. Actual per student federal funding has gone down in  the past ten years. 
Further, our Tribal governments are besieged by more immediate problems �that: require 
using most of their income for infrastructure and other immediate human needs, such 
as housing, law enforcement and health care, and cannot help our Tribal Col leges on a 
sustained basis. We also lack large endowment funds. This means that without 
additional funding, our core abi l ity to impact the high unemployment we face in our 
local areas is being reduced. To tackle these problems, and to provide our Tribal 
citizens, who are also North Dakota citizens, a meaningful chance for a good job, our 
Tribal colleges need additional resources. 

We urge the House Industry, Business and Labor Committee to give a DO PASS 
recommendation to SB 2218. We welcome any questions you may have. 
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Mr. Chainnan and members of the Committee: This te·stimony is given on :behalf of U:trited · 
Tribes Technical College, located in Bismarck, North Dakota. 

United Tribes started out as United Tribes of North Dakota Development Corporation in 1 968. 
The vision of the founders was to create more economic opportunity for tribal citizens, both on 
and off the reservations ofNorth Dakota. They wanted an institution that provided a residential, 
family-centered learning community where American Indian people could access education 
opportunities and obtain employment. 

. -
Our institution has evolved ov.er the years to reflect the founders' visions, providing not only 
postsecondary education and workforce training, but also individual and social skills 
development in a culturally-relevant setting. Now, United Tribes, a fully accredited institution, 
provides 3 kinds of Workforce Training certificates, 24 Associate Degree programs, and 3 
Bachelor Degree programs, and more than 125 individuals receive diplomas or certificates 
annually. Eighty-six percent (86%) of our students are Native American. Many of our students 
are the first in their family to obtain any kind of higher education. Our students are young, with 
an average age of24, and 50% have dependents. 

But we know we can do better. American Indians are seeking access to higher education 
opportunities because of personal aspirations, family socio�economic needs, workforce and 
employment trends. Changing technologies, physical structure adaptations, and institutional 
developments are challenges that shape the educational landscape for UTTC, challenges that 
need additional resources. 

Yet, the federal resources upon which we largely depend are not keeping pace with the needs of 
the 21st century. While our student population has increased, funding in actual dollars has stayed 
constant, reducing the per student amount substantially. This has meant that we have had to 

� . . '. ' 
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defer investments that can allow us to offer first class technical education for North Dakota 
citizens who want the jobs tha� are p.ow available in Nort4 Dakota�s growing economy; students 
who want to stay in North Dakota have had to leave because of the cost of h<;msing. Our . 
. epu���i,o]lal.resources are �tretch�d beyond their �its. : · . 

. ,- ,.  _ .. /. 
.. · 

. The grants offered by SB 221 8  can help United Tribes and our sister Tribal c.olleges meet the' 
. .  ; chC!,lle�ges of the 21st century work force for North Dakota and its Tribal. dti�ens in several 

_ways: . ,  ,. 
: i ' ' • . 

· ;, :  
. , . 

• First, thc
{
:funds carl. be used to design and implenie;nt new .. progr�nf� heeded:iriNorlh'.i 

· · · i • · · 

':Dakota's new economic landscape. We want to use the.'funds for business . incubator 
programs that encourage entrepreneurship. New busines·s help the reservation economies . .  
diversify. 

• . · .. Second, the funds can be used to improve and assure the quality of existing prograins. In 
addition to all of the technical skills needed in the oil patch; many ofNorthDakota's 
communities need more law enforcement officers, nurses� trained construction workers, 
teachets and small businesses, all of which are programs that'present exist.atUnited. 
Tribes. 

• 

• 

• 

Third, the funds will allow UTTC to continue to recruit, develop, and retain faculty 
qualified to teach students the necessary trade skills to successfully complete academic 
requirements and demonstrate skill competency. 
Fourth, our students need additional scholarship funds. This is especially true with the 
very difficult housing market in Bismarck. where the cost of rental properties has doubled 
or more in the past couple of years. 
Finally, the funds can enhance our infrastructure and capacity to provide the programs 
designed for students to enter the workforce. United Tribes occupies an old Army base, 
mostly in buildings constructed more than 1 00 years ago, so deferred maintenance is a 
constant barrier to student success. 

In addition, SB 221 8  fits nicely with existing College resources and programs. United Tribes, 
similar to the other Tribal colleges in North Dakota, received a one-time three year grant from 
the U.S. Department of Labor for providing specific certificates in some key employment areas 
needed in this region. The funds are provided under a tariff on imported goods that is to be used 
to train workers displaced by jobs that have been moved from the United States to other 
countries; it is the intention of the grant we have received that our programs become permanent. 
One such program is welding. Funds from SB 221 8  can help continue the kinds of training 
opportunities offered by the Department of Labor grant for American Indian students in our 
regiOn. 

United Tribes is fully accountable for all the funds it receives. Our audits show that we spend 
our money wisely, and we must satisfy rigorous standards imposed by the Higher Learning 
Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, as well as by a number 
of federal and state agencies that audit and review our grants and contracts. 
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In addition, United Tribes will continue to press for adequate federal funding. We are not : ,  . 
seeking additional funds to r.eplace the federal funding we receive, but merely to •.supplement iL ' ·· - · · · . .. . . . .  . . . . . 

We do know that our gradu�tes ge;nenllly stay in North Dakota and ar� abkto lead :prodtictive 
lives as tax-paying citizens, contributing greatly to the welfare of our state. Collectively, our . 
North Dakota Tribal Ccil�eges have conducted an economic impact study that shows we make a -. :L :  -·': , ,  

significant contribution to this state; and United Tribes has a similar kind of study showing a 20..; : � : ;  ! :- �· : :: . --
1 investment ratio; that is, one dollaJ:" invested- in United Tribes brings twenty dollars in earnings · i ; ; _ nc: r ; :; ; ; ; � :  
to the student who grad:w1tes frorri our College. We believe the payback from the investment of .ik1 . - ,  ( -. .  H_ :  . .  
state funds iri our Tribal 4oll�ges .is· siinilar ·...:, as 'students are educated they are less. likely tcfbe :()n� '..; :·:. : :::g::\, 1 :- : 
welfare, to end up in the-stat� periiteritiary, or to be unemployed. · · �." --�e • - .. 

With the help of the state of North Dakota, our students can be more assured of a pathway ·out of·F· · · · ·.: { \ �� · l : • 

poverty, returning many times the investment authorized by SB 2218 .  I recommend a DO PASS , - - · 

recommendation from the House IBL Committee on SB 221 8. 

Thank you for your time .. · 
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. .  ,• :- ' . .  ; ·-:� 
.. · . ' : . i j ; .:, . 

Mr. Chairman and members ofth,e Senate IBL Cm;n.mitte�, thank you for this opportunity to · :  ·· 

explain and justify a new initiative to help State citizens who live, attend college, and work on 
the Spirit Lake Dakota reservation. Citizens who are more likely to also be members ofthe Spirit 
Lake Dakota Tribe located in Fort Totten, North Dakota. This new initiative will provide needed 
resources for Cankdeska Cikana (Little Hoop) Community College (CCCC) to expand our role 
in providing higher educational options that includes job training and business development for 
the residents of our reservation community. 

CCCC was chartered by the Spirit Lake Dakota Nation in 1 974 and has graduated over 500 
students with vocational certificates and associate degrees. For the past 1 0  years our cmmnunity 
college has thrived - we have tripled the campus size and doubled enrollment - and we are a 
stable resource for our Tribal cotmnunity. We are a public institution and accredited like Lake 
Region State College or UND by the Higher Learning Cotmnission and thus maintain similar 
standards for an academic learning institution. 

We recruit only from within the reservation boundaries which includes portions ofBenson, 
Nelson, Ramsey, and Eddy Counties. CCCC averages 240 students a semester including 7-1 0  
non-Indians, who are married into our families or are farm and ranch neighbors who live within 
the reservation boundaries. We are accessible and affordable. Our students are typically 26 
years old, low-income females with dependent children. Eighty percent of CCCC students are 
eligible for federal flnancial aid. (CCCC Institutional Profile 201 2) 

The health, social, and economic disparities touted by the media and various organizations or 
governmental agencies paint a picture of hopelessness for most reservation communities. By and 
large, these stories are mostly true but so rooted in history and the colonization of this great 
Country that they must be understood in context. The Spirit Lake Dakota reservation does have 
an unemployment rate of 57 percent and 80 percent ofthose employed live below the poverty 
guidelines (BIA Labor Force Report 2005). There are close to 400 families on a wait-list for 
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•·: ;· · : , e  ... 

� :.\. . ,  . 

housing (Spirit Lake Housing Director Spring 201 2) .  We have a 60 percent high school dropout 
rate (ND Department of Public Instruction 201 0) and only 4 percent of our population has 
bachelor degrees compared to NDs 22 percent and the US All Races rate of24 percent 
(Northwest Area Foundation 2006). Yet within these devastating statistics are a people who 
persevere and remain resilient when afforded the chance to improve· their ljfe.· , ··. ·. · ' , , · · "it' 

. · : I I ' . • . ' ' ,  . ,.: ' •: • . ' ' • 

' t6111111unity-based tribal colleges are funded b)rthe' feidet'al govetmrient and ptimatily bythe 
Tribally Controlled Cmmnunity College Assistance Act· of 1 978 that is specific for Native 
students only. When enacted the legislatio� was authorized at $S,OOO per FTE (full time 
�quivalent) and for fiscal year 201 3 we are apptppri���d,: at $5?6?4/FTE. In .�rnparison� 
mainstream institutions are funded at approx:itrmte�y _$14,QOO to $1 6,000 per: FTE by their : , ,  . · 

· respective States. Or for another comparison;' :Howard U�iver.sity.{ � Hist6rically; Black College) 
is federally funded. at $ 1 9,000 per FTEl '  'rh!�itlen1oristrates s1gnificant inequity for the tribal 

· 

colleges and Indian higher education and we·;stdiggle"to ·attahl balarlce (American Indian Higher 
Education Consortium 2013  Priorities): ·· · · · · ·  .. ,, .: . ' .. .. . · ;· " 

· 

� . . . . 

Members of the Senate IBL Committee, I arnseeldpg your help by making an investment in 
CCCC and North Dakota's tribal colleges. thiScollaboratio'n would establish a business 
development center at CCCC for the Spirit Lake cornrnunity. The Center would be broad-based 
to meet the needs of  our Tribe and ernployers 'such as Sioux Manufacturing 'corp, Spirit Lake 
Housing, the Casino, and others. It will emphasize employment skills and job training as well as 
tenninal degree attainment in professions needed on the reservation. 

Tentative areas include trades such as building and maintaining a horne, codes and standards for 
homes or businesses, inspectors, construction and heavy equipment operators, or self­
employment opportunities for horne-care services or medical transcription. It would include 
elements of starting a business - business plan, marketing analysis, fmancing options and 
marketing/promoting a business coupled with an incubator to launch the business. We will spur 
business growth and economic opportunity for the Spirit Lake reservation c01mnunity through 
the students, who are our hope for the future. The marketing and public relations component of 
business development will afford us the chance to build bridges between cultures using the 
technology advances of social media. 

CCCC would provide support to students who have creative ideas that respond to COllliTIUnity 
needs - they would be trained, provided internships or apprenticeships, paid a salary, and then 
launched as a self-employed venture. A couple.ofbusiness incubator projects specific to CCCC 
are for food preparation and nutrition via a College Cafe and a College Bookstore as an online 
business for Dakota made fine art products such as painted buffalo skulls or painted, hand carved 
wooden horses. I believe these projects would be self-sustaining over the long term and thus 
contribute to the health and vitality of both our people and our community. 

Like the other North Dakota tribal colleges, CCCC has strong and positive relationships with 
both the North Dakota University System and the State institutions. We do articulation 
agreements for the transfer of our students for terminal degrees and we partner to bring programs 
of study or vocational courses to our campus. Though SB 221 8  is a workforce development bill 
and not an education bill specifically, we would enhance and support the framework of 

' ' · I . · ', • , •  > 
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collaborations that cunently exist . . . . i.e. Wahpeton helping CCCC to establish a plumbing 
program or NDSU assisting with food literacy and nutrition via land grant programs or the North 
Dakota Museum of Art on UND campus collaborating for fme arts and the development of an 
online business to $ell Dakota made arts and crafts. · ·  ·. 

· 

Through an existing grant from North Dakota to our institutions but specific for n.on,..Indizm : 
' : '. :•::' : ·studehtsiattendingtour colleges, we subniitreports to:the ND ·Un:iversity Systerrrthat'·doesd-n'0lude �;; 

•-· · . ' ; . a.copy.of..our ahnual audits. ecce has had ten consecutive years of audits with no findings . .  
Tiibal colleges and ·universities also complete and: submit the lPEDs reportfugdocuments via the 

:1.:�;J :_,, · .! • ' ·  State system and to the federal government. In acJ.ditionrtribal,colleges and:an.iversities are: · · 

· . .  · , : . : :-':aO:credited by the same organization imd 'in the s.arne Jnanhet>as the;Sfate institutions; ' ·Welare : · 

· • ; . (, ,:· · •., . , viable and<accountable organizations and will work.witWtlie D�partm�nt of,Cornrneke to assure 
: >  ; ; •; \· ' ': ' .  ·:pmgress•antl accomplishment for the tiew workforce d�v¢1oprherit program.-,:: , , ' ·-: ; . . ;, : ;• 

", \ . . - ' : �� ' 
. .  :rhe proposed legislation is a new venture between the ·state arid c�cc to address the social and 

economic disparities on the Spirit Lake reservation. Ids an investment with- expected returns via 
· · · .  . . .  . · student self.:.confidence and self-responsibility along with:continued Dakota cultural : 

revitalization that is based on independence and self-siifficiency. The proposed initiative will 
. help us to help our people unlearn the dependency waioflife that ha$ been a part ofhistory. It 

· ·provides us the opportunity to participate in the etbnom:ic·growth ii1North Dakota in a planned 
arid cohesive manner as well as to be represented in the State labor force as contributing 
members of  our community. 

I recommend a DO PASS from the Senate IBL Committee on SB 221 8. Thank you for the 
consideration. 

· ' ·· · . 
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The Spirit Lake Dakota Nation continues to be a strong supporter of formal educationafinHiafives such' as 
· 

head start, K-1 2, post-secondary education, and short-term training initiatives. The .SPirit Lake-TribaL · . .. 
�- · . counc.il recognizes Cankdeska Cikana Community College's (CCCC) as the primary post-secondarY ·· 

education. institute of our Nation. We are committed to continued support of ecce in · this role . . to educate 
and train our next generation of leaders and workforce through academic, continuing education units 
(CEUs), and short-term workforce training initiatives. 

Our tribal communities and families face many challenges that threaten the future of our people such as 
intergenerational trauma, substance abuse, and poverty, rank h igh in regard to priorities for our Nation. We 
recognize our Dakota culture and formal education are critical to addressing these needs. Research 
indicates those who are knowledgeable in their culture are more likely to succeed academically. 

Tribal members educational needs vary by individual circumstances. Some are in situations where they 
are able to concentrate on gaining an education with minimal barriers for successful completion. The other 
side of the dichotomy is there are those who are single parents, first generation students (meaning their 
parents never achieved a bachelor's degree), and poverty stricken, who have significant barriers to 
completing their education. 

Training such as the recently completed ecce Commercial Driver's License (COL) six week program or  
the scheduled Heavy Equipment Operator (HEO) training scheduled for this spring are examples of s hort­
term training initiatives that will assist our people in gaining employment immediately. Long term education 
initiatives such as the completion of an Associate of Arts degree must also be maintained for those wishing 
to achieve this level o r  go on for completion of an undergraduate or graduate program. 

The Spirit Lake Tribal Council and I wish you wel l  in your testimony to our North Dakota State Legislature to 
gain resources to invest in our tribal members who are also North Dakota citizens. We support "Do Pass" 
for SB 2218 ,  the Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges. J · - -- - - �  lf '�). _:t:;:_:-_ �:::�·:··· ;�:�:- ·· ;:···�:. · _ _ ,: . .  ·_·:.:· :··,: · .��,. �-� 
Sincerely, 
i� ) 1.· c;;;;L. <: r �@£-_;?- 7; ��-/'(/t� � 

RogafYankton Sr. 
Chairman 
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Laurel  V�rmi l li()n, Pr9:s:id�nt _ . ;  • . . , " t  •. : • .  • • 

i n  Support or'SB 22.1 a . 
Workforce Development Grants for Tribal Colleges 

March 12, _2013  

Mr. Chairman .and members o f  the Committee: This te�tfiri:bny is -giveri ori behalf of S itting Bu l l  
GoHege _($BC). - · -

_ _  _ 

Sitting Bul l  Col lege is  located on  the Standing Rock Reservation which has a total population of 
8,2 1 7 . Sioux County i n  North Dakota has a Native American population of 4 ,  1 53.  (Source: US 
Census Bureau, 201 0  Demographic Profile Data) SBC was official ly chartered i n  1 973 as 
Standing Rock Community Col lege by the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe. S itting  Bul l  Col lege 
serves between 300-350 students each semester and offers degrees i n  certificate, associate, 
and bachelor programs. SBC is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission,  an agency 
which requ i res financial and governance stability. 

The purpose of Senate Bi l l  221 8  is to provide grants to the Tribal Col leges for job train ing for 
North Dakota and Tribal citizens. 

Standing Rock, based on a 2005 report, has an 86% unemployment rate. (Source: 2005 
American I ndian Population and Labor Force Report, US Dept. of the I nterior ,  Bureau of I ndian 
Affairs, Office of Tribal Services) Grant funding from the State of North Dakota would assist 
SBC in provid ing m uch needed tra ining to help address the h igh unemployment rate of our 
Tribe. 

· I f  g rant funding is received from the State of North Dakota, S itting Bull College plans to uti l ize 
the funding to expand our  current train ing programs and provide assistance for our student 
support program.  As student numbers increase with this additional training, so wi l l  the need for 
additional staff to provide  advisement and counseling for our students. Additional workspace 
and classrooms wi l l  be another  need. 

Currently, SBC has a number of auxi l iary businesses on our campus. These businesses have 
been developed because of the lack of resources avai lable on the Reservation .  To date SBC 
has successfu l ly i mplemented three businesses, including the Transit Service Center, SBC 
Daycare Center, and an Analytical Lab for testing soil and water. With adequate funding, SBC 
wou ld expand the creation of businesses to i nclude a m uch needed cafeteria or food court. I t  is 
our plan to provide  the needed funding, generated by SB 221 8, which wou ld  a l low our current 



.. /. 

Business students to develop a business plan, secure a building or space, and have enough 
startup capital to implement and manage a cafeteria business for our campus. 

Sitting Bull College is impacting the Tribal communities on Standing Rock by 
providing contin uing education units (CEU) training in each community on the-Reservation; SBC 

· ·· is impaCting the K-1 2  schools on Standing Rock ofproviding Science; Techt:l01ogy,: : ' · . 

Engineering , and Math (STEM) training and hands-on lessons for high schoqrstudents via · · 

Sunday Academy sessions on our campus. SBC 'is cufreritW providing K-1 2  teachers:with �\: ;'''· · ·  
professional development and recertification classes. . ;  . .  ·. ·.•. · . ;  .. : · "  � · · ·. · ·· · 

- · · ·. : The Stanqing Rock Sioux Tribe has contributed, via a mopetarf.donation,to.the :deve.l_opment 
: · -�x;:, f'":.:.,: and construction of the new campus for Sitting Bull ·Coltege. Th'is.was· a one"'.time.:contribution. 

Becaus�. the. ne.eds of the Reservation are many and the poverty rate is h ig,b,: :.53.7�famil ie.s. . .  
receiving lhcoine less than $ 1 0 ,000 annually, (Spurce: DistribtJtiqn o(lnconie,by: �.amily:al:ld · 
t-tousehold from Census 2000) the Tribe cannot provide SBC with additional funding on a . . . 

. · . .. ��g.Li lar.l;>a�is. , . . ·':.: · :�. � · · 

Sitting Bul l  College is working closely with the Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Training Employment 
Resource Office (TERO) in partnerships to provide training for 'community members and our · 

students. Future partnership projects with TERO includ� building _trades,  rock:crushing, . 
· · Commercfal Drivers License (CDL) training, and oi l  dri l l ing sch'boL Along :With this·, SBC is · 

researching· training and employment recruitment and retention models that viork:for Native · · 

students. One model we are researching is the crew or cohort model . The crew or cohort model 
works wel l  for N ative students and is being used successfully for Native firefighters. Funding 
from North Dakota State g rants can assist in implementing this model in other areas such as oi l  
dri l l ing . This positive retention model can have a huge impact on the retention of North Dakota 
workers located in the oi l  fields or in other areas of North Dakota where workers are needed . 

The needs of each of the TCUs in North Dakota are simi lar in some areas and very d ifferent and 
unique in  others .  Because of this uniqueness, each of the TCUs has their own set of priorities 
based on their current infrastructure and resources. This is the reasoning for the flexibi l ity of the 
funding req uest. Each of the North Dakota TCUs has a plan to util ize the funding from SB 221 8  
that wil l  address the high unemployment on each of our reservations. The focus for this funding 
is to tra in and educate members from our communities for the North Dakota work force. 

I n  closing , I want to share a message with you. The Tribal colleges are doing phenomenal work 
on our res pective reservations in North Dakota. The Tribal colleges are a beckon of hope to 
many people, both Native American and non-Native, who are trying to "cl imb out of poverty" and 
help themselves . I know this to be true, because being an alumnus of Sitting Bul l  Col lege,  I 
would not h ave attem pted to attend college if S itting Bul l  College was not accessible and 
affordable to me for my higher education journey. Sitting Bul l  College has provided me, and 
many others l ike me, an opportunity to experience success and become a contributing member 
of Standing Rock and North Dakota. 

Funding from SB 221 8  wil l  provide the ND Tribal col leges with additional dollars to reach out to 
more people l ike myself, to g ive hope and inspiration where there may be none, and to provide 
workers who are trained and capable for the much needed workforce of North Dakota. 

I recommend a DO PASS vote from the House I BL Committee on SB 221 8. Thank you for your 
t ime. 
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>- Ame rican Ind ians are the la rgest minority popu lation in  North Dakota - 6.4% of the State's 
popu lation (700,000) = 44,800 

>- 55% of this-population l ive on ·a reservation ·· � ·· ·· : iJ • . ) >.· >  

>- . N�s · Nat1v�'populc:ftl'on inc��ag�d·b.v 22.1% between 2000-2010 
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>- Growth .for:.;Natjv:e students in :NP K-:1? $dwol.swent from 8% to 13% {1990--2010) . �(  

);- There a re 5 reservations in  N D  with over 3 .8  mi l l ion acres of l and  
);.- Tri bes inc lude Lakota, Dakota, Ch ippewa, M andan,  Arikara, a nd H id atsa . 
� . Re.serv9tJo·r;t··u·n:eixi:P.;fr}Y,;n·�nt,a.Yera·g�es.6s% .  ' ,' • ; l•: �-� ,---.' 0 ,  ; �· o • ,� . - n '  f ' ''""'' •f,o, .. � . ..... .. • '•• • 0 0, • 

. . . � ·, : �. 
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H igh  School · grad t,.�ation rate.averages 55% . . . 
. . . u �-:) . :�� ::a .�l�}�-:rt;·:}.i . :.·.�-� ·; · :· .. ;;... ·.�· 

Poverty rat�'fdr':�:�'Oson, Rdl�tte ah'a
.
Si�ux Cbunties is 33.6% (average) ·  

. . . . . . 

· .· . .  ' · ,  . .. . .  ' .· i .·:;\ · · . · . ,. 
'. 

>- Estab l ish�d in the. late _ 1960� irJ  respo.nse to lack of opportun ities a n d  s uccess at ··· . · · · ,  : ·.· . 

m a instream instiWtions � afforda ble, accessib le, a n d  responsive to comm unity needs . • . •.. . . ; . . . 
>- Chartered by fede'ral ly recognized Triba l  governments .... 

. . ": " .  . 
' � ' •:':'.; · . . . . . . . . ;· ' -; ' ' . . 

>- Core m ission to teach a nd preserve l anguage and culture 
>- 36 TCUs i n  15 States with 79 campus sites p rovid ing access to h igher education to over 80 

percent of Ind ian  country 
>- Approxim ately .20,000 students, p l us another 45,000 CEUs/comm un ity education, 20% a re 

n on-Ind ian  

>- 5 TCU s  in  N orth Dakota 
>- Average tu ition rate $115/cred it hour 
>- Approximately 3,500 students, inc luding 8% non-beneficia ry 
>- Al l  d esignated as l and  grant institutions (known as 1994s) 
>- P u blic, n on-profit institutions 
>- Accred ited by the same organization and  in  the sa me manner as State institutions 
>- F lex ib i l ity to p rovide short-term tra in ing 
>- 85% of tr iba l  colr�ge graduates stay in N D - on/near reservations 
>- Stab le  inst itutions i n  u n ique  position to partner with governments a n d  organizations to 

reduce p overty and u nemp loyment 
>- Col l aborate with  N D  Un iversity System a n d  State institutions 

../ Common Course Numbering 
../ Academic ca lendar  
../ Articu lation Agreements for student tra nsfers 
../ Dua l  Credit for h igh school students 
../ Technology/Cyber Con nectivity 
../ STEM enhancement -research, weekend/summer academies 

NDA TC Message Points 1129113 Page !of I 
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Good morning Chairman Keiser and members of the N O  State lnd.ustry,c .Bu�inesa.· .& , ;; . .,, . .. · · 

Labor 
·
comm ittee. 

·
Fu�din!;t for i=�rt Berthold Community C�ll�ge_ ; ; (FBCO) · ca�eer , , 

. . , ' . .• . . .·· .t. � • 

Technical Education .will .be criti.cat .over the next decade for the foll.owi:ng .. · reasons: 

Industry relevant training must adapt and remain current to industry ·needs· ,to ·ensore · · · 

continuity and integrity of strong workforce development. 

At the core of that training is the need for facilities and housing to keep pace with 

ongoing development in the Bakken. Adequate facilities to house training and viable 

infrastructure to support it and staff will be an expensive, ongoing and a paramount 

need. It will take multiple resources to accomplish adequate training facilities and 

infrastructure for Diesel-COL, Oil Field Tech, Welding and Construction training and 

keep them adaptable and relevant. 

As elsewhere in North Dakota, existing space to expand without construction is non­

existent. Housing dilemmas in western North Dakota are well knpwn. FBCC is · 

experiencing the same staff housing shortages and over-crowding of existing facilities 

that are commonplace in Western NO at the current time. 

It is unrealistic to think that one funding source can accomplish these primary workforce 

development needs. A look around the state will confirm that. Every institution 

FBCC Testimony Page 1 



.
.

.. 
-. ..,.,_ .. 

. .:..�· 

providing train i ng accomplishes that goal from multiple resources. It is common and 

prudent to do so. 

Collaboration is at the heart of the FBCC wor�fpr:pe,, development' effort: ; ,  . Cu:t:rentlyiV'' . r-
·-·· · . ' . . 

. 
FBGC has an extr�mely :strong: start iiJ rneetin.g: workforce··developinerit 'needs.· "FBOC':' :f· · 

· · ·  

participates i n  'a consortium with Bisrilart:k State College (BSC) , Williston ·state" Cbllegev • t ; : , ·;- . ·  : ,  

(WSC) , Sitting. Bull
· College (SBC). and Turtle Mo.untain Commun ity College (TMCGJ� foc::,; : .�q'i: . · 

expand _ and impro.Ve(traih ing.
·· ·l(go��,a lo'hg�:Way''h adjusting and adapting. :tne:d.elivefo/ i .�::: i � · :; ; :/ > 

. : .. J :. · · 
.. : •.. < :·· _  : ·._ . :;: ,'· · . .  · ... ·.: · :_, . :· ::-:-:� ���;:. :.� �{ /�." ; �-.::�;.�::��:. · ·  .. : ��·::� :::.: u� . ·:;· :·.; · .. · . . :.- · . .  �

· · . ... ·:: -:· · · :. · · ·,:: · . . : . ·  · · ;: . 

systems of traii1irig:f6r.tribaVmembers :and workers in  Western N D . •Th'is; ·grafif:p-ro-j;e>¢t:lsr- >:i:l'J:l ;"i (:.:!" 
known as TREN[).: l)',aining for�eg i�nal E�ergy in NO. • · · : :_. ,.., : · :x ·� 

. ,  . : -· ·  ' ' ,,·, ·�-·· ., ;, ' ., ., �· L''> ',• �, • 

However, the :adqjtiohal; tr�ining challenges tax both space and infrastructure> df::]ttier /· > .·: , 

college. BuilqJrig :::9;Q� -f�_gij_ity chang�s wilt n�ed to take place to ensure continuity-'.a�<f 
.; • · 

adaptation as -futur�:hdemqnd,s of the oil �and related industries change as it is known 

they will over time. 

Oil field a nd related industry needs are predicted to remain strong for years to come. 

FBCC is strategically located to provide that train ing right in the heart of the Bakken .  

Facility growth will be at the core of this development to expand and improve training. 

Neither the need to adapt to workforce development nor the need for adequate funding 

sources is static. Collaboration of all entities will be paramount for the success of 

citizens of our state. It should be viewed as such. 
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Turtle Mountain 
Band of Chippewa 

Indians 

Rep resentative Keise·rahd· members of tlie Hous·e of Representatives Committee on fnd·��f:�; -� - � .' · . ,:"- ·� ·-· · ·  , _  

Business & .  L(lbo.r-; �p�nk you f.cir-providing :me the o p po rtunity to submit this written testimonY'· ' !'"'' , ,  •. 

* 

Charter Member 
American Indian 
Higher Education 

Consortium 

* 

Accredited by: 
The Higher 

Learning 
Commission & A 

Member of The 
North Central 

Association 

230 S. LaSalle St. 
Suite 7-500 

Chicago, II 60604-
1413 

Ph: 1 -800-62 1 -7440 
1-3 12-263-0456 

Fax: 3 12-263-7462 
info@hlcommission 

.org 
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Turtle Mountain 
Community College 

is an Equal 
Opportunity 

Employer 

in support ofSenate .Bfll 2218. My name is Dr. J im Davis, P resident of the Turtle Mountain. · : 
, . 

Community tci l leg��rrrv1ccCand a graduate of Dickinson State University, the Pennsylvania '. : . .  · ·� .. 

State Un iversity; aha a ·post�doctoral student ad.JCLA. 1 am an enro l led membe r of the Turtle 
Mountain Band of Chi ppewa Ind ians. 

Prior to the 1970's, there were less than ten triba l members with a bachelor's degree. 
Beginning in the early 1970's, things began to change. TMCC is one of six tribal col leges 
nationa l ly who founded the triba l h igher education movement in the early 1970's. The founding 
members responded to a growing need to provide affordable and accessib le higher education 
opportunities to our tribal members and others within our college community. Since 1972, 
TMCC continues to p rovide affordable higher education opportunities to an average of 1000 ful l  
and part time students each year. Some 15,000 students have attended TMCC over the years 
and have graduated over 3,000 students. Many of ou r graduates have gone on to start their 
own business, become medica l doctors, nurses, lawyers, teachers, col lege/university p rofessors 
and administrators, K-12 schoo l administrators, welde rs, home bui lders/carpenters, and m uch 
more. In May 2012, TMCC had a record graduating class of 171 students. Many of our students 
who graduate or attend TMCC transfer to NDUS's col leges and universities - a pipel ine to 
mainstream coll eges in North Dakota. 

TMCC has been fu l ly and continuously accredited by the Higher Learning Commission since 
1984. TMCC offers 38 d ifferent certificates and degree p rograms that include 12 Associate of 
Arts degree programs, 16 Associate of Science degree p rograms, three Bachelor of Science 
(Secondary Science, E lementary Education, Early Chi ldhood) degree p rograms, and seven 
Certificate programs. TMCC consistently offers over 250 d ifferent classes/courses each year. 
Resea rch opportunities are a lso avai lable to many of our students. 

- 1 -
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H isto rical ly, TMCC has had excel lent audits. We va lue the fact that we have had unqual ified 
aud its (the best audits any organization can receive) over the past number of years. We a lso 
va l ue the fact that we are prudent and accountab le in our budgeting p rocesses and p rocedu res. 

One of the prima_·(y purposes ·of TMCC is to assist'i'l1 rne�ting-the wockfofce training needs. within . , ·, ' , ,  • '  

· . · · o u r  co l lege community and the .state. Limited funds d o  not:alJqw usto. qo, as much as we can. , :· . . , 
" ; ' . . � . �· . ·. . . ·- . . . - . 

With an unemployment r:a.te of 69.25 percent withi_n,qyr col lege community and the 
reservation, and the emp loyment opportunities withirf North Dakota, TMCC is in a good position 
to p rovide the workforcetraiA.Irig· that help·s·the s�te,�eet1the demands of fi l ling vacant 
' positions.: : . 

The appropriatioris"requeste��n�ets��i�i�- i���pected tb'���� le.:nent and expand current-and . · 

futu re workforce:trainiog.prpgra�s. �tTM��, p.rovidf:]pb pfacement services, follow up _ . .  
' ··_ ,  .' • ' •  · . •'-'" ! · , > :·.::.; �·�- -. f '1-:�:.� ::" :: ;_ ,  " , ;; ; · :: .. . ��- " I• · , :. . 

' '  • 

activities on a l l  graduates to assure they are employed and remain employed, and relatec! costs. 
Graduatiq(l cmd job pla,c(imehtwilf be- vt=ry'important,.in out efforts to address the needs of our 

communities and the 'stdte dS !trWhole. Currently;·TMCChas a Director for Job P lacement and 
has been working since last Se.·ptetnber to .assist graduateswitb job p lacement needs. If more 
funding was available, TMCC would hire at lea�t one.more pla.cement officer to assist with 
p lacement needs thereby assuring more of our col lege gracfuates would become employed off 
the reservation . 

I n  addition to our current program offerings, the workforce training grant wi l l p rovide for 
certification credentia ls in (a) Basic Certificate of Training in Oilfie ld Operations; {b) I ntermediate 
Certification of Training in Oilfiel d  Operations; (c) Advanced Certificate of Training in Oilfie ld 
O pe rations; and (d) Associate Degree Certification in Oi lfie ld Ope rations. Within two years we 
anticipate enro l l ing at least 100 students and graduating at least 80 percent resulting in a 
positive impact on ou r communities and throughout NO. Othe r  outcomes wi l l be to reduce the 
unemp loyment rate within our community and addressing the employment needs especia l ly in 
the oi l and gas p roducing counties in western North Dakota . 

The North Dakota Association of Tribal Col leges (NDATC), in which TMCC is a membe r, has 
recently com pleted a composite economic impact study. The study shows that a l l five NO tribal 
col leges contribute in excess of $145,000,000 to North Dakota's economy. NDATC a lso recently 
com pleted an assessment of the amount oftaxes paid by Native Americans to the coffers of NO. 
The significant finding is that Native Americans pay an estimated $57.5 mi l l ion in state taxes. 

Each tribal college continues to be an active partner with other NO  colleges and universities. 
Numerous col laborations and partnerships exist in a reas such as 2 p lus 2 and 3 plus 1 degree 
p rograms. Triba l col leges have a p roven track record working successful ly with the North 
Dakota University System and wou ld welcome the opportunity to create such a working 
relationship with the NO Department of Commerce. With an enacted SB-2218, TMCC, 

- 2 -
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NO Department of Commerce, and the Turtle Mountain Tribe cou ld pu rsue a partnership that 
would expand job and job training opportunities for our reservation a nd for NO. l nstead·of 
. looking �t 100 new jobs created within a two year period, the bigger p icture invo lvi'ng.'a thre�� .' ' · 
way partnership, we cou ld be looking at 1000 o r more new jobs within the next few y�i:.irs: At · 

· Turtle Mounta in, I believe this is a huge possibi l ity and has great potentia l .  

The return on investment (ROI) for NO in the s_hort and long term wi l l  be substantia l . G raduates 
. from these workforce tra ining programs wil l 'prod uce ind ividual earn i ng upwards to s'6o;oooto 
over $100,000 per year resulting in contributing to society rather than a d ra in on society. 

I recommend a 11do pass;' for SB-2218 by the HOu�e's lndu�try, Busin�ss & Labor c·ommittee. 
Thank you, and I' l l  address any questions you might have. 

3 -
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Executive Summary 
There has long been a myth that Native Americans in North Dakota do not pay taxes. This report wil l 
attempt to estimate the tax contribution of Native Americans to the State of North Dakota's tax base. 
No ana lysis of Native American tax contribution has ever been attempted before. 

The state-wide Native American population is approximately 43,000 enro l led members of tribes from a l l 
across the Nation . North Dakota has a number of taxes that citizens pay each year. We have selected 
five types of tax that are paid by Native Americans to the state of North Dakota: Personal I ncome Tax, 
Sales & Use tax, Motor Fuels Tax, Property Tax, and Corporate Tax. 

There is no current published data regarding consumption patterns of Native Americans on the 
reservations . However, the on ly known attempt was conducted by Dr. Jim Young p rior to his passing in 
1997. 

Reservation per capita income lags well behind the rest of North Dakota. We estimate that the 43,000 
Native Americans generate about $509,550,000 in income per year statewide. The personal income tax 
contribution for Native Americans in North Dakota is estimated to be $3,143,864 or $178 per person 
annua l ly. It is safe to estimate that 80% of the wage and salary income of Native Americans is consumed 
by purchases made off the reservations and generates approximately $20,382,000 in sales and use tax 
annua l ly. We estimate that 10% of consumption is related directly to Motor fuels taxes and generates 
$11,719.650 in motor fuels taxes annua l ly. Native Americans and Tribes do pay property taxes. This 
contribution is estimated to be $168,000 annua lly. The 2012 contribution of Oil Extraction and 
Production Taxes to the state was $21,060,888. 

The annua l contribution of the five selected tax a reas by Native Americans in North Dakota is estimated 
to be $57,698,170. This equates to $1,342 for every Native man, woman and chi ld in North Dakota. 
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Native American Tax Contributions in 
North Dakota 
True or False? Native Americans don't pay taxes. False, Native Americans pay federal taxes on their 
income and capital gains, just as any other American does. Native Americans do not pay taxes on 
moneys earned from their land a l lotments, since those lease fees are from the government and were 
negotiated as part of a treaty. Whi le earning money on the reservation, Native Americans also do not 
pay state, corporate, or state l icense fees for income or enterprises on the reservations due to the 
sovereign status of the reservation. While earning money off the reservation, however, Native 
Americans are subject to state i ncome, corporate, and l icensing taxes. 

There has long been a myth that Native Americans in North Dakota do not pay taxes. Further, it is 
widely surmised that Native Americans do not substantia l ly contribute to the state's taxes in a manner 
consistent with a l l non-Native citizens of North Dakota. The general rul e  of thumb is that Tribes are tax­
exempt, i nd ivid ual Native Americans a re not. However, there are a lways exceptions to the rules. 

This report will attempt to estimate the tax contribution of Native Americans to the State of North 
Dakota's tax base. No analysis of Native American tax contribution has ever been attempted before. 
Therefore, there is no literature or example of an estimate of any kind. 

Native Americans in North Dakota 
Native Americans in North Dakota enjoy tri-citizenship; they are citizens of the Un ited States, they are 
citizens of their respective Native Nation, and they are citizens of the State of North Dakota. They vote 
in Nationa l, Triba l and statewide e lections and pay taxes as wel l . 

The state-wide Native American population is approximately 43,000 enrol led members of tribes from a l l 
across the Nation. The enrol led membership of the four Native American tribes i s approximately 
67,750. Not a l l enrolled members of the four tribes in North Dakota l ive in this state. Many reside 
outside North Dakota and abroad serving in the m il itary services. The enrol led membership that resides 
on each reservation in North Dakota is approximately 25,313. There are approximately 17,687 Native 
Americans that l ive off the reservations in North Dakota. 

Native Nation Populations Enrollment Reservation 
MHA 12,204 6,341 
Spirit Lake 6,748 4,238 
Stand ing Rock 16,000 6A14 
Turtle Mountain 31,000 8,320 
Trenton I ndian Service Area 1,800 
Source: ND Indian Affairs Commission 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0  American Community Survey 
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State Native Reservation Off 
Population Population Reservation 

43,000 25,313 17,687 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0  Amencan Community Survey 

Native American Consumption in North Dakota 
There is no current published data regarding consumption patterns of Native Americans on the 
reservations . However, the only known attempt was conducted by Dr. Jim Young prior to his passing in 
1997. Dr . Young received his Doctorate in Economics from UCLA. Dr. Young passed prior to publ ishing 
his study data. This data is dated and is being used as a reference only since there is no other avai lable 
data . 

Persona l Consumption MHA SLN SRST TMBCI Average 
Durable Goods 13% 15% 15% 15% 14.5% 

Autos & Parts 5% 5% 5% 5% 5.0% 
Furn & HH Equip 5% 4% 5% 5% 4.8% 

M isc. Equip & Mach 2% 5% 4% 4% 3.8% 
Others 1% 1% 1% 1% 1 .0% 

Non-Dura ble Goods 30% 32% 35% 35% 33.0% 
Groceries 15% 18% 15% 15% 15.8% 
Clothing 5% 5% 5% 5% 5 .0% 

Gas/Diesel 5% 5% 10% 7% 6 .8% 
Heating Oil/Propane 2% 4% 3% 4% 3.3% 
Other (Hdwre/Mat) 3% 1% 2% 4% 2.5% 

Services 57% 53% 50% 50% 52.5% 
Housing 14% 16% 15% 15% 15.0% 

Household Uti l ities 6% 7% 6% 6% 6.3% 
Medica l Care 16% 10% 5% 16% 11.8% 

Transportation ( Ins) 4% 7% 9% 4% 6 .0% 
Pers Svcs, Recreation 17% 13% 15% 9% 13.5% 

Native American Income in North Dakota 
Reservation per capita income lags well behind the rest of North Dakota. We estimate that the 43,000 
Native Americans generate about $509,550,000 in income per year statewide. We also estimate that the 
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25,313 enrol led members residing on the reservation generate $299,959,050 annual ly and the 17,687 
enro l led members living off the reservation generate $209,590,950 annual ly. 

Per Capita 
Income $11,850 

Off 
Tota l Reservation Reservation 
$509,550,000 $299,959,050 $209,590,950 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0  Amencan Community Survey 

North Dakota Tax Law application to Native Americans 
North Dakota has a number of taxes that citizens pay each yea r. We have selected five types of tax that 
a re paid by Native Americans to the state of North Dakota: Personal I ncome Tax, Sales & Use tax, Motor 
Fuels Tax, Property Tax, and Corporate Tax. We also include Oil Extraction and Production Taxes. The 
latter is contributed to the state from lands on the Fort Berthold Reservation on ly. Native Americans 
a lso pay Cigarette and Alcohol taxes but those taxes are very difficult to determine so we have left them 
out of this analysis. 

Personal Income Tax ( NDCC Chapter 57-38) 
Every resident of North Dakota who has a federal income tax fi l ing requirement is required to fi le a 
North Dakota income tax return. Every nonresident who has a federal income tax fi l ing requirement and 
derives i ncome from North Dakota is required to fi l e a North Dakota income tax return. 

Exception 

• There a re exceptions for certain Native Americans, interstate transportation employees, 
Minnesota and Montana residents, and mi litary personnel and their spouses. 
• I ncome of an enrolled member of a federa l ly recognized I ndian tribe, who resides within the 
boundaries of a reservation in this state or in this state and an adjoining state, is exempt if the 
income is from activities or sources within the boundaries of the reservation. 

Corporate Tax (NDCC Chapter 57-38) 
Every corporation engaged in business in North Dakota or having sources of income in North Dakota 
must fi le a North Dakota corporation income tax retu rn. 

Exception 

• An exemption applies if the corporation is chartered as an Indian corporation and has not 
cha rtered with the Secretary of State. 

Sales & Use Tax ( NDCC Chapters 57-39.2 and 57-40.2) 
1. A 5% tax is imposed upon the gross receipts of retai lers from al l sales at retai l , including the leasing or 
renting of tangible personal property. 
2. The sales tax is paid by the purchase r and collected by the retai ler. 
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Exception 

Use Tax 

• G ross receipts from a l l sales made to an I ndian tribe are exempt from the 5% tax. 
• Gross receipts from sales within the boundaries of any reservation in this state to an individua l 
who resides within the boundaries of any reservation in this state and who is an enrol led 
member of a federa l ly recognized I ndian tribe" are exempt from the 5% tax. 

1. The purchase price of tangible persona l property purchased outside of the state for storage, use or 
consumption within the state is subject to a use tax at the rate of 5% of the purchase price of the 
property. 
2. I n  addition, tangible persona l property not origina l ly purchased for use in North Dakota is subject to a 
use tax at the rate of 5% of the fair market value of the property at the time it was brought i nto the 
state. 

a. Credits are a l lowed for sales and use taxes paid to other states. 
b. Use tax rates are the same as the sales tax rates. 
c. Use tax is collected by any retai ler that has sufficient presence in North Dakota. 
d. When the retai ler has not col lected sales or use tax, the purchaser is required to report and 
rem it the tax due. 

Exception 

• Use tax does not apply to items sold on an I ndian reservation to an enrol led member of a 
fed era l ly recognized tribe. 
• Use tax does not apply to untaxed property brought onto an I ndian reservation by an enrol led 
member of a federa l ly recognized tribe for storage, use, or consumption on the reservation by 
the enrol led member. 

M otor Fuels Tax (NDCC Chapters 57-43.1 and 57-43.2) 
A motor veh icle fue l tax of 23 cents per ga l lon is imposed on motor vehicle fuel, such as gas and gasohol, 
sold to retai lers and consumers. A specia l fuels tax of 23 cents per gal lon on fuels including diesel, 
biodiesel, kerosene, compressed natural gas, and propane is imposed on fuel sold for use in licensed 
vehicles. An excise tax of 2% of the value of the sal e is appl ied to sal es of propane. An excise tax of 4 
cents per ga l lon is imposed on dyed diesel fuel which is used primari ly in vehicles and equipment 
operating off of the roadways. 

Exception 

• Native American Tribal agencies are exempt from North Dakota motor vehicle and specia l fuel 
taxes. If the tax is paid, the Tribal agency may apply for a ful l  refund . 
• A Native American may a lso apply for a refund of motor vehicle or specia l fue l taxes paid if the 
fue l was purchased from a retai l fuel dealer l ocated on the I ndian reservation where the Native 
American is an enrol led member and a Fuel Tax Agreement is not in place . 
• A Native American, l iving on the reservation where enrol led, is exempt from triba l tax on 
purchases of dyed diesel .  
• A Native American, l ivi ng on the reservation where enrol led, i s exempt from tribal tax on 
purchases of propane if the propane is used for purposes such as heating or agricu lture. The 
exemption wi l l not apply if the propane is purchased for use in a vehicle. 
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Property Tax (NDCC Chapter 57-02) 
All real property, unless specifica l ly exempted, is subject to a property tax. I n  general, personal property 
is not taxed. 

1 . The majority of rea l property is locally assessed . 
2 . Other p roperties, such as rai lroads, public utilities, and air transportation companies, a re 
central ly assessed by the State Board of Equal ization. 

A mobile home used as a residence or busi ness is subject to the tax if it is 27 or more feet long or is 
attached to uti l ity services. 
The property tax is determined by multiplying the mi l l rate times the taxable va lue of real property. 

1 . local mi l l rates a re established to meet the revenue needs of the taxing d istrict. To determine 
the mil l rate, the county auditor divides the total property taxes to be collected for each taxing 
d istrict by the district's tota l taxable value. 
2. The determination of taxable va lue begins with the true and ful l  value or market val ue of the 
property. The true and ful l  value of residential property is usual ly establ ished by the local 
assessor. The assessed value is 50% of the true and fu l l  value and the taxable value is 9% of the 
assessed value. 

The county determines and col lects the tax and distributes the revenue to the county, cities, townships, 
school districts, and other taxing districts. The tax is due Janua ry 1 of each year fol lowing the yea r of 
assessment and is payable without penalty until March 1. 

Exception 

• P roperty of Native Americans, where the title cannot be transferred without the consent of 
the U .S. Secretary of the I nterior, is exempt. 
• A mobi le home l ocated within the boundaries of a reservation and owned by a Native 
American who resides on that reservation is not subject to taxation . 
• Note that a mobi le home located within the boundaries of a reservation, and owned by a 
Native American, wi l l be subject to tax if the owner does not reside on the reservation. 

Native Tax Contributions 

Personal I ncome Tax 

Personal income tax is typical ly pai d by Native Americans residing off the reservations. North Dakota 
law requ i res that every resident of North Dakota who has a federal income tax fi l i ng requ i rement is 
requ i red to fi le a North Dakota income tax return. There is an estimated 17,686 Native Americans that 
l ive off reservations in North Dakota. Those citizens of North Dakota generate approximately 
$209,590,950 in wages and salaries. The lowest tax rate in North Dakota is 1.5%. Si nce most of the 
Native American population in North Dakota is wel l below the poverty l ine, we have opted to use that 
figure as the most l ikely. Accord ingly, the personal income tax contribution for Native Americans in 
North Dakota is estimated to be $3,143,864 or $178 per person annual ly. 

Accord ing to the Tax Foundation, North Dakota 's 2010 state-level individual i ncome tax col lections were 
$454 per person. If that is the case the personal Income tax contribution of Native Americans cou ld be 
as high as $8,029,898 per yea r. 
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If taxable i ncome is: 

Over I But not over I 
s o 1 s 35,350 1 

35,350 1 85,650 1 
85,650 1 178,650 1 

178,650 1 388,350 1 

388,350 1 

Single 

The tax is: 

1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable I ncome 

$ 533.79 1 + 2.82% of amount over $35,350 

1,952.25 1 + 3.13% of amount over $85,650 

4,863. 15 1 + 3.63% of amount over $178,650 

12,475.26 1 + 3.99% of amount over $388,350 

Married Fil ing Jointly and Qualifying Widow(er) 

If taxable income is: 

Over I But not over I The tax is: I 
$ 0 I $ 59,100 I 1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable I ncome 

r-� --5-9,-1-00-�1-4_2_,7_0_0_,1 ____ $_8_9_2.41 I + 2.82% of amount over $59,100 

1 142,700 I 217,450 I 3,249.93 1 + 3.13% of amount over $142,700 

\ 217,450 I 388,350 I 5,589.61 I +  3.63% of amount over $217,450 

I 388,350 I 11,793 .28 1 + 3.99% of amount over $388,350 

January 2013 

I 

=-�-"""',� 

If taxable income is: 

Over I But not over I 
s o 1 s 47,350 1 

47,350 1 122,300 1 
122,300 1 198,050 1 
198,050 1 388,350 1 
388,350 1 

Head of Household 

The tax is: 

1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable I ncome 

$ 714.99 1 + 2.82% of amount over $47,350 

2,828 .58 1 + 3. 13% of amount over $ 122,300 

5,199.56 1 + 3.63% of amount over $ 198,050 

12,107.45 1 + 3.99% of amount over $388,350 
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Married Fil ing Separately 

: If taxable income is:  

Over I But not over j The tax is: I 
$ 0 I $ 29,550 I 1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable I ncome 

29,550 i i 
71,350 I 

I 

108,725 l 
I 

194,175 

71,350 J $ 446.21 I +  2.82% of amount over $29,550 

108J25 1 1,624.97 1 + 3. 13% of amount over $71,350 

194,175 1 2,794.81 1 + 3.63% of amount over $108,725 

I 5,896.65 1 + 3.99% of amount over $194,175 
--=-----·-·---=-· -----�=-==--=-

Sales and Use Tax 

Sales and use tax touches nearly every Native American in the state regard l ess of whether they live on 
the reservation or off the reservation . Native Americans generate $509,550,000 in wages and salary 
income annual ly. Approximately 85.5% of that income is consumed by non-durable and services 
purchases of Native Americans. Since reservation economies are not very robust, nearly a l l those 
purchases occur off the reservations where Native Americans are subject to sales and use tax. The ND 
Department of Commerce reports that less than 10% of Native American Reservation economies 
support non-durabl e and services purchases. It is safe to estimate that 80% of the wage and salary 
income of Native Americans is consumed by purchases made off the reservations and generates 
approximately $20,382,000 in sales and use tax annual ly. Furthermore, most of those purchase occur in 
the major cities of the state; Bismarck, Minot, Grand Forks, Devils Lake. Those loca l jurisdictions levy 
loca l taxes above the 5% state sal es and use tax. Those cities benefit greatly by purchases made by 
Native Americans as wel l . 

M otor Fuels Tax 

Motor fuels taxes are col lected at the pump as consumers by gasol ine and diesel fue l . However, that tax 
is col lected up front from the petroleum retai lers as they purchase gasol ine and d iesel fue l from 
wholesa lers. Every Native American citizen of North Dakota is subject to this tax. We estimate that 10% 
of consumption is related directly to Motor fuels taxes and generates $11,719 .650 in motor fuels taxes 
annual ly to North Dakota from Native American citizens of North Dakota. 

Corporate Income Tax 

The North Dakota Department of Commerce reports that there are 85 Native American owned 
corporations off the reservation that average $340,361 in net income each year that is subject to 
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corporate income tax. We choose to estimate a middle range of tax l iabi l ity of 4.23% that generates 
$ 1,223,768 in corporate income tax each year. 

! If taxable income is: 

I Over I But not over I The tax is: 

I $ 0 �-$-2-5-,0-0_0_
rl----1-.-68_%_o

+j-o-f -N-or_t_h_D_a-ko_t_a_T_a-xa-b-le-ln-co_m_e ___ _ 

I 25,000 I 50,000 I $ 420.00 j + 4.23% of amount over $25,000 

I 50,000 I 1,477.50 j + 5.15% of amount over $50,000 

Property Tax 

Native Americans and Tribes do pay property taxes. Tribes do own fee simple land on and adjacent to 
reservations that are subject to property taxes. Many Native Americans residing off the reservation are 
home-owners and they also pay property taxes in the same manner as everyone e lse in North Dakota. 
This category is difficult to estimate. However, the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe pays $42,000 annua l ly in 
property taxes for fee simple land it owns. That is about the midd le ground. Some tribes own more 
land than that and pay more and some Tribes own less land than that and pay less. So, we estimate that 
that is a conservative number for estimating purposes. This figure does not include persona l property 
tax contributions of individua l Native American off the reservation. This contribution is estimated to be 
$ 168,000 annual ly. 

Oil Extraction and Production Tax (NDCC Chapters 57-51 and 57-51.1) 
Oil Extraction and Production Taxes are contributed to the state from lands on the Fort Berthold 
Reservation on ly. This tax is a revenue sharing agreement between the MHA Nation and the State of 
North Dakota. The 2012 contribution of Oil Extraction and Production Taxes to the state was 
$21,060,888 . As Oi l Extraction and Production increases on the reservation, this amount wil l a lso 
increase. 
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Annual Tax Contributions by Native American Citizens in North Dakota 
The estimated annua l contribution of Native American citizens of North Dakota is $36,637,282. This 
equates to $852 for every Native man, woman and child in North Dakota . lf the Oi l Extraction and 
Production Taxes from the MHA Nation are factored in, that annual contribution increases to 
$57,698,170. This equates to $1,342 for every Native man, woman and chi ld in North Dakota. 

Source Base Contribution 
Personal I ncome 
Tax $209,590,950 $3,143,864 
Sales & Use $407,640,000 $20,382,000 
Motor Fuels $50,955,000 $11,719,650 
Corporate $28,930,685 $1,223,768 
Property* $ 168,000 

Tota l $36,637,282 

Oil Production $21,060,888 

Grand Total $57,698,170 
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Executive Summary 
There has long been a myth that Native Americans in North Dakota do not pay taxes. This report wil l 
attempt to estimate the tax contribution of Native Americans to the State of North Dakota's tax base. 
No analysis of Native American tax contribution has ever been attempted before. 

The state-wide Native American population is approximately 43,000 enrol led members of tribes from a l l 
across the Nation . North Dakota has a number of taxes that citizens pay each year. We have se lected 
five types of tax that are paid by Native Americans to the state of North Dakota: Personal Income Tax, 
Sales & Use tax, Motor Fuels Tax, Property Tax, and Corporate Tax. 

There is no current published data regarding consumption patterns of Native Americans on the 
reservations. However, the only known attempt was conducted by Dr. J im Young prior to his passing in 
1997. 

Reservation per capita income lags wel l  behind the rest of North Dakota. We estimate that the 43,000 
Native Americans generate about $509,550,000 in income per year statewide. The persona l income tax 
contribution for Native Americans in North Dakota is estimated to be $3,143,864 or $178 per person 
annual ly . It is safe to estimate that 80% of the wage and salary income of Native Americans is consumed 
by purchases made off the reservations and generates approximately $20,382,000 in sales and use tax 
annua l ly . We estimate that 10% of consumption is related directly to Motor fuels taxes and generates 
$11,719.650 in motor fuels taxes annua l ly. Native Americans and Tribes do pay property taxes. This 
contribution is estimated to be $168,000 annual ly. The 2012 contribution of Oil Extraction and 
Production Taxes to the state was $21,060,888. 

The annua l contribution of the five selected tax areas by Native Americans in North Dakota is estimated 
to be $57,698,170. This equates to $1,342 for every Native man, woman and chi ld in North Dakota. 
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Native American Tax Contributions in 
North Dakota 
True or False? Native Americans don't pay taxes. False, Native Americans pay federa l  taxes on their 
i ncome and capita l gains, just as any other American does. Native Americans do not pay taxes on 
moneys earned from their land al lotments, since those lease fees are from the government a nd were 
negotiated as part of a treaty. While earning money on the reservation, Native Americans also do not 
pay state, corporate, or state l icense fees for income or enterprises on the reservations due to the 
sovereign status of the reservation. While earning money off the reservation, however, Native 
Americans a re subject to state income, corporate, and licensing taxes. 

There has long been a myth that Native Americans in North Dakota do not pay taxes. Further, it is 
widely surmised that Native Americans do not substantia l ly contribute to the state's taxes in a manner 
consistent with a l l non-Native citizens of North Dakota . The general rule of thumb is that Tribes are tax­
exempt, i nd ividual Native Americans a re not. However, there are a lways exceptions to the rules. 

This report wil l attempt to estimate the tax contribution of Native Americans to the State of North 
Dakota's tax base. No ana lysis of Native American tax contribution has ever been attempted before. 
Therefore, there is no literature or example of an estimate of any kind. 

Native Americans in North Dakota 
Native Americans in North Dakota enjoy tri-citizenship; they are citizens of the Un ited States, they are 
citizens of their respective Native Nation, and they a re citizens of the State of North Dakota. They vote 
in N ational, Tribal and statewide e lections and pay taxes as wel l .  

The state-wide Native American population is approximately 43,000 enrol led members of tribes from a l l 
across the Nation . The enro l led membership of the four Native American tribes is approximately 
67,750. Not a l l enro l led members of the four tribes in North Dakota live in this state. Many reside 
outside North Dakota and abroad serving in the military services. The enrol led membership that resides 
on each reservation in North Dakota is approximately 25,313. There are approximate ly 17,687 Native 
Americans that l ive off the reservations in North Dakota. 

Native Nation Popu lations Enrol lment Reservation 
MHA 12,204 6,341 
Spirit Lake 6,748 4,238 
Standing Rock 16,000 6,414 
Turtle Mountain 31,000 8,320 
Trenton Indian Service Area 1,800 
Source: NO Indian Affairs Commission 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0  American Community Survey 
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State Native Reservation Off 
Popu lation Population Reservation 

43,000 25,313 17,687 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0  Amencan Community Survey 

Native American Consumption in North Dakota 
There is no current publ ished data regarding consumption patterns of Native Americans on the 
reservations . However, the on ly known attempt was conducted by Dr. Jim Young prior to his passing i n 
1997. D r .  Young received h i s Doctorate in Economics from UCLA. Dr. Young passed prior to publ ishing 
his study data. This data is dated and is being used as a reference only since there is no other ava i lable 
data . 

Personal Consumption MHA SLN SRST TMBCI Average 
Durabl e Goods 13% 15% 15% 15% 14.5% 

Autos & Parts 5% 5% 5% 5% 5 .0% 
Furn & HH Equip 5% 4% 5% 5% 4.8% 

M isc. Equip & Mach 2% 5% 4% 4% 3 .8% 
Others 1% 1% 1% 1% 1.0% 

Non-Durab le Goods 30% 32% 35% 35% 33.0% 
Groceries 15% 18% 15% 15% 15.8% 
Clothing 5% 5% 5% 5% 5 .0% 

Gas/Diesel 5% 5% 10% 7% 6.8% 
Heating Oi l/Propane 2% 4% 3% 4% 3.3% 
Other (Hdwre/Mat} 3% 1% 2% 4% 2.5% 

Services 57% 53% 50% 50% 52.5% 
Housing 14% 16% 15% 15% 15.0% 

Household Uti lities 6% 7% 6% 6% 6.3% 
Medica l Care 16% 10% 5% 16% 11.8% 

Transportation ( Ins} 4% 7% 9% 4% 6.0% 
Pers Svcs, Recreation 17% 13% 15% 9% 13.5% 

Native American Income in North Dakota 
Reservation per capita income lags well behind the rest of North Dakota. We estimate that the 43,000 
Native Americans generate about $509,550,000 in income per year statewide. We also estimate that the 
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25,313 enrol led members residing on the reservation generate $299,959,050 annua l ly and the 17,687 
enrol led members l iving off the reservation generate $209,590,950 annua l ly. 

Per Capita 
I ncome $11,850 

Off 
Total Reservation Reservation 
$509,550,000 $299,959,050 $209,590,950 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-201 0 Amencan Community Survey 

North Dakota Tax Law application to Native Americans 
North Dakota has a number of taxes that citizens pay each year. We have selected five types of tax that 
a re paid by Native Americans to the state of North Dakota : Personal I ncome Tax, Sales & Use tax, Motor 
Fuels Tax, P roperty Tax, and Corporate Tax. We also include Oil Extraction and Production Taxes. The 
latter is contributed to the state from lands on the Fort Berthold Reservation on ly. Native Americans 
also pay Cigarette and Alcoho l taxes but those taxes are very difficu lt to determ ine so we have left them 
out of this ana lysis. 

Personal Income Tax (NDCC Chapter 57-38) 
Every resident of North Dakota who has a federal income tax fi l ing requirement is required to file a 
North Dakota income tax return. Every nonresident who has a federal income tax fi l ing requirement and 
derives income from North Dakota is required to fi le a North Dakota income tax return. 

Exception 

• There are exceptions for certain Native Americans, interstate transportation employees, 
Minnesota and Montana residents, and military personnel and their spouses. 
• I ncome of an enrol led member of a federal ly recognized I ndian tribe, who resides within the 
boundaries of a reservation in this state or in this state and an adjoining state, is exempt if the 
income is from activities or sources within the bounda ries of the reservation. 

Corporate Tax (NDCC Chapter 57-38) 
Every corporation engaged in business in North Dakota or having sources of income in North Dakota 
must fi le a North Dakota corporation income tax return. 

Exception 

• An exemption app lies if the corporation is chartered as an Indian corporation and has not 
chartered with the Secretary of State. 

Sales & Use Tax (NDCC Chapters 57-39.2 and 57-40.2) 
1. A 5% tax is imposed upon the gross receipts of retai lers from a l l sales at retail, including the leasing or 
renting of tangible personal property. 
2. The sales tax is paid by the purchaser and collected by the retailer. 
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Exception 

Use Tax 

• G ross receipts from a l l sales made to an I ndian tri be are exempt from the 5% tax. 
• Gross receipts from sales within the boundaries of any reservation in this state to an individua l 
who resides within the boundaries of any reservation in this state and who is an enro l led 
member of a federa l ly recognized I ndian tribe" are exempt from the 5% tax. 

1. The purchase price of tangib le persona l property purchased outside of the state for storage, use or 
consumption within the state is subject to a use tax at the rate of 5% of the purchase price of the 
property. 
2. I n  addition, tangible persona l property not origina l ly purchased for use in North Dakota is subject to a 
use tax at the rate of 5% of the fair market value of the property at the time it was brought into the 
state. 

a. Credits are a l lowed for sa les and use taxes paid to other states. 
b. U se tax rates are the same as the sales tax rates. 
c. Use tax is col lected by any retai ler that has sufficient presence in North Dakota. 
d .  When the retai ler has not collected sales or use tax, the purchaser is required to report and 
rem it the tax due. 

Exception 

• Use tax does not apply to items sold on an I ndian reservation to an enrol led member of a 
federa l ly recognized tribe. 
• Use tax does not apply to untaxed property brought onto an I ndian reservation by an enrol led 
member of a federa l ly recognized tribe for storage, use, or consumption on the reservation by 
the enrol led member. 

Motor Fuels Tax (NDCC Chapters 57-43.1 and 57-43.2) 
A motor veh icle fue l tax of 23 cents per gal lon is imposed on motor vehicle fuel, such as gas and gasohol, 
sold to retai lers and consumers. A specia l fuels tax of 23 cents per gal lon on fuels including diesel, 
biod iesel, kerosene, compressed natural gas, and propane is imposed on fuel sold for use in l icensed 
vehicles. An excise tax of 2% of the value of the sa le is appl ied to sales of propane. An excise tax of 4 
cents per ga l lon is imposed on dyed diesel fuel which is used primari ly in vehicles and equipment 
operating off of the roadways. 

Exception 

• N ative American Tribal agencies are exempt from North Dakota motor vehicle and specia l fuel 
taxes. If the tax is paid, the Tribal agency may app ly for a ful l  refund. 
• A Native American may also apply for a refund of motor vehicle or specia l fuel taxes paid if the 
fue l  was purchased from a retai l fuel dea ler l ocated on the I ndian reservation where the Native 
American is an enro l led member and a Fuel Tax Agreement is not in place. 
• A Native American, l iving on the reservation where enrolled, is exempt from tribal tax on 
purchases of dyed d iesel .  
• A Native American, l iving on the reservation where enro l led, is exempt from tribal tax on 
purchases of propane if the propane is used for purposes such a s  heating o r  agricu lture. The 
exemption wil l  not apply if the propane is purchased for use in a vehicle. 
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Property Tax (NDCC Chapter 57-02) 
Al l rea l property, un less specifical ly exempted, is subject to a property tax. In genera l, persona l property 
is not taxed . 

1 . The majority of rea l property is loca l ly assessed . 
2 . Other properties, such as rai l roads, publ ic utilities, and air transportation companies, are 
centrally assessed by the State Board of Equal ization. 

A mobile home used as a residence or business is subject to the tax if it is 27 or more feet long or is 
attached to util ity services. 
The property tax is determined by multiplying the mi l l rate times the taxable val ue of real property. 

1 . Local mi l l rates are establ ished to meet the revenue needs of the taxing district. To determine 
the mi l l rate, the county auditor divides the total property taxes to be col lected for each taxing 
d istrict by the district's tota l taxable value. 
2 . The determination of taxable value begins with the true and ful l  value or market value of the 
property. The true and ful l  va lue of residential property is usual ly establ ished by the local 
assessor. The assessed va lue is 50% of the true and ful l value and the taxable value is 9% of the 
assessed val ue . 

The county determines and collects the tax and distributes the revenue to the county, cities, townships, 
school districts, and other taxing districts. The tax is due January 1 of each year fol lowing the year of 
assessment and is payable without penalty until March 1. 

Exception 

• Property of Native Americans, where the title cannot be transfe rred without the consent of 
the U .S. Secretary of the I nterior, is exempt. 
• A mobi le home located within the boundaries of a reservation and owned by a Native 
American who resides on that reservation is not subject to taxation. 
• Note that a mobile home located within the boundaries of a reservation, and owned by a 
Native American, wi l l be subject to tax if the owner does not reside on the reservation. 

Native Tax Contributions 

Personal Income Tax 

Personal i ncome tax is typica l ly paid by Native Americans residing off the reservations. North Dakota 
law requires that every resident of North Dakota who has a federa l income tax fi l ing requirement is 
required to fi le a North Dakota income tax return. There is an estimated 17,686 Native Americans that 
live off reservations in North Dakota . Those citizens of North Dakota generate approximately 
$209,590,950 in wages and salaries. The lowest tax rate in North Dakota is 1.5%. Since most of the 
Native American popu lation in North Dakota is wel l  below the poverty l ine, we have opted to use that 
figure as the most l ikely. Accord ingly, the persona l  income tax contribution for Native Americans in 
North Dakota is estimated to be $3,143,864 or $178 per person annual ly. 

According to the Tax Foundation, North Dakota's 2010 state-level individual income tax collections were 
$454 per person. If that is the case the personal Income tax contribution of Native Americans cou ld be 
as high as $8,029,898 per year. 
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Single 

1 If taxable income is: 

I Over I But not over I The tax is: I 
I $ 0 I $ 35,350 I 1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable Income 
r-� --3-5-,3-5-0-

r-l --8-5-,6-5_0_;1----$-5-3_3_. 7-9 j+2.82% of amount over $35,350 

I 85,650 I 178,650 I 1,952.25 1 + 3.13% of amount over $85,650 

I 178,650 I 388,350 I 4,863 . 15 1 + 3.63% of amount over $178,650 

_I ___:88,350 I I 12,475.26 1 + 3.99% of amount over $388,350 

Married Filing J ointly and Qualifying Widow(er) 

If taxable income is: 

The tax is: \ Over j But not over j 

I $ 0 I $ 59,100 jr------1-.5_1_%-;jr--o-f_N_o-rt_h_D_a_k-ot_a_T_a_xa_b_le_l_n-co_m_e_ 

�--5-9,100 j 142JOO �--$-8
_
9_2-.4-1-1+ 2.82% of amount over $59,100 

I 142,700 I 217,450 I 3,249.93 1 + 3. 13% of amount over $142,700 I r 217,450 1 388,350 1 5,589.61 · 1 + 3.63% of amount over $217,450 1: 
L
_

3�l
-

-
-
. .  
�

-
��=L�:?��__:�u_n_t �..:.388,350 --=�J 

I Head of Household i j tf taxable income is: 

I Over I But not over I 
1 $ o 1 $ 47,350 1 

1 47,350 1 122,300 1 

1 122,300 1 198,050 1 

1 198,050 1 388,350 1 

1 388,350 1 

The tax is: I 
1.51% I of North Dakota Taxable Income 

$ 714.99 1 + 2.82% of amount over $47,350 

2,828.58 1 + 3. 13% of amount over $122,300 

5,199.56 1 + 3.63% of amount over $198,050 

12,107.45 1 + 3 .99% of amount over $388,350 
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Married Filing Separately 

! If taxable income is: 
! r­

over i But not over 1 ----------· ,----------------------------

The tax is: 1 

s o ! 
29,550 I I 
71,350 i 

$ 29,550 I 1 .51% i of North Dakota Taxable I ncome 
------- r 

71,350 / $ 446.21 J + 2.82% of amount over $29,550 
I 

108,725 ! 1,624.97 l + 3. 13% of amount over $71,350 
·, ' �I ---------�------------- ��------------------------

__ 

1_0_8_,7_2_5_;..../ __ 
19_4_,_17_5

_,_
) _______ 2,_7_9_4._8_1 �% of amount over $108,725 I 

_ :.:��1� ! _ ,, __ --�9-:65 / + 3
.9:��-

f �mount over
_�_::���=- ==-_j 

Sales and Use Tax 

Sales and use tax touches nearly every Native American in the state regardless of whether they l ive on 
the reservation or off the reservation. Native Americans generate $509,550,000 in wages and salary 
income annual ly. Approximately 85.5% of that income is consumed by non-durab le and services 
purchases of Native Americans. Since reservation economies are not very robust, nearly all those 
purchases occur off the reservations where Native Americans are subject to sales and use tax. The ND 
Department of Commerce reports that less than 10% of Native American Reservation economies 
support non-durable and services purchases. It is safe to estimate that 80% of the wage and salary 
income of Native Americans is consumed by purchases made off the reservations and generates 
approximately $20,382,000 in sales and use tax annual ly. Furthermore, most of those purchase occur in 
the major cities of the state; Bismarck, Minot, Grand Forks, Devi ls Lake . Those local jurisdictions levy 
local taxes above the 5% state sales and use tax. Those cities benefit greatly by purchases made by 
Native Americans as wel l . 

Motor Fuels Tax 

Motor fuels taxes are col lected at the pump as consumers by gasoline and diesel fue l . However, that tax 
is collected up front from the petroleum retai lers as they purchase gasoline and d iesel fuel from 
wholesa lers. Every Native American citizen of North Dakota is subject to this tax. We estimate that 10% 
of consumption is related directly to Motor fuels taxes and generates $11,719.650 in motor fuels taxes 
annual ly to North Dakota from Native American citizens of North Dakota. 

Corporate I ncome Tax 

The North Dakota Department of Commerce reports that there are 85 Native American owned 
corporations off the reservation that average $340,361 in net income each year that is subject to 
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corporate income tax. We choose to estimate a middle range of tax l iabi lity of 4.23% that generates 
$ 1,223,768 in corporate income tax each year. 

j tt taxable income is: 

Over j But not over I 
$ o 1 $ 25,000 1 

25,000 1 50,000 1 
50,000 1 

Property Tax 

The tax is: 

1.68% lof North Dakota Taxable I ncome 

$ 420.00 I + 4.23% of amount over $25,000 

1,477.50 I +  5. 15% of amount over $50,000 

Native Americans and Tribes do pay property taxes. Tribes do own fee simple l and on and adjacent to 
reservations that are subject to property taxes. Many Native Americans residing off the reservation a re 
home-owne rs and they a lso pay property taxes in the same manner as everyone e lse in North Dakota. 
This category is d ifficult to estimate. However, the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe pays $42,000 annual ly in 
property taxes for fee s imple land it owns. That is about the midd le ground. Some tribes own more 
land than that and pay more and some Tribes own less land than that and pay less. So, we estimate that 
that is a conservative number for estimating purposes. This figure does not include persona l property 
tax contributions of ind ividual Native American off the reservation. This contribution is estimated to be 
$168,000 annual ly. 

Oil Extraction and Production Tax (NDCC Chapters 57-51 and 57-51.1) 
Oil Extraction and Production Taxes are contributed to the state from lands on the Fort Berthold 
Reservation on ly. This tax is a revenue sharing agreement between the MHA Nation and the State of 
North Dakota . The 2012 contribution of Oil Extraction and Production Taxes to the state was 
$21,060,888 . As Oi l Extraction and Production increases on the reservation, this amount wi l l a lso 
increase. 

North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges 10 



Native American Tax Contributions in North Dakota J anuary 2013 

Annual Tax Contributions by Native American Citizens in North Dakota 
The estimated annual contribution of Native American citizens of North Dakota is $36,637,282. This 
equates to $852 for every Native man, woman and child in North Dakota . If the Oi l Extraction and 
Production Taxes from the MHA Nation are factored in, that annual contribution increases to 
$57,698,170. This equates to $ 1,342 for every Native man, woman and chi ld in North Dakota. 

Source Base Contribution 
Personal Income 
Tax $209,590,950 $3,143,864 
Sales & Use $407,640,000 $20,382,000 
Motor Fuels $50,955,000 $11,719,650 
Corporate $28,930,685 $1,223,768 
Property* $168,000 

Tota l $36,637,282 

Oil Production $21,060,888 

Grand Tota l $57,698,170 
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Executive Summary 

The North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges (NDATC) has five Tribal Colleges 
located in the State with the first college established in 1 969. These colleges were founded to 
provide post-secondary cultural-based educational opportunities on several of North Dakota' s  
Native American reservations and for the urban Indian population in the Bismarck-Mandan area. 
Expenditure and enrollment data provided by each respective college were used to estimate the 
economic impact for the five Tribal Colleges. Student spending also has an economic impact 
beyond that of the Tribal Colleges. Student spending was used to estimate the economic impact 
resulting from student living expenses. 

Expenditures by the colleges constitute the direct, or first-round, economic effects. The 
five Tribal Colleges collectively spent over $48 million in North Dakota in Fiscal Year (FY) 
2 0 1 2. Over half of these expenditures (direct effects) ($28. 7 million) were to the Households 
Sector, primarily for wages and salaries. Total economic impact of the Tribal Colleges was over 
$ 1 42 million in FY20 1 2. The highest level of total economic impact business activity was in the 
Households Sector (economy-wide personal income) with $59.0 million, followed by Retail 
Trade Sector with $35 .3 million. Total employment at the five Tribal Colleges was 8 1 5  full-time 
and 209 part-time workers. Levels of business activity generated by the Tribal College 
expenditures would suppmi an additional 392 secondary jobs in various sectors of the North 
Dakota economy. 

Student spending also creates an economic impact in addition to the impacts associated 
with the five colleges. Expenditures by full-time and pmi-time students for personal items, 
recreation, books, supplies, and room and board amounted to $ 1 6.0  million in the 20 1 1 -20 1 2  
academic year. Applying these expenditures to the Nmih Dakota Input-Output Model provided 
m1 estimate of the total economic impact associated with student spending. Total economic 
impact from student spending was $39.6 million ($ 1 6.0 million in direct impacts plus $23 .6 
million in secondm-y impacts). Student spending would generate enough economic activity to 
support 83 secondm-y (indirect and induced) jobs in Nmih Dakota. 

The Five Tribal Colleges and their students have substantial impacts on Nmih Dakota's 
economy. These colleges also provide valuable post-seconda1-y educational programs. Tribal 
Colleges provide both social and economic benefits to the North Dakota communities that are 
hume to these Golleges. Measuring the social value of a college degree is difficult, but the 

economic value can be identified in terms of lower unemployment, higher median mmual 
earnings, and a higher total lifetime income. 
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Economic Contribution of North Dakota's  Tribal Colleges in 2012 
Randal C. Coon, Dean A. Bangsund, and Nancy M. Hodur* 

North Dakota is home to numerous institutions that provide higher education 
opportunities. The North Dakota University System (NDUS) has 1 1  colleges and the North 
Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges (NDATC) consists of 5 institutions. Colleges that 
comprise the North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges include Cankdeska Cikana 
Community College serving the Spirit Lake Reservation, Sitting Bull College serving the 
Standing Rock Reservation, Turtle Mountain Community College serving the Turtle Mountain 
Band of Chippewa, United Tribes Technical College based in Bismarck and serving multi-tribal 
members from across the United States, and Fort Berthold Community College serving the Three 
Affiliated Tribes (Mandan, Arikara, and Hidatsu). The Tribal Colleges are relatively new to the 
state' s  educational system with United Tribes Technical College first offering classes in 1 969. In 
·
addition to educational opportunities for students, the five Tribal Colleges have an economic 
impact on the communities where they are located. Tribal Colleges make expenditures for goods 
and services purchased in the state, hire employees to staff their institutions, and construct 
campus buildings for the purpose of providing educational opportunities. The purpose of this 
study is to estimate the economic impact the Tribal Colleges' operations have on the North 
Dakota economy. 

The North Dakota University System has sponsored economic impact assessments for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 1 999 and 2004 (Leistritz and Coon 2005), FY2006 (Leistritz and Coon 2007), 
FY2008 (Leistritz and Coon 2009), FY2009 (Bangsund et al. 20 1 0), and FY201 1  (Coon et al. 
20 1 2a) . While a combined economic impact analysis for the five Tribal College has not 
previously been completed, individual colleges have sponsored economic impact analyses 
including Cankdeska Cikana Community College for FY2008 (Leistritz and Bangsund 2008), 
Sitting Bull College for FY2009 (Leistritz and Bangsund 20 1 0), and United Tribes Technical 
College for FY20 1 0  (Gipp et al. 201 1 ). This analysis is intended to be a parallel study to those 
conducted for the North Dakota University System. 

Similar methods, analysis, and format will be used so the documents will contain 
conesponding infom1ation. This report will provide an estimate of the collective economic 
impact of the five Tribal Colleges and their student spending. Also, a section of this report will 
provide background information for each of the Tribal Colleges. The background information 
will mclude a history for each school, campus location, acadernic areas· of stu.dy, degrees granted; 
and the mission of each respective college. Consistent with other studies, an economic impact 
analysis also will be completed for each individual college and presented in separate reports. 

In addition to the traditional economic impact analysis including direct and secondary 
effects resulting from expenditures by the colleges and their students, this study will include a 
brief examination of the value of a college education. No original research was conducted for this 
topic, but a comprehensive review of published literature was conducted to summarize the social 
and economic benefits of a college education. This information is not specific to the Tribal 
Colleges, but rather provides salient infom1ation regarding a college education in general. 

*
rhe authors are, resp ectively, research specialist, research scientist, and research assistant professor in the 
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Extensive research has been conducted on the value of a college degree and selected statistics 
will be presented to highlight the economic value of a post-secondary education. 

Background 

This economic impact analysis is for the North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges. 
The five Tribal Colleges included in this study were Cankdeska Cikana Community College 
(CCCC), S itting Bull College (SBC), Turtle Mountain Community College (TMCC), United 
Tribes Technical College (UTTC), and Fort Berthold Community College (FBCC). A brief 
discussion about each college provides insights into their programs, mission, employment, and 
student emollment. 

Cankdeska Cikana Community College 

Cankdeska Cikana (Little Hoop) Community College was established in 1 974 by the 
Spirit Lake Tribal Council and is located at Fort Totten, ND. CCCC is named in honor of Paul 
Yankton, Sr., who died while serving with the U.S .  Army's  1 1 1h Infantry in Lonaine, France 
during World War II (Cankdeska Cikana Community College 2012). CCCC was one of the 29 
Native American post-secondary institutions recognized as a " 1 994 Tribal Land Grant College" 
by the Equity in Education Land Grand Status Act of 1 994, as are the other four North Dakota 
Tribal Colleges . Acquiring land grant status allowed CCCC to access resources necessary to 
can-y out the three missions of a land grant institution: teaching, extension, and research. 

CCCC was granted accreditation at the Associate Degree granting level from the Nmih 
Central Association of Colleges and Schools in 1 990. CCCC offers 1 7  programs of study with 
degrees in Associate of Alis (5), Associate of Science (3), Associate of Applied Sciences (6), and 
3 certificate degree programs. In 20 12,  ecce had 286 full-time and 279 part-time students, and 
the college employed 78 full-time and 6 part-time workers . The mission statement for CCCC is 
to provide higher education opportunities at the community college level with a goal of helping 
students achieve independence and self-sufficiency through academic achievement. In addition to 
the college CUlTiculum, ecce also provides an Adult Learning Center and childcare services, but 
does not have student housing at the present time. 

Sitting Bull College 

The Standing Rock Tribal Council granted a charter to Standing Rock Community 
College to operate as a post-secondary educational institution with authority to grant associate 
degrees in 1 973 . Standing Rock Community College opened its doors in 1 973 with offices and 
classrooms in Fort Yates, with three full-time people on staff. In 1 975,  Standing Rock 
Community College began the accreditation process. The North Central Association of Colleges 
and Schools Commission on Higher Education granted Standing Rock Community College full 
accreditation in 1 984. At this time the college' s  name was changed to Standing Rock College. 
The Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Council changed the college' s  name to Sitting Bull College in 
1 996. Sitting Bull College began adding Bachelor of Science degrees (business administration 
and elementary education) in 2004 and added additional degrees in 2007 and 2008. The college's 
mission statement is: "Sitting Bull College is an academic and technical institution committed to 
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improving the levels of educational training, economic and social development of the people it 
serves while promoting responsible behavior consistent with the Lakota/Dakota culture and 
language". 

Sitting Bull College began building a new campus overlooking the Missouri River in 
1 998 .  The construction projects included buildings for academics, administration, athletics, mis, 
as well as family housing and dormitories. Expansion of the campus m1d college resulted in 
employment growth with over 264 full-time and 69 part-time workers in 20 1 2  and enrollment 
reaching 567 full-time and 1 65 part-time students. Sitting Bull College grants Bachelor of 
Science degrees, Associate of Arts degrees, Associate of Science degrees, Associate of Applied 
Science degrees, and certificate of completion degrees for achievement in vocational training 
programs. Bachelor of Science degrees are awarded in business administration, early childhood 
education, elementary education, secondary science education, special education, environmental 
science, and general studies. SBC provides various student services including childcare and 
tutoring. 

Turtle Mountain Community College 

Turtle Mountain Community College was chartered by the Turtle Mountain Chippewa 
Tribe in 1 972. TMCC initially operated out of two offices of a former Catholic Convent, then 
moved to a basement of an abandoned Indian Health Service Hospital. In 1 999, a new campus 
was built 3 miles north of Belcourt, overlooking Belcourt Lake, and to date the majority of 
programs operate out of this facility. The new 123-acre main campus north of Belcou1i has 
classrooms, labs, library, gymnasium, auditorium and other facilities. Currently, TMCC operates 
three college campuses. 

The 1 02-acre Anishinabe Education and Cultural campus is located 2 miles north of 
Belcourt and is the primm-y base for their land grant activities and cultural activities. The 
Belcourt downtown campus encompasses 5 acres and was the main campus prior to 1 999. The 
downtown campus cunently provides a location for the Adult Education Program, the Vocational 
Rehabilitation Program, the Welding Program, and the Heating, Ventilation, and Air 
Conditioning Program. TMCC is a commuter college that does not provide residence halls .  

TMCC applied for accreditation in 1 978 with the North Central Association of Colleges 
aild Schools and in 1 984, full accreditation by the Higher Leaming Cvn.in'lission was granted. A 
Bachelor of Science degree in elementary education was granted full accreditation in 200 1 .  
TMCC educational programs include 1 2  Associate of Arts programs, 1 6  Associate o f  Science 
programs, 3 Bachelor of Science programs, 7 Certificate programs, Career and Technical 
Education, and Native American Career and Technical Education Program. Bachelor of Science 
degrees are granted for elementary education, early childhood educa6on, and secondary science. 
The Native American Career and Technical Education Program is directly responsive to and 
suppmiive of employment oppmiUnities available to tribal members living on or near the 
reservation, and includes programs in computer support, building construction, management, 
health infom1ation management, and educational paraprofessional. An Adult and Continuing 
Education program was established at TMCC in 1 976 to increase knowledge and improve skills 
and to assist adults in obtaining High School Equivalency Diplomas. 
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TMCC mission statement st!ltes that the college is committed to functioning as an 
autonomous Native American controlled college on the Turtle Mountain Chippewa Reservation 
focusing on general studies, undergraduate education, career and technical education, scholarly 
research, and continuous improvement of student learning. h1 20 1 2, TMCC had 1 ,345 full-time 
students and 1 8 1  pa1t-time students enrolled at the college. TMCC employs 142 full-time and 44 
part-time workers. 

United Tribes Technical College 

The United Tlibes ofNorth Dakota Development Corporation was chartered in 1 968 to 
address the need for training and jobs development for Native Americans. United Tribes consists 
of the five federally recognized tribes in the state: the Three Affiliated Tribes of the 
Mandan/Hidasta/Arikara Nation, Spirit Lake DakotaTlibe, Sisseton Wahpeton Oyate, Standing 
Rock Lakota Tlibe, and Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa. United Tribes of North Dakota 
Development Corporation purchased Fort Lincoln, a fmmer military post south of Bismarck, 
from the federal government and converted it into a training facility. The facility was named 
United Tribes Employment Training Center, and began offering classes in the fall of 1 969. The 
federal government transfened ownership of additional Fort Lincoln buildings and 1 03 acres to 
the United Tribes in 1 973.  

UTTC purchased an additional l 32 acres in 2000 where a new campus is cunently being 
built. The new campus includes educational facilities, a gymnasium, a wellness center, and 
residence halls that include family housing. UTTC student housing consists of 3 residence 
halls/dormitories, 1 6  solo parent apartments, and 79 two or three bedroom houses. UTTC also 
operates a I S-apartment complex located off campus (in Bismar·ck) and provides trar1sportation 
to/from campus for all students . The August Little Soldier apartment complex, operated by the 
Burleigh County Housing Authority (but located on the UTTC Campus), offers an additional 
housing option for students . Approximately 300 students can reside in UTTC campus housing. 
UTTC provides on-campus child care at the h1fant/Toddler Center (birth to 2 years of age), 
Arthur Link Child Development Center (2 years to pre-school), and the Theodore Jamerson 
Elementary School (kindergarten to 8 years old) with after school programming. UTTC also 
offers adult learning programs to parents of small children who have not completed high school 
coordinated by the Family and Child Education Program. The mission statement for UTTC states 
that the college is dedicated to providing Native Americans with post-secondary and technical 
education in a culturally diverse environment that vv·ill provide sclf...:dctennir1ation and cconorD.ic 
development for all tribal nations. 

ill 1 975, the college was renamed United Tribes Educational Technical Center, and in 
1 982 it was granted accreditation as United Tribes Technical Center. Two vocational programs at 
the Associate of Applied Science degree level (licensed practical nursing and medical records 
technology) applied for accreditation in 1 987, while at the same time changing its name to United 
Tribes Technical College. Business clerical and criminal justice programs were added in 1 990, 
and three additional programs (automotive service technology, art/art marketing, and early 
childhood education) were added in 1 993 . Cun-ently, UTTC offers 22 Associate of Applied 
Science Degrees and 7 certificate programs and/or vocational programs. UTTC was accredited in 
20 1 1  for B achelors Degrees in business administration, criminal justice, and elementar-y 
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education. In 2012, UTTC had 1 ,3 1 9  full-time and 2 1 1 part-time students enrolled and employed 
276 full-time and 7 1  part-time workers. 

Fort Berthold Community College 

Fort Berthold Community College was founded by the Three Affiliated Tribes of the Fort 
Berthold Reservation at New Town, ND. The first classes were offered in 1 973 and were on an 
extension basis with coordinating institutions. The cooperating colleges included University of 
Mary, Minot State, and the University ofNorth Dakota-Williston. FBCC added academic 
programs and was granted accreditation in 2006 by the North Central Association of Colleges 
and Schools . FBCC was one of the 29 Tribal colleges that was designated as a " 1 994 Tribal Land 
Grant College". The mission statement for the college states that the Fort B erthold Community 
College will provide quality cultural, academic, and vocational education and services for the 
Mandan, Hidatsa, and Arikara Nation. FBCC is a commuter college which does not provide any 
on-campus housing, but the Early Childhood Learning Center provides childcare. FBCC offers 
cafeteria services for the commuter students and a fitness center is located on the campus .  
Student tutorial services are available to students that request academic assistance. 

FBCC offers academic programs that grant Bachelor of Arts Degrees, Bachelor of 
Science Degrees, Associate of Arts Degrees, Associate of Science Degrees, Associate of Applied 
Science Degrees and Vocational Certificates of Completion. Bachelor of Science Degrees are 
available for elementary education and environmental science. A Bachelor of Arts Degree is 
offered in Native American studies. Eight Associate of Alis Degrees are offered for business 
administration/management, addictive studies, early childhood education, elementary education, 
human services, liberal arts, Native American studies, and public/Tribal administration. Five 
Associate of Science Degrees programs offered are for environmental science, mathematics, pre­
engineering, science, and agriculture. FBCC offers Associate of Applied Science Degrees in 1 0  
fields o f  study and grants Vocational Certificates in 14  fields (e.g., building maintenance, home 
health care, technician, welding) . In 20 1 2, FBCC had 309 full-time and 1 3 0  part-time students 
emolled in classes and employed 55 full-time and 1 9  part-time workers . ·  

Methods 

In-state expenditures for the five tribal colleges comprise the direct economic impacts, or 
f'ii·st..:i·ouiid effeCts·. Dat<f}Ji'c/\-·tded. by each tcspe'ctivc Ti'ibal College wete ·u·scd to· estimatcn:he· · ·  · , 

direct impacts. The Tribal Colleges do not subscribe to a common accounting and reporting 
system, and as a result, the FY2012 data from each college were not available in a standardized 
format. The data were reconciled and the in-state expenditures were allocated to industrial 
categories, or sectors, defined by the North Dakota Input-Output Model (Coon et al. 20 12b). 
These expenditures included both outlays for capital improvements and general campus 
operations. Several of the Tribal Colleges had on-going building projects . The North Dakota 
Input-Output Model was previously used to estimate the economic impacts for the North Dakota 
University System (Coon et al. 201 2a) and will also be used for this analysis. 

The Nmih Dakota Input-Output Model was used to estimate the secondary economic 
impacts based on the Tribal Colleges ' expenditure data. The North Dakota Input-Output Model 
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consists of interdependence coefficients, or multipliers, that measure the level of business 
activity generated in each economic sector from an additional dollar of expenditures in a given 
sector. A sector is a group of similar economic units, (e.g., fim1s engaged in retail trade make up 
the Retail Trade Sector). For a complete description of the input-output model, see Coon et al. 
( 1989) .  The model estimates the changes in total business activity (gross receipts) for all sectors 
of the area economy resulting from the direct expenditures associated with the five Tribal 
Colleges. Increased business volumes are used to estimate secondary employment and tax 
revenues based on historic relationships .  The procedures used in the analysis  are similar to those 
used in estimating the impact of other facilities and activities in the state (Leistritz 1 995 ;  
Bangsund and LeistJ.itz 2004) and the North Dakota University System (Coon et al. 2012a) 
Empirical testing has confirmed the model' s  accuracy in estimating changes in levels of 
economic activity in North Dakota; over the period 1 958-201 1 ,  estimates of statewide personal 
income derived from the model averaged within 1 0  percent of comparable values reported by the 
U. S .  DepartJ.nent of Commerce (Coon et al. 2012c, Bureau of Economic Analysis  20 12) .  

This analysis  will also include the economic impact of student living expenses. Student 
spending has an economic impact beyond that of the five Tribal Colleges. Estimated student 
budgets for 20 1 1 -20 12  academic year were available from the North Dakota Career Resource 
Network (201 2). Total student spending was estimated using enrollment numbers provided by 
each individual college. Student living expenditures are the direct economic impacts, and provide 
the data needed to estimate the total economic impact. The direct and total economic impact of 
student spending will be presented separately from the impacts associated with Tribal Colleges ' 
operations. 

Results 

The five Tribal Colleges' expenditures to North Dakota entities for FY20 1 2  totaled more 
than $48 million (Table 1) .  Total expenditures for the Tribal Colleges were obtained by adding 
the expenditures provided by each of the five individual colleges (Appendix A. Table 1) .  When 
expenditures were allocated to the North Dakota Input-Output Model sectors, the largest amount 
went to the Households Sector (e.g., payrolls), followed by outlays to the Construction and Retail 
Trade Sectors. Also, there were signific�mt levels of spending in the Professional and Social 
Services, Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate, and Business and Personal Services Sectors. 
When the North Dakota Input-Output Model coefficients (multipliers) were applied to the direct 
impacts, secondary impacts were estimated to be $93 .8  million in FY2012. The largest secondary 
impacts occmTed)n the flousehold,� '(}nd Retail Trade Sectors. Total .(di:rect,phls seco!1d�ry) 
economic impacts totaled over $ 142 million in FY20 1 2. Total economic impact for the Tribal 
Colleges would generate business activity in the Households Sector (personal income) of $59.0 
million and retail sales of $35 .3  million. 

The five Tribal Colleges employed for 8 1 5  full-time and 209 part-time workers (Appendix 
A, Table 2) . Levels of business activity resulting from Tribal College spending would suppmi an 
additional 3 92 FTE secondary (indirect and induced) jobs in various sectors of the local and state 
economy. These levels of economic activity would be expected to lead to increased sales and use 
tax revenues of $ 1 .6 million, personal income taxes of $885,000, and corporate income taxes of 
$23 1 ,000. In FY20 12, the five Tribal Colleges had a measurable impact on the local and state 
economies ofNorth Dakota. · 
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S ector Direct Secondary Total 

----------------------------$000--------------------------

Constmction 4,935 3,682 8,6 17  

Communication & Public Utilities 1 ,9 1 9  4,73 1 6,650 

Retail Trade 4,884 3 0,399 35,283 

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate 2,659 6,785 9,444 

Business & Personal Services 2, 1 99 2,499 4,698 

Professional & Social Services 2,683 3,878 6,56 1  

Households 28,696 3 0,296 58,992 

Other1 474 1 1 ,573 122047 

Total 48,449 93 ,843 1 42,292 

10ther includes agriculture, mining, transportation, manufacturing, and government. 

Student Economic Impact 

Student spending also creates an economic impact in addition to that of the Tribal 
Colleges. Student spending included outlays for personal items, recreation, books, supplies, and 
room and board. Excluded from student expenditures were outlays for tuition and fees. Estimates 
of student expenditures for an academic year were available for each of the five Tribal Colleges 
(North Dakota Career Resources Network 20 12). The North Dakota Career Resource Network 
estimated student spending for personal and recreation to be $3 ,400 for the 20 1 1 -20 12  school 
year. Total per student living expenses for 20 1 1 -20 12 school year ranged from $7,000 per year at 
United Tribes Technical College to $9,850 per year at Cankdeska Cikana Community College. 
Each. ofthe five Tribal Colleges provided fl.2ll-time and part-time student enrollment numbers for 
the 201 1-2012 academic year, which included the 201 1 Summer session, in their American Indian 
Measures for Success Key Indicator System (AKIS) reports (Appendix A, Table 6) .  Part-time 
students numbers were converted to FTE students based on credit hours taken by part-time 
students. The head count of full-time students and FTE equivalent for part-time students were 
summed to obtain total 4,252 FTE students at the five Tribal Colleges (Appendix A, Table 5). 

Tribal Colleges reported their student enrollment numbers for the 2 0 1  1 -20 12  academic 
year in a standardized format on the AKIS forms. Data reported on the AKIS forms covered 
student enrollment for the Summer 20 1 1  session, the Fall 20 1 1  semester, and the Spring 20 12  
semester for full-time and part-time students . Credit hours taken by students were also reported in 
a similar manner. Part-time students were converted to FTE by dividing total credit hours taken 
by those students by 12  credit hours, the number of credit hours needed to be classified as a full-
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time student. The total FTE students were the sum of the enrolled full-time students (head count} 
plus the FTE part-time stt..1dents (calculated using credit hours). The estimate of FTE students 
(4,252) used to calculate student spending was less than the sum of the total full-time and pmi­
time students ( 4, 792) enrolled at the 5 Tribal Colleges (Appendix A, Table 4). 

The 201 1 Summer session and the 20 1 1 -201 2  academic year FTE students were calculated 
separately (Appendix A, Table 5) .  The number of students for the academic year represents the 
sum of students enrolled in the Fall and Spring semesters. Estimated per-student expenditures for 
the academic year were divided by two to avoid double counting of student spending when using 
estimates of total students for the academic year. Likewise, Summer session student expenditures 
were based on a 3-month term, or one-third of the 9-month academic year (i.e., the academic-year 
student spending was divided by three). The FTE students for the academic year and the Summer 
session were multiplied by the estimated student living expenses for each of the respective 
colleges, to obtain total student spending (i.e . ,  direct economic impacts from student 
expenditures). Appendix A, Table 3 presents the student spending from each college that resulted 
in a $ 1 6 .9 million direct economic impact. Methodology and data sources used to estimate 
student direct economic impacts in this study were similar to those used in the North Dakota 
University System study (Coon et al. 20 12a). 

Multiplying student emollment for each school by their respective per-student living 
expenditures provided an estimate of direct impacts or first-round effects associated with student 
spending. However, using North Dakota Career Resource Network estimates for room and board 
may overstate the economic effects of student expenditures . Although a large number of students 
live on-cmnpus or live independently off-campus, some students live at home. Students living at 
home would likely incur less expense for room and board compared to those living on-campus or 
independently off-campus. Also complicating estimates of the effects of student spending is that 
some of the revenues for room and board for students living in college dormitories could be 
considered double counting with expenditures by the college. Revenues received by colleges for 
on-campus room and board would likely be dispersed for inputs and services associated with 
student housing. As such, expenditures for providing student housing are likely to be at least 
partially captured in the analyses of college spending. Therefore, including room and board 
expenses for all students might result in some double counting. Data were unavailable to adjust

· 

the economic contribution of student spending to account for those students living at home or to 
adjust for the percentage of room and board expenses already captured in this assessment. 

Another area of potential double countii1g cQuld ocqur in how expenses are handled for 
. . .. � .. . . ' . . . - . ' . 

books and other educational materials. Books and educational materials purchased by students 
through campus-sponsored book stores are likely to be fully or pmiially captured by college 
expenditures. Since those facilities are pmi of the college, expenses for staff, facilities, and 
materials/inventory would necessarily be included in the college analysis. Further, it is likely that 
most of college text books would be purchased from publishing entities outside of North Dakota, 
and accordingly would not represent in-state expenditures by the colleges. However, to the extent 
that educational materials are purchased by students from off-campus sources, those expenditures 
would not represent double counting. The degree of overlap between sh1dent spending for books 
and educational supplies and college expenditures associated with book stores is unknown, as is 
the degree of those supplies purchased from out-of-state entities. Despite these potential problems, 
the cost of books was included in the student spending analysis for consistency with previous 
analyses (Coon et. al. 201 2a). Although the potential for some double counting of spending does 
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exist, it most likely would be relatively small compared to the total expenditures used for the 
impact assessment: · 

For the 20 1 1 -20 12  academic year, 4,252 FTE students were enrolled in the five Tribal 
Colleges . Based on expenditures per FTE student, students were estimated to have spent $ 1 6.0  
million in North Dakota on books, room and board, personal items, and recreation (Table 2). Of 
course, students also incur expenses for fees, tuition, and other items not covered in this analysis. 
Those expenditures were not included in this study and would be captured by the analysis of 
university expenditures. 

A large share of the student spending would occur in the communities where the 
institutions are located, due to the nature of their purchases (i.e., books, supplies, and room and 
board). Some of the student expenditures for recreation and personal items will occur in cities and 
trade areas other than those where the college is located. However for this analysis, all student 
spending will be assumed to remain in close proximity to the community where the college is 
located (Appendix A, Table 3). 

Student spending was estimated to be $ 1 6. 0  million for the 20 1 1 -201 2  academic year, 
which most closely approximated the FY20 12  used for the Tribal Colleges ' expenditures .  Student 
expenditures are in addition to operational expenditures for the five Tribal Colleges, without 
accounting for potential double counting previously discussed. Student expenditures were 32.9 
percent of the Tribal Colleges outlays, slightly lower than the 33.6 percent for the North Dakota 
University System (Coon et al. 2012a). 

Spending by students at the Tribal Colleges was allocated to two sectors of the Nmih 
Dakota Input-Output Model: Retail Trade Sector (75 percent), and Finance, Insurance, Real 
Estate Sector (25 percent) . Direct economic impact of student spending was $ 1 6 .0  million for 
academic year 20 1 1 -2012 (Table 2). Applying these expenditures to the North Dakota Input­
Output Model produces the total (direct and secondary) economic impact. Secondary economic 
impacts resulting from student spending totaled $23 .7 million, resulting in a total economic 
impact of $39.6 million for academic year 20 1 1 -20 12 .  The Retail Trade Sector received the 
largest economic impact, with $ 1 7 .9 million in retail trade activity. The Households Sector 
(economy-wide personal income) was estimated to be $9.6 million. Retail purchases result in 
sales and use tax collections. The total level of retail activity generated by student spending would 
result in $830,000 in sales tax revenues, assuming all purchases were made in the No1ih Dakota 
economy. Personal income tax collections of $ 144,000 would result from increased levels of 
income activity in the Households Sector due to student spending. Also, the business activity from 
student spending would supp01i 83 secondary (indirect and induced) jobs in the state. 
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Sector Direct Secondaty Total 

----------------------------$000-------------------------

Construction 7 1 0  7 1 0  

Communication & Public Utilities 1 , 1 60 1 , 1 60 

Retail Trade 1 1 ,966 5,969 1 7,935 

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate 3 ,988 1 ,258 5 ,246 

Business & Personal Services 538 538 

Professional & Social Services 656 656 

Households 9,620 9,620 

Other1 3 ,776 3 ,776 

Total 1 5,954 23,687 39,64 1  

10ther includes agriculture, mining, transportation, manufacturing, and govemment. 

Value of A College Education 

A college education has both social and economic benefits. A review of published 
literature indicates that the economic value of a college degree in the United States has been 
studied extensively. While the monetaty value of higher education has been measured by many 
studies, the social benefits have been acknowledged but are very difficult to quantify. An analysis 
of the value of a college education at all of the Tribal Colleges in Nmth Dakota was beyond the 
scope of this study. However, this topic will be discussed to provide some additional insight into 
how a college education can benefit a community beyond the economic impacts of the T1ibal 
Colleges. _ .. . _ _  ... . _ . .  _ _  . 

One obvious advantage of a college degree is better wages, but benefits extend beyond 
increased salru·ies . Adults with a college degree are healthier, more active citizens, who read to 
their children more often than those without a college degree (Kyle 20 1 0). Specifically, college 
graduates are 14  percent less likely to be obese than high school grads and nearly twice as likely to 
exercise vigorously. Only 9 percent of college graduates smoke compared to 27 percent with a 
high school diploma. A higher percentage of college-educated parents (68 percent) read to their 
children daily than do high school graduates (27 percent) (Kyle 20 12) .  People with a college 
degree donate their time to community organizations at a higher rate than any other group. Rawley 
and Hmtado (2002) contend that benefits of a college degree are also passed along to succeeding 
generations. Addi6onally, "college attendance has been shown to decrease prejudice, enhance 
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knowledge of world affairs, and enhance social status while increasing economic and job security". 

The Alliance For Excellent Education (20 12) published a report stressing the importance 
of providing a quality education to all children, regardless of their skin color or socioeconomic 
status. This report states that in order to maintain the United States economic strength, it is 
imperative to equitably provide all students with a quality education. In addition to the economic 
benefits individuals receive from increased education, communities, states, and the nation also 
benefit. For example, if 90 percent of the students in the class of 20 1 1  were to graduate from high 
school (750,000 additional graduates), an additional $9 billion could be earned each year. This 
revenue could increase tax collections by $2 billion per year at the federal, state, and local levels 
(Balfanz 2012) .  Although the study did not report statistics specifically for Native American 
students, it stated that 3 1  percent of whites aged twenty five and older held a bachelors degree in 
20 1 1 ,  compared to just 20 percent for blacks and 14  percent for Hispanics (Alliance for Excellent 
Education 20 1 2) .  Northwest Area Foundation Indicators Website (2006) showed 22 percent of 
North Dakota' s population had a bachelors degree compared to 4 percent of the Spirit Lake 
Tribe's population in 2000. The Northwest Area Foundation Indicators Website has been 
discontinued, but current census data provides similar statistics. In 201 1 , 26.3 percent of North 
Dakota' s  population had a bachelors degree or higher and 5 .3  percent of the Spirit Lake Tribes 
population held a bachelors degree or higher for the 2007-201 1 period (U.S .  Bureau of the Census 
20 12) .  Non-white K-1 2  school enrollment in North Dakota has grown from 8 percent in the 1 989-
1 990 school year to 1 3  percent in the 2009-20 1 0  school year (Alliance for Excellent Education 
20 1 2),  indicating the educational disparity is becoming a larger problem. North Dakota 
Department of Public Instruction (201 0) repmied high school graduation rates as low as 40 
percent at one reservation school. The Alliance for Excellent Education (20 12) study concluded 
that improving education levels in the United States could save tens of billions of taxpayer dollars 
annually on social costs, such as health care, unemployment, and incarceration. Improving 
education for traditionally undeserved and under-represented groups is a major factor in breaking 
the cycle of poverty and disenfranchisement. Low education levels are closely associated with 
increased rates of homelessness, teen pregnancy, and community violence. These reasons indicate 
how important a college education is for social and economic welfare of our nation. 

Research by Hardy (20 1 0) compiled seven benefits associated with higher education. 
These seven benefits can be categorized as three being economic and four as social. The economic 
benefits include: higher eamings potential, employer-provided health care coverage, and job 
stability. Social benefits were listed as lower stress, healthier lifestyle choices, j ob satisfaction, 
and future r::hilrlren henefits . .Toh satisfaction is a benefit that might be overlooked, but beca�se 
people spend most of their lives working, how they feel about their work can greatly affect them. 
Salient observations regarding future children benefits included con-elation between mother' s 
education and the health of her children, child mortality rates decreased as the mother's education 
attainment levels increased, and parents with a higher education had higher expectations for their 
children to earn a college degree. Also, parents with college degrees were more likely to pay for 
their children' s  college education. In a repmi released by Cankdeska Cikana Community College 
(20 1 0) the social benefits particular to Native American Reservations were listed as mitigation of 
social problems; centers for preservation of culture; language and traditions ; provision for further 
educational oppmiunities; technology transfer; and community programs. 

Numerous studies have examined the earnings advantage for a college graduate compared 
to a high school graduate. However, the lifetime eamings advantage for a college degree varies by 
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study. Lifetime eamings advantage ranged from a low of $ 1 5 0,000 {Robinson· 201 0), to a middle 
range of $650,000 (Pew Research Center 20 1 1) ,  \Vith the highest of $ 1 ,000,000 (Longley 2010) .  
The wide range of values for a college degree are due to assumptions regarding unemployment 
and underemployment. Robinson (20 1 0) assumes that.29 percent of college grads are 
underemployed (i.e., working at high school-level jobs). Current national unemployment rates 
remain in the 8 percent range, and many college graduates may be forced to take employment 
below their educational level. However, these workers will move into jobs in their career field as 
they become available. This study also acknowledged that the value of a college education could 
range from $ 1 50,000 to $500,000 over the course of a lifetime. An estimated $ I  million eamings 
advantage for a college degree was the highest reported, but is a figure that is often cited. People 
with less than a high school degree are at a distinct disadvantage. The unemployment rate for 
individuals with less than a high school diploma was 14. 1 percent compared to 4.9 percent for 
college graduates in 201 1  (Figure 1) .  In 201 1 , an estimated 40 percent of the population 25 years 
and older had a two-year or four-year college degree (Department of Treasury and Education 
20 1 2) .  Women in the 25-34 year age cohort are currently more likely to be college-educated than 
men, with 37 percent having at least a bachelor's degree compared to 29 percent for men in the 
same age group. 

Adults with a high school degree received 60 percent lower mean annual earnings than 
those with a bachelor' s  degree (Figure 2) . Bachelor' s degree holders mean annual eamings were 
$54,756 compared to $33, 176  for a high school degree. A comprehensive study (Baum and Ma 
2007) on the value of higher education analyzed income eaming potential by level of education, 
race/ethnicity, and gender. This study developed rates of lifetime earnings for all educational 
levels compared to a high school degree baseline (i.e . ,  a high school degree had a value of 1 . 00) . 
Figure 3 presents the earnings ratio for various levels of education. 

A bachelor's degree has an earnings ratio of 1 . 6 1 ,  meaning that over their working life the 
college graduate will eam 6 1  percent more than the high school graduate (Baum and Ma 2007) . A 
non-high school graduate will earn 25 percent less than a high school graduate over their working 
lives. Post-baccalaureate degrees returned even higher lifetime eamings. The ratios presented in 
Figure 3 provide a graphic representation of the income-eaming potential for each level of 
education. Clearly, education achievement at every level is rewarded with greater lifetime 
eamings. The value of a college education can be quantified in monetary terms, but the social 
benefits are also important and should not be overlooked. 

Zaback et al. (20 12) also developed ean1ings ratios for education levels relative to a .high 
school degree. This study developed the ratios for different academic areas (i.e . ,  arts and 
humanities, business) and for each state. This analysis supports the belief that a college degree 
results in a higher median income, even though the variation across states and disciplines is 
substantial. Also, the study indicates that almost without exception each successive level of higher 
education attainment results in additional economic benefits. 

The social and economic benefits that result from attainment of college education are 
important to the five Tribal Colleges and the reservations in North Dakota. Higher education 
results in increased earnings and improved social conditions. Higher earnings and reduced 
unemployment also act to strengthen the rural Native communities. Improved economic and social 
conditions that have occurred because of post-secondary education tend to enhance the quality of 
life for all. As the social and economic benefits of a college education get passed onto subsequent 
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generations, the Tribal Colleges serve a role in improving economic and social conditions for 
people and communities ·n1 North -Dakota. Although the stJ.:1cly was not ab:!:e to quantify·the direct· ·  
economic benefits of a college education specifically for graduates of  the five Tribal Colleges, the 
social and economic benefits of higher education have a positive economic effect on Native 
American reservations. 

· - ·----- - ·- - - - --- · · · · - -· - - - ·--·- ··- --- ------
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Avera>_ge: 7.5% 

Figure 1 .  Unemployment Rate by Level of Education in the United States, 201 1 .  
Source: U.S .  Bureau of Labor Statistics 2012.  
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Figure 2 .  Median A1mual Earnings of Adults Age 25 and Older, Full-time Workers in the United 
States, 20 1 1  

Source: U.S .  Bureau of Labor Statistics 2012. 
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Figure 3 .  Ratio of Expected Lifetime Earnings Relative to High School Graduates in the United 
States, by Education Level, 2005. 
Source: Baum and Ma 2007. 
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Conclusions 

The North Dakota Association of Tribal Colleges (NDATC) consists of five colleges 
located in North Dakota. These colleges have an economic impact through their spending for 
goods and services and wages and salaries. Expenditures data were provided by each respective 
college, as were the employment and student enrollments. In addition to the college operational 
expenditures, student spending also has an economic impact. 

Tribal Colleges collectively spent over $48 million in FY20 12  in the North Dakota 
economy. They employed 8 1 5  full-time workers and 209 part-time workers. The over $48 million 
in expenditures comprise the direct, or first-round, economic impacts for the Tribal Colleges. The 
North Dakota Input-Output Model was used to estimate the total economic impact resulting from 
Tribal College expenditures. Tribal College expenditures, or direct effects, were allocated to 
various sectors of the North Dakota Input-Output Model. Interdependence coefficients within the 
model were used to estimate secondary economic effects . Combining direct and secondary 
economic effects provides an estimate of the total economic impact. Total economic impact of the 
Tribal colleges was over $ 1 42 million in FY201 2, which included nearly $ 94 million of 
secondary impacts. The Households Sector (economy-wide personal income) was estimated to be 
$59.0 million in FY2012.  This was the sector with the highest level of business activity, not 
uncommon for an industry that has its largest expense for wages and salaries. Retail trade activity 
attributed to Tribal Colleges expenditures were estimated to be $35 .3 million in FY2012 .  
Business activity generated by Tribal Colleges' expenditures would produce $ 1 .6 million in sales 
and use taxes, and $885,000 in personal income taxes. In addition to the 8 1 5  full-time and 209 
part-time jobs at the five Tribal Colleges, their expenditures would generate enough business 
activity to support another 392 secondary (indirect and induced) jobs. 

Student expenditures for living expenses also create an economic impact. Expenditures by 
the 4,252 FTE students at the five Tribal Colleges for personal items, recreation, books, supplies, 
and room and board amounted to $ 1 6.0 million for the 20 1 1 -20 12 academic year. These 
expenditures, or direct economic effects are in addition to those of the five Tribal Colleges. 
Applying th� stu<)ent spenci_i�1g to _the North Dakota Input-Output Model produces estimates of the 
total economic impact. The Retail Trade Sector had the largest economic impact ($ 1 7 .9  million) 
of any sector, largely due to the high percentage of student spending for retail trade items. The 
next highest level of business activity was in the Households Sector (economy-wide personal 
income) at $9.6 million. Total economic impact from student spending was $39 .6 million, with 
the secondary economic effects being $/J .6 million. These levels of business activity from student 
spending would support 83 secondary workers in various sectors of the North Dakota economy. 

Beyond the economic impacts that the Tribal Colleges and their student spending creates, 
are the social and economic benefits of a post-high school education. Original research on this 
topic was not possible within the scope of this study, but a review of published literature was 
conducted to provide validation for the time and expense of obtaining a college a degree. Previous 
studies have determined that college graduates have healthier life style, healthier children, more 
job satisfaction, have shown decreased prejudice, enhanced lmowledge of world affairs , and have 
enhanced social status . Also, many of these benefits are passed onto succeeding generations. 
Economic benefits are more easily quantified as college graduates have lower unemployment rates 
and higher annual incomes. Unemployment for high school graduates was 9 .4 percent in 20 1 1 , 
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much higher than the 4. 9 percent rate for person with a college bachelors degree. That same year 
the median ammal earnings for a college degree was $54,756, over 65 percent higher than the 
median for a high school degree ($33 , 1 76). 

The five Tribal Colleges and their students have substantial impacts on North Dakota's 
economy. These Tribal Colleges collectively employ 8 1 5  full-time and 209 part-time workers. A 
total of 4,792 students were emolled at the 5 Tribal Colleges on a full-time or part-time basis 
during the 20 1 1 -2012 academic year. The number of students emolled was converted to an 
estimated 4,252 FTE students so that the economic impact of student spending could be 
determined. Expenditures by the colleges and students provide a direct economic effect, that when 
applied to the multiplier effect, create a secondary impact. The total economic impact resulting 
from the Tribal Colleges ' expenditures affects the state and local economies, and further provides 
students with an education that has social and economic benefits. 
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Sector Cankdeska Sitting Bul l  Turtle Mt. United Ttibes Ft. Berthold Total 

Construction 

Transportation 

Comm & Public Utilities 

Retail Trade 

Fin, Ins, Real Estate 

Bus & Pers Service 

Prof & Soc Service 

Households 

Totals 

----------------------------------------------- $000 --------------- --------------------------------

1 ,9 1 5  1 ,200 925 

47 28 289 

1 66 3 1 1  429 

1 ,022 7 1 5  869 

645 1 ,039 12 1  

558  237 242 

680 323 866 

4,393 1 ,441 8,409 

9,426 5 ,294 12, 1 50 

895 

38 

787 

1 ,680 

3 19 

839 

479 

1 2,369 

1 7,406 

- -

72 

226 

598 

535 

323 

335  

2,084 

4, 1 73 

4,935 

474 

1 ,9 1 9  

4,884 

2,659 

2, 1 99 

2,683 

28,696 

48,449 



College l''ull-time Part-time 
Employment Employment 

------number of workers ------

Cankdeska Cikana CC 78 6 

United Tribes TC 276 7 1  

Sitting Bull CC 264 69 

Turtle Mountain CC 142 44 

Ft Berthold CC 55  19  

Total 8 1 5  209 
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Institution Term 

Cankdeska Cikana CC 

Academic Year 

Summer School 

United Tribes TC 

Academic Year 

Summer School 

Sitting Bull College 

Academic Year 

Summer School 

Turtle Mountain CC 

Academic Year 

Summer School 

Ft Berthold CC 

Academic Year 

Summer School 

Total 

2 0 1 1 -2012 FTE 
Students1 

374 

45 

1 , 1 50  

252 

58 1  

65 

1 ,059 

361  

322 

43 

4,252 

Student Living 
Expenses2 

Total 
Expenditures 

----------------------$---------------------

4,925 

3 ,283 

3,500 

2,333  

4,900 

3 ,267 

3,732 

2,488  

4, 100  

2,733 

1 ,841 ,950 

147,735 

4,025,000 

587,9 16  

2,846,900 

212,355 

3,952, 1 88 

898, 1 68 

1 ,324,200 

1 1 7 5 1 9  

1 5 ,953 ,93 1 

Sources: North Dakota Career Resource Network (20 1 2) and AKIS reports from individual colleges. 

1 Full-time equivalent sh1 d ents based on data obtained from AKIS academ i c  reports. A I M S  (American Indian 

M e asures for Success) Key Indication System (AKI S) requires c o l l eges to separately rep ort students taking 1 2  
credits o r  m ore per  semester, and report stu dents takin g Jess than 1 2  credit h ours per sem e ster. Full-time 

equivalent students were e stimated based on a head c ount of students in fall and spring semesters taking 1 2  credits 

or m ore, and total credit h ours for p art-time students in faJ I  and spring semesters divided b y  1 2  credit hours. 

Summ er scho o l  fuJI-time students also represented those taking 1 2  credit h ours or more, and total credit hours for 

part-time summ er students divided by 1 2  credit hours .  

2 S tudent living expenses include room, board, supplies and $3 ,400 for personal recreation and misceJianeous 

spen ding for the 2 0 1 1 -20 1 2  academic year. N orth D akota C areer Resource N etwork academic-year student 

spendin g  estim ates were d ivided by two because fuJI-time equivalent students were the sum of enro l lm ent in fal l  

a n d  spring semesters. B ecause t h e  3 m onths o f  summer sch o o l  represents one-third o f  an academic year, 

academ ic-year student spending w as divided by 3 to estimate student spending during summer scho o l .  
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Student Head Count 

Full-time Part-time Estimated Full-
College Students Students time Students 1 

---- number of students -----

Cankdeska Cikana CC 286 279 4 1 9  

United Tribes TC 1 ,3 19 2 1 1 1 ,402 

S itting Bull College 567 1 65 646 

Tmtle Mountain CC 1 ,345 1 8 1  1 ,420 

Ft Berthold CC 309 1 3 0  365 

Total 3 ,826 966 4,252 
Full-time equivalent students b ased on data obtained from AKIS academic 

reports. AIMS (American Indian M easures for Success) Key Indication System 

(AKIS) requires colleges to separately report students taking 1 2  credits or more 

p er semester, and report students taking less than 1 2  credit hours per semester. 

Full-time equivalent students were estimated b ased on a head count of students 

in fall and spring semesters taking 1 2  credits or more, and total credit hours for 

p art-time students in fall and spring s em esters divided by 1 2  credit hours. 

Summer sch o o l  full-time students also represented those taking 1 2  credit hours 

or more, and total credit hours for p art-time summer students divided by 1 2  
credit hours. The estimated student c ount o f  4,252 was used to estim

'
ate student 

spending imp acts. 
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Table A5 . . AKIS .. Data on Su!deiit EfJ:dntneMand Cl'ehlf.'itciurs Tak��:tot¥�t1���2�#71cc�." 

Students, North Dakbta Tribalt6.il��e.$;:suihlh�r·s6ft.oqt.i.ob'·ah�lA¢�� Yeai�tl1 
. . . ·; ·' ' - . . _. .• • · ' ····� - ·� ·· ·  �- �  . _, .' • ,. •. · •  · · ·  . .. � · - ·  �- · c·,., . .. , "" ,..· .. ;_ , ·. �  . . -.:< 

Part-time Students 

Ful l -time S tudents (Head Count) Credit Hours Full-time Equivalents 1 

FTE FTE 
Academic Summer Academ ic Summer Academic Summer 

College Year School Total Year School  Year School Total -
Candeska 
Cikana CC 283 3 286 1 ,088  5 1 1  9 1  42 1 3 3  

United 
Tribes TC 1 ,08 1 23 8 1 ,3 1 9  829 1 77 69 14 83  

Sitting Bull 
College 5 1 0  57 567 852 1 0 1  7 1  8 79 

Turtle 
Mountain 
cc 1 ,003 342 1 ,345 668 232 56 1 9  75 

Ft. Berthold 
cc 279 30 309 5 1 4 1 57 43 1 3  56 

Totals 3 ,826 426 -

FTE S tudents2 

Academic Summer 
Year School  

3 74 45 

1 , 1 50 252 

5 8 1  65 

1 ,059 3 6 1  

322 43 

Full-time equivalents for part-time stud,!nts were calculated by dividing total credit hours for p art-time students b y  1 2  credit hours. 

Total 

4 1 9  

1 ,402 

646 

1 ,420 

3 65 

4,252 

2 Full-time equivalent students were estimated based on a head count o f  students in fall and spring semesters taking 1 2  credits o r  more, and total credit hours for 

p art-time students in fall and spring semesters divided by 1 2  credit hours. Summer school full-time students also represented those taking 1 2  credit hours o r  

m ore, a n d  total credit hours for part-time summer students divided by 12 credit hours. T h e  estimated student count of 4,252 w a s  u s e d  t o  estimate student 

s pending impacts . 
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'i���01�1:ti�t���1�t�%ilq\��{aa�'�ri�ft;�tif���-����1������*�ifE'',B' 
College/Period 

Candeska Cikana CC 

Summer 201 1 

Fa11 20 1 1  

Spring 20 1 2  

Total 

United Tribes TC 

Sunm1er 201 1 

Fal1 20 1 1  

Spring 20 1 2  

Total 

Sitting Bull College 

Sunm1er 20 1 1  

Fal1 20 1 1  

Spring 20 1 2  

Total 

Part-time 

AI 
Students 

89  

82 

78 

249 

25 

26 

5 6  

1 07 

27 

54 

52 

1 33 

Part-time 
Non-AI 
Students 

8 

1 1  

1 1  

30  

27 

3 6  

4 1  

1 04 

5 

1 1  

26 

42 

Full-time 
AI 

Sh1dents 

3 

1 2 1  

147 

27 1 

203 

537 

435 

1 , 1 75 

5 5  

23 1 

253 

539 

Full-time 
Non-AI 
Students 

0 

6 

9 

1 5  

3 5  

5 6  

53  

144 

2 

1 3  

1 3  

28 

- continued -

Part-time 
AI Credits 

474 

458 

526 

1 ,45 8 

92 

1 60 

238 

490 

86 

3 5 7  

302 

745 

Part-time 
Non-AI 
Credits 

37  

5 1  

53  

141  

85  

1 97 

234 

5 1 6  

1 5  

5 5  

1 3 8  

208 

Full-time 
AI Credits 

3 6  

1 ,775 

2,045 

3,856 

1 ,654 

8 ,256 

6,635 

1 6,545 

374 

3 ,246 

3,575 

7 , 1 9 5  

Full-time 

Non-AI 

Credits 

0 

80  

12t  

201 

274 

830 

768 

1 ,872 

1 7  

1 97 

1 86 

400 



Table A6. 
. . . , ·: ·- , ,  . --., ; �  ·. " � .. - .- ./. . ,_ . ,  . -.., : ·, . .  � . : . - .  <, , . _ - � ,. :. ·. ,·-.. Ji.,.;: �"i-1-., --�-'-:-'.;;..ic._ -·: :, �·, ·- ., (>' .,., ., .... \ ;:o; 'f;..." 

Part-time Part-time Full-time Full-time Part-time Full-time 
AT Non-AI AI Non-AI Part-time Non-AI Full-time Non-AI 

Col lege/Period Sh1dents Students Students Students AI Credits Credits AT Credits Cred its 

Turtle Mountain CC 

Summer 201 1 59  13  3 34 8 178 54 2,266 34 

Fall 20 1 1  41  5 508 24 271 1 9  7,282 226 

Spring 20 12 5 9  4 450 2 1  3 5 9  1 9  6,446 293 

Total 1 5 9  22 1 ,292 5 3  808 92 1 5 ,994 5 5 3  

Ft. Berthold CC 

Sunm1er 201 1 4 1  5 26 4 1 3 8  1 9  1 7 5  3 0  
N 
-...) Fall 201 1 3 6  1 0  1 3 6  2 2 1 2  5 2  1 ,837 3 1  

Spring 20 12 35  3 1 3 7  4 230 20 1 ,959 60 

Total 1 1 2 1 8  299 1 0  5 8 0  9 1  3 ,971  1 2 1  

AIM S (American Ind ian Measures for S uccess) Key Indication System (AKIS) . 



TUESDAY, MARCH 1 2, 20 1 3  
a, • ': ' .. _., 

::: KTJRIBUNE . C OM 

U'l!:l( 
;"1J� 

l a�  • .  i 

�RD 
)ublisl1er 
:m editor 
:ontroller 
ity edito· 

HBEH 
OIGI: �:; 
pts 1 n; 1 
; an: rr ·d 
te m ;:i 1 

(aJ 

'i l l ! '  

1 :;  
l i l T  I 

l i l f! i ' l  
I I I I I 
' i ! l l '  
� I I i 
· I  

TRIBUNE EDITORIAL 

Unemployment in North Dakota 
runs less than 3 percent except on 
the state's Indian reservations, 
where the unemployment rate is 
55 percent. 

It's an economically and socially 
painful gap that exists, for a lot of 
complicated reasons. Closing t.hat 
gap has frustrated tribal and feder­
al governments as well as reserva­
tion residents. 

It would be good for all North 
Dakotans if those who live on the 
Fmi Berthold, Standing Rock, Tur­
tle Ivfountain and Spirit Lake Indi­
an reservations were able to benefit 
from the state's present economic 
boom. A good job \.'llith a solid pay­
check can work wonders for fa..rni­
lies vvithout either - and it's not 
just an economic boost. 

But how? 
A bill in the North Dakota Legis-

larure would pro­
vide funding for 
job training and 
placement, as 
well as other 
related workforce 
issues on t.he 
state's reserva­
tions. The vehicle for doing this is 
to be the state's tribal colleges ­
Sitting Bull College LD Fort Yates, 
Fort Berthold Community College 
in New Town, Cankdeska Cikana 
Community College in Fort Totten, 
Turtle Mountain Community Col­
lege in Belcourt and United Tribes 
Technical College in Bismarck. 
(The situation on the Sisseton 
Wahpeton Sioux Reservation, 
because of its South Dakota orien­
tation, isn't included in the legisla­
tion.) 

The tribal colleges have the 
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un I 
skills, understand­
ing and infra­
structure in place 
to bridge reserva­
tion unemploy­
ment with non­
reservation work 
opportunities, 

especially in the Bakken oil fields. 
Oil companies are crying for good 
workers and the tribal colleges are 
best situated on the reservation to 
provide those workers. 

And since each reservation is 
different, the tribal college that 
serves a particular reservation best 
knows what needs to be done. This 
is a very practical answer to the 
challenge of unemplcyment on the 
state's reservations. 

The estimated financial impact 
of Senate Bill 22l 8, which is now L.J. 
the House, is $5 million, to be 

"Seeking to find and publish 
the truth, that the people of a 
great state might have a light by 
which to guide their destiny." 

- Stella Mann, 
Tribune publishe1; 1939 
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II 
divided among five tribal colleges. 
It amounts to a two-year program 
to be administered through the 
state Commerce Department. 

Historically, tl1e state has not 
funded programs on the reserva­
tion. However, in the last several 
sessions, lawmakers have provided 
funds for non-Indian students at 
tribal colleges. About 10 percent of 
the students at the state tribal col­
leges are non-Indian students. The 
workforce training bill now being 
considered would be the first true 
investment in the reservations -
whose residents are North 
Daleo tans - by state government. 

Senate Bill 2218 can make a sen­
sible difference. 

SB22l8 will be heard at 8 a.m. 
today by the House Industry, Busi­
ness and Labor Committee in the 
Peace Garden Room. 

� 
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[ 1 . ] PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 22 1 8  

Page 1 ,  l ine 23, after "grant" insert "before Ju ly 1 ,  2014" 

Renumber accord ingly 

[2 . ]  PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 22 1 8  

Page 3 ,  l ine 27 ,  remove "No more than fifty percent of the appropriation may be 
expended d u ring the fi rst" 

Page 3 ,  remove l ine 28 

Renumber accord ingly 

[3.]  PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 22 1 8  

Page 3 ,  l ine 24 , replace "$5 ,000,000" with "$3, 000,000" 

Renumber accord ingly 




